
OTYOF 
AGENDA 

f5\ ELL 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M. 

TUESDAY, JULY 1,2014 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL 

WELCOME . .. By YOllr presence ill the City COllncil Chambers, YOll are participating ill the process of 
representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City 
Council are available at the City Clerk's office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenlle. Your City 
Government welcomes your interest and hopes YOli will attend and participate in Rio Dell City COllncil 
meetings often. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if YOll need special assistance to participate in 
this meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this 
meeting. 

THE TYPE OF COUNCIL BUSINESS IS IDENTIFIED IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH 
TITLE IN BOLD CAPlT AL LETTERS 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLLCALL 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D. CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

E. PUBLIC PRESENT A nONS 

This time is for persons wlzo wish to address the COllncil all mly matter not all this agendallnd over 
which the COllllcilhas jurisdiction. As sllch, a dialogue with the COllneil or staff is 110t intended. Itellls 
requiring COllncilactioll not listed on this agendalllay be placed OIl the next regular agenda for 
consideration if the COllllcil directs, lInless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of the COllncillllelllbers 
present that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of all urgency natllre reqlliring 
illllllediate actioll. Please lilllit COllllllents to a lllaxillllllli of3 lllinlites. 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The COllsent Calendar adopting the printed recollllllellded COllllcil actioll will be enacted with one vote. 
The Mayor will first ask the staff the public, and the COlillcillllelllbers If there is allyolle who wishes to 
address any matter 011 the Consent Calendar. The matters removed from the Consent Calezzdar will be 
cOllsidered individllally ill the next sectioll, "SPECIAL CALL ITEMS". 





1) 2014/0701.01- Approve Minutes of the June 10, 2014 Special Meeting (ACTION) 1 

2) 2014/0701.02 - Approve Resolution No. 1231-2014 requesting the County of 
Humboldt Elections Deparhnent to include Rio Dell in the 
November 2014 General Election (ACTION) 9 

3) 2014/0701.03 - Approve Resolution No. 1225-2014 adopting the Operations and 
Capital Budget for FY 2014-2015 as amended (ACTION) 13 

4) 2014/0701.04- Approve Resolution No. 1230-2014 Approving Billable Rates for 
staff time for FY 2014-2015 and rescind Resolution No. 1207-2013 
(ACTION) 24 

5) 2014/0701.05 - Approve Resolution No. 1229-2014 Confirmation of the FY 2014-2015 
Tax Assessment for financing of the 1978 Sewer Assessment Bonds 
(ACTION) 29 

6) 2014/0701.06 - Approve Employment Agreement with Kyle C. Knopp as 
City Manager (ACTION) 42 

G. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

1) 2014/0701.07 - Presentation by Redwood Coast Energy Authority (RCEA) on 
City of Rio Dell Greenhouse Gas Inventory 50 

H. SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

1) "SPECIAL CALL ITEMS" from Consent Calendar 

1. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1) 2014/0701.08- Conduct second reading (by title only) and adopt Ordinance 
No. 321-2014 and Resolution No. 1220-2014 Establishing Residential 
Multifamily Zoning Designation, Section 17.20.035 of the Rio Dell 
Municipal Code; a Zone Reclassification Redesignating approximately 
8.7 acres from Urban Residential (UR) to Residential Multi-Family; 
Redesignating the Downtown City Parking Lot from Town Center (TC) 
to Public Facility (PF); Establishing Emergency Shelters/Transitional 
Housing Regulations, Section 17.30.079 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code; 
and amending Section 17.10 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code, Definitions 
to include Emergency Shelters/Transitional Housing (ACTION) 122 

2) 2014/0701.09 - Conduct second reading (by title only) and adopt Ordinance No. 
322-2014 amending Rio Dell Municipal Code Section 13.10.130 noting 
when Wastewater Fees are due and transferring Wastewater Fee 
authority from the RDMC to Resolution No. 1222-2014 (ACTION) 145 





3) 2014/0701.10 - Adopt Ordinance No. 326-2014 imposing a Transaction and Use Tax 
to be administered by the State Board of Equalization and Approve 
Resolution No. 1232-2014 establishing date of November 4,2014 as the 
date to place the temporary general government services Transaction 
and Use Tax of 1 % for 5 years before the voters for approval and 
requesting the Board of Supervisors of Humboldt County to consolidate 
said election with the Statewide General Election (ACTION) 201 

J. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

1. City Manager 
2. Chief of Police 
3. Finance Director 
4. Community Development Director 

K. COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

1. ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION AS 
FOLLOWS: No Closed Session Items Scheduled 

M. ADJOURNMENT 

The Ilext regular meeting will be 011 Jllly 15, 2014 
at 6:30 p.m. ill City Hall Couneil Chambers 





RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING 
.JUNE 10,2014 
MINUTES 

A special meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor 
Thompson. 

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Thompson. Councilmembers Johnson. Marks. and Wilson 

Absent: Councilmember Woodall (excused) 

Others Present: City Manager Stretch. Finance Director Woodcox and City Clerk 
Dunham 

Absent: Chief of Police Hill. Community Development Director Caldwell. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Water/Roadways Superintendent Jensen and \Vastewatcr 
Superintendent Chicora (excused) 

Authorize the City Manager to si!!n State of California State Lands Commission Amendment of 
Lease No. PRC 9081.9 
Mayor Thompson stated this matter relates to the ground lease from the State tilr a 50' casement 
for installation of the eft1uent pipeline beneath the Eel River as pan of the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Disposal and Improvement Project. He said the original lease agreement included the 50' 
easement but was amended and approved by the State Land Commission with a 20' easement. 

Councilmember lvlarks asked if this is an open ended lease. 

City Manager Stretch stated that he recalls the lease having a 20 year term and noted that the 
only change in the lease agreement is the easement from 20' to 50'. 

Motion was made by Marks/Johnson to authorize the City Manager to SIgn the Stak of 
California State Lands Commission Amendment of Lease No. PRC 9081.9. Motion carried 4-0. 

SPECIAL MEETING MATTERS 

STUDY SESSION - Review of Draft FY 7014-2015 Bud!!el 
City Manager Stretch provided Councilmembers with a revised recommended budget and stated 
it included a minor change in the Water Fund and a change in the Sewer Fund to include the 
Bartle Wells Rate Study expense. 

1 



,JUNE 10, 2()U MINUTES 
Page 2 

He said when the Council met on May 9. 2014: specific instruction was given to staff regarding 
the budget which was to proceed cautiously. maintain the cunent level of staffing with no cost
of:living adjustments. balance the budget \\1th the use of Reserves. and to put together a tax 
revenue measure for the November election. 

He then provided an overview of the recommended budget and said the budget for alillmds 
totals $3.107.820 with General Fund totaling 5870.035 or 28% and the Water and Sewer funds 
representing 56% of the budget or $1.733,360 for operations. ddJt service and capital funds. 
Streets fund \Ias reported $258.997 or 8% orthe budget. He noted that with General Fund 
Revenues projected at $772.838 and Expenditures projected at S870.036. $130.875 will need to 
be taken from the General Fund Reserves to balance the General Fund. He also pointed out that 
a new Building Program Fund was created with the idea of user fees fully funding the cost of 
building plan check and inspection services however: since revenues Elll short of expenditures 
by $33.678 at this time. the General Fund is required to cover the additional expense. 

Mayor Thompson commented that it was his understanding that the Vehicle Abatement Program 
was voted back in so the City should be getting revenue from that program. 

Councilmember Wilson stated that e\"Cry City had the opportunity to mte on \Ihether to 
implement the vehicle abatement program with a $1.00 irom e\·ery vehicle license fee and it 
went bdore the Board of Supervisors and was approYCd. lie said the problem had to do 1\ ith the 
cost of turning on and ofT the sofmare at a cost of around S30.0()O. 

City Manager Stretch said he would research information related to passage orthat bill. 

Next was review of the Budge! SUIIlIllWJ· hy Department and Eslilllaled RcsclTc Balance hy 
Fund al rew· End. 

City Manager Stretch reported the beginning sewer reserve balance fi.lr operations is estimated at 
$339.617 with a balunce of$365.800 projected for the ending balance. He said thc policy is to 
transfer $300.000 of the ending balance into capital. He also noted that the Sewer Debt Service 
fund has a positi\e balance of $570.649 because the city began collecting the deht senice early 
so staff is recommending a portion of that be transferred to Sewer Operations and Sewer Capital. 

City Manager Stretch stated the beginning balance in the Water Capital Resene fund is 
estimated at $78.50() and is inadequately funded to meet the future infrastructure replacement 
needs or tile system. He explained that $4.50 of each rate payer's monthly bill is deposited into 
the Capital Fund which amounts to approximately S77.00()!yeur however: a minimum or 
$430.000 is required to capitalize the system to replace failing infrastructure. He noted tbat stafr 
is r;;comm(;nding a transfer ofS48.920 from Water Debt Fund to Water Capital Fund and that a 
rate adjustment is imperative to maintain a solvent fund. As sllch. the City Council bas 
authorized Bartle \Vells Associates to proceed with a Water Rate Study. 

2 



·JUNE 10,2014 MINUTES 
Page 3 

City Manager Stretch said from time to time he gets questioned as to where our local property 
taxes go so staff prepared a pie chart of Humboldt County 2013-2014 Property Tax Distribution 
based on infonnation from the Humboldt County Treasurer-Tax Collector. The chart showed 
67.2% of property taxes going to schools: 17.0% to the County General Fund: 2.2% to County 
Roads; 1.9% to County Library; 7.8% to Special Districts; and 3.9% to Cities. He said at that 
rate. the City is unable to provide satisfactory level of services to those new residences. He 
explaincd the rate depends on v,,'hat the tax rate was in 1978 when Prop 13 was passed. 

City Manager Stretch stated that another concern had to do with the allocation tables. He said 
staff set up new allocation rates to accurately reflect allocated funds based on salaries for actual 
staff time worked in the various departments. He said the biggest shift was in the public works 
department with the Water Fund adjusted from 48'Yo to 15°!,) and the Se\ver Fund adjusted fi'om 
39'% to 22%. 

Council member Wilson asked what will happen with the Water Fund allocation at 15% and at 
the end of the year it is much higher because of broken pipes. Staff' responded that adjustments 
would be required. 

Councilmember Marks asked for an explanation oCthe allocation rate change for the Public 
Works department 

City Manager Stretch explained that 22% of Public Works time was spent on General Fund 
activities such as Building and Grounds maintenance but no funds were allocated lor that 
purpose. Likewise. 41 % of their time was spent on Street activities with only 5% allocated for 
that purpose_ As such. the allocations were adjusted to more accurately reflect actual time thus 
charging the appropriate flmds. 

Mayor Thompson questioned City Clerk Dunham on how the previolls allocations were 
established. She explained the allocations were established years ago based on estimated time 
rather than actual time as retlected on employee time sheets. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if staff could pro\-ide a mid-year budget review. City Manager 
Stretch stated a mid-year review could perhaps be done in January or February and noted that 
statTwill be receiving Accuflmd training so will be able to utilize more software functions and 
provide more accurate reports. 

Mayor Thompson asked if a list of priority projects \vill be developed for the new City rv!anager. 

City Manager Stretch said he hoped to develop a new work program although it would be easy to . -
simply add to his existing work program. 

3 



.JUNE 10, 2(}14 MINl'TES 
Page" 

Next was review of estimated revenues by fund, City Manager Stretch stated the recommended 
Revenue Budgcttotals $3,058.482 and compared to the prior yeaI'. the budgeted Operating 
income for the 2014-2015 year decreased by S349,678, He explained this is partially due to how 
the City is now reporting revenue as previously discussed, 

City l\Ianager Stretch commented that lotal General Fund revenues f,x last year were $818,636 
and the current year is projected at $772,838 which represents a reduction ofS45,798, He noted 
that this trend carries pretty much all the way across all ftInds "ith an oV'Cfall revenue reduction 
of $279.302, 

Councilmember Marks questioned where the revenue projections come fi'om, 

Finance Director \Voodcox explained that some of the numbers represent actuals and others are 
based on staff s best projections by looking at previous trends. meaning actual data pulled out or 
the system, 

City Manager Stretch referred to the Budget Summary Worksheet which indicates that $130.876 
will be taken fi'om the Reserves in order to balance the General Fund Budget and although the 
projected Reserve balance June 30, 1015 is a little over $1 million, it is clear that revenues 
coming into the Fund will not be able to keep up with expenditures, He said the budget does not 
include any cost of living adjustments for employees or bring back any of the positions cut in 
2010-2011, Additionally. the Streets Fund is not receiving adequate Gas Tax revenue to address 
the f~liling condition of city streets, He said the only other source of funding besides grants, 
which are very limited. is the General Fund, tie said the budget as recommended is wry tight 
and as direckd by the Council. maintains public service levels and staffing b(l\\ever: that cannot 
continuc unless a sourec ornc" rC\'enue is establishcd, 

Councilmemher Wilson stated that the City Clerk's salary and bene tits arc broken out cqually 
between the City Manager Department Building, and Planning and askcd if it is possible to get 11 

breakdown of all administrative time, 

City Manager Stretch responded that the data is provided in the pie charI. 

Staff continued with review of budget highlights for each orthe departments, 

Coul1cilmember Marks asked for the status on employee health insurance, 

Finance Director Woodcox explained the current plan v,ill be in place until January L 2015 and 
that she had met with the City's health insurance provider and discussed v'arious new plans, She 
said for small groups they arc basically offering 4 options which are Platinum (90% coverage). 
Gold (80°;!) coverage). Siher (70% coverage) and Bronze 6()'1() coverage), She said she is still 

4 



.JUNE 10,2014 MINUTES 
PageS 

researching options and costs as there is a lot of information to re\·iew but they are olTering the 
various HMO, PPO and HSA plans. 

Councilmember Wilson askcd what level of cowragc best reflects the employee's current 
co\-erage. 

Finance Director Woodcox responded that the current plan is closest to the Gold plan although 
the costs are higher and the benefits arc less. 

Councilmember 10hnson asked how the admin car is working out if it is perhaps being under
utilized. 

City Manager Stretch commented that he belie\es it will be utilized more this year. 

Related to the Police Department. statf pointed out the increase in health insurance costs and 
workers camp stnting it was due to those costs being under-budgeted last year. 

Councilmember Marks asked if adding a part-time ofike position \\ould hclp with patrol. City 
Manager Stretch stated that although it would only represent 20'i",) it would release a uniformed 
officer to the field. 

Discussion continued regarding the Building Department Councilmember Wilson questioned the 
S32.000 shortfall with implementation of the 33% and 66% building administration fee. 

City Manager Stretch explained the increased costs are due to the increased costs fiJr salary. 
benefits and training orthe Community Devdopment Director in oreler to prm'ide building and 
plan check services in- house. He noted that the General Fund is required to subsidize the 
building department by $32.000 to fund the building department program for this budget year. 
He indicated stall will need to bring back a proposed fee schedule similar to other local agencies 
related to building program fees. 

Council member Wilson qucstioned what Planning related tasks won't get accomplished with the 
added building department responsibilities given to the Community Development Director. 

City Manager Stretch stated that he has been successful in updating the majority of the Gencral 
Plan Elements and other outdated codes so he mm has extra time available to dedicate to 
building related activities. 

Durin" review of the Sewer Fund. City Mana~er Stretch slaled that it was recentlY brou~ht to his e ~ '-'- . "-

attention b\ a Bartle Wells Associates consultant regarding legal action brought against the City 
of Davis r;garding their General Fund not paying for the water used to irrigate their parks. The 

5 



.JUNE 10, 2014 MINUTES 
Page 6 

City had no defense for the action and lost the ease. He said what that means is that all meters 
not being charged such as City Hall and the Fire Hall will need to be metered and charged as 
advised by the City Attorney. In addition. the sewer department will be required to pay itlr wakr 
they use in the sevver department. 

Councilmember Wilson stated that he understands there are laws that have to be abided by but 
the Fire Department should not have to incur any more deht to protect our City. He said as long 
as he has breath. he will light the decision to charge them for water to the end. 

Councilmember Marks questioned the S35.00() budgeted for Capital Projects under (6.JIJIJ) Fixed 
.,lsseIS· f 'chicle.I·, 

City Manager Stretch staled that th~ S3S.000 is It)r a new gen~ralor in Public Works and said it 
was simply put under the wrong lin~ item. 

Discllssion cnsll~d regarding the current le\'el of starting and the potential problems associated 
with the reduction in staff in the public works department and police department. It \\as reported 
that the cost of adding back J police oflie~r and I public work lead would be 5172.500 and that 
the only \Iay to e\'en consider the idea. some kind of tax revenue measure would have to be 
implemented. 

Ik said as directed by the Council. staff explored the feasibility of placing a tax re\,enue measure 
on the November ballot. lIe explained there arc 3 basic local rc\enue measures to consider 
which include a Utility User Tax: Local Sales or High Energy ['ser Tax. ! Ie said the State 
Board of Equalization who administers local sales taxes for cities estimates a 1 local sales tax 
for Rio Ddl. based on 2013 retail sales would generate approximately S 163.0()O net annually: 
with the addition of the Dollar General. approximately $173.000. He noted that a local sales tax 
measure if approved would nol be implemented until April. 2015. whereas a utility user's tax 
would be implemented almost immediately after passage. 

He explained a high energy USc tax. as implemented by the City of Arcata. identilies residential 
users that exceed 600% of baseline electricity and then places a -IS",j, tax on the excessive 
amount. He said the problem with this is that the program is administered by PG&E and their 
charge to create the software would be anywhere lhll11 $31 O.O()() to $-I8S.0()() and would take the 
City yems to recoup those costs. He said the Council had agreed to defer consideration of this 
tax program to see hcm it is workinf! le)r other cities. 

~ ~ 

City Manager Stretch continued to explain that once !h~ type of tax is determined. the next 
decision is whether to create a ballot measure that would be for the benefit of City services 
generally. or a restricted measure identified for a specific program sllch as the Police 
Department. ! Ie said a general tax measure requires a 5()% + I voter approval whereas a sped lie 
program tax measure requires 66% or 2/3 voter apprmul. 

6 



JUNE 10,2014 MINUTES 
Page 7 

Councilmember Wilson stated that he gave a lot of thought to the tax option and it's kind ofa 
double edged sword since it is harder to sell the idea to the community that the City wants a 
general tax to use as desired rather than a specific purpose. He said the Council was presented 
quite a document in 2011 and he is frustrated that what is being presented today really doesn't 
reconcile. He said the decision to reduce stafj' was based on inaccurate information. 

Councilmember Johnson asked ifit is a fair statement that the City's Sales Tax Revenue at % of 
1 cent generates $122,OOO/year. 

Finance Director Woodcox stated that it is an actual number and the number used to project next 
year's revenue. 

Councilmember Marks stated that historically the City Council has not \vasted money and if the 
community is told in good faith that the City needs to generate revenue to be able to provide the 
necessary level of services and rehire 1 police oi1icer and 1 public works employee they should 
be supportiv'e. 

Councilmember Wilson commented that the community doesn't see decades of City Council 
members or City Managers: they sec City Government in action now. He said he would rather 
see implementation of a sales tax revenue measure as opposed to other taxes and said in the 
meantime the Council needs to find a \\ay to resolve the budget situation for long term. He 
noted that the community needs to believe how the money will be spent and felt it is imperative 
to have other support other than the Council out in the community because the measure will reler 
to it as a general tax and won't be specific. 

Mayor Thompson asked for public comment on the issue. 

Susan Hagemann suggested the proposed tax be increased Irol11 1 % to 1.25 or 1.50% so there can 
be a larger buf1er. 

Councilmember i\larks agreed that a 2% tax is what is really needed but rather than go out for a 
larger amount than other cities are proposing maybe go for the 10

;(, now and an additional amount 
later. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if stan' anticipated the need to go back out in 2 or 3 years and ask 
lor an increase in the 1 % tax. 

Mayor Thompson pointed out that the real ansvv'er to the budget problem is increased business 
and the success orthat is UnknOV\11. He said a sales tax measure is the best solution at this time 
and wanted to know how the City's sales tax rate if approved, will compare to other local cities. 

City Manager Stretch stated that other local jurisdictions are either going out for. 75% or 1 %. 

7 



.JUNE 10,201-1 MINUTES 
Page 8 

Councilmember Wilson said he would support a 1 % sales tax measure but no greater than 1%: 
Councilmember Marks agreed and said she \\as not in favor of implementation of a utility users 
tax. 

Motion was made by Marks/Johnson to authorize the City Manager to prepare a general 1 % sales 
tax revenue measure for the November 4. 2014 ballot and bring it back to the City Council ttlr 
approval. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss. the meeting adjourned at 9:30 p.m. to the June 17. 
2014 regular meeting. 

.lack Thompson. Mayor 

Attest: 

Karen Dunham. City Clerk 

8 



Cin Of 

~ DELL 

For Meeting of: .July 1,2014 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FRO~l: ~aren Dunham. City Clerk 

THROllGH: Jim Stretch. City i\fanager 

DATE: July l. 20]4 

Sl iBJECT: November 4.20] -I General Election 

RECO:\[\IENDA TlO:"J 

Appro\C Resolution l'\o. ] 23] -20 1-1 requcsting the County of I lumboldt Elections 
Department to include Rio Dell in the No\cmber 201-1 General Election 

Bl'DGETARY I:\lI'ACT 

Estimated Flcction Costs are S l.200 - S l.500 

B.·\CKGROl:ND AND IHSCliSSION 

Pcr the Elections Code. the City may request election sen'ices from the Coumy Clerk. 
This is the appropriate time to request the County administer the l\m'ember election jiJI' 

the threc (3) City Council seats up for election \\ hich are those of Councilmembers 
Johnson. i\'!arks and \\'oodall. 

The cost of the Candidate Statements. should they choose to submit them \\ill be bornc 
by the candidates. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Rcsolutil)!l No. 123 1-201-1 
20]4 Election Calendar 

9 



RESOU 'TIO!\ !\O, IDl-20 l-l 

A RESOI.l'TION OF TilE CITY COUNCIL OF TIlF 
CllY OF RIO DELL REQl rESTING TllE COl 'NTY 

OF In ri\lBOLDT ELECTIO!\S DEP,\RHIENl 
TO INCLUDE RIO DELL IN TilE 201-l 

Gl!\ERAL ELECTION 

WIIFREAS, a g~n~ral election is set for th~ City of Rio Dell on NO\cmh~r .f. 
201-l:and 

\\'1 IEREAS. th~ FI~ctions Cod~ of th~ Stat~ of Calil(lnlia rrO\id~s that the local 
go\~rnil1g body may r~qu~st election s~nic~s ofth~ Count) Clerk concerning the 
conduct or g~neral elections: and 

\\"1 IERE:\S. th~ Cit) Council of the City of Rio Del I is desirous of hrl\ ing the 
C Dunty of I Iumboldl Elections Department prO\ ide certain sen ices lell' the conduct II r the 
g~l1~ral de~tion to illc111d~ the Rio Dell City Coullcil ~kction to b~ held on NtH ~l11b~r-l. 
201-1. 

NOW. Tll!,RFHlRL Bl IT RESOL\'!D BY THI CITY COUNCil. OF TIll 
CITY OF RIO DELL C\UFORNL\ thalthe Cit~ of Rio Dell hCTchy r~qllests the 
! IUl11boldt Count) Board or Sup~nisors to allth<lfi/~ the Coullty of! lumbolJt Flections 
Department to condllet the gCl1~ral eleetioll to include the Cit} Council election Illl' th~ 
Cit) of Rio Dell on Nl)\(:mbcr -1. 201-1. including the publishing of all election materials. 
the mailing of sample baliots. the hiring of ~kctilln omeers. the actual conduct of the 
election. and the counting of ballots \\ ith th~ tally turned into the City ('\crk of the ('it) of 
Ri,) Deiliell' rmn()llnC~m~nt of the results of the ~kcti()ll, 

1'.\SSID ,\NI) :\DOPlED this 1st day "Llul). 201-1 by the /()llo"ing \ote: 

,\ YES: 
NOES: 
,\BSTAIN: 
.\BSFNT: 

Resolution No, 1231-2014 Election Consolidation July 1, 2014 

10 



Jack Thompson. Mayor 

ATTEST: 

L Karen Dunham. City Clerk J(ll' the City of Rio Dell. State ofCalif(Jrnia. hereby certify 
the ahcwe and foregoing to be a full. true and correct copy of Resolution 1\0.1231-101-+ 
adopted by the City Council of the City or Rio Dell on July 1.101-+. 

Karen Dunham. City Clerk 

Resolution No. 1231-2014 Election Consolidation july 1, 2014 

11 



675 Wildwood Avellue 
Rio Deli, ell 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

CITY OF RIO DELL 

CiT; 01 

~ DELL 

GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION CALENDAR 
NOVEMBER 4, 2014 

I)ATE 

J 1I1~ 1-1 ;\ugllst S. 2() 14 

! August 13. 201-1 

October (, October 28. 2014 

October 20. 2()I-l 

. Nm ember 4. 2014 

December 2. 2014 

...........•...........•• ~.-... 

EYE1\T 

iii ominlltion/filing Period 

'\omination papers \\ill be a\ailable in the Office of the 
Cil~ Clerk beginning July 14. :)014. l\omination papers 
mllst be tiled \\ ith the City Ckrk by ,\ugust 8. 2014 at 
5:0(J 

Extended filing Period 

If an incumbent eligible !(JI' re-declion does not tile !(ll' 

re-election prior to 5:()O p.m. Oil August 8. 201-1 the filing 
period will be eXknded to Augu,t U. 201-1 at 5:0() p.m. 
This extension is onl) mailable to camlidmes other than 
incumbents. 

Between these dates. \okrs llla~ requcst \'ote by \lail 
Ballots li'om the COUllty of IlumbolJt Registrar of Vokrs 

Lasl Day to Rcgister 10 Votc 

\. oler registration mllst be postmarked by October 22. 2012 
to \ok in the '\m ember 6. 2012 (jeneral Flection 

Polis at 7:()O a.m. and dfbe at H:OO I':m. 

Certification of Votes 

Last day tll!' County Elections Department to certify 
election results to 

12 



675 Wildwood Avellue 
Rio Dell, Co 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
July I, 2014 

TO: Mayor and I\lel11bers of the City Council 

FRO;"!: Jim Stretch. City I\lanagcr 

DATE: July 1.2014 

SUBJECT: Operations and Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 

CITY Of 

~ DELL 

Includes General Fund Reimbursement for Rio Dell Fire Dept. 8: County Library 

IT IS RECO:\I:\IEJliDA TIO:\' 
Approve Resollilion 1225-201-1 adnpting the City of Rio Dell 201-1-2015 Fiscal Year Operating 
and Capital Budgct. 

BlJDGETARYIMPACT 
Approval of Resolution 1225-201-1 will adopt the staffing plan fundcd in the budget. appropriate 
projected rc\enucs totaling 53,124,369. cxpcnditurcs in the amount of S3.297,915. and an 
appmprialion to and fmm reSCf\>es in thc amount of S -$173,546 as follows: 

(Detail Attached) 

13 



EXPEN· Transfers RESERVE 

FUND REVENUE DITURES Transfers In Out ALLOCATION 

• 000 General Fund 775,838 891,443 28,467 (115,605) , 
008 Building Fund 50,075 81,042 28,467 (30,967) 
• Parks Fund 7,300 (7,300) 015 
• 020 Gas Tax Fund 90,010 205,081 7,702 (115,071) , 
024 TOA Fund 108,609 116,311 7,702 (7,702) 
• Solid Waste Fund 8,500 9,500 (1,000) 027 
• 037 CDBG RRLF Fund 
• 039 CDBG Fund 
• 040 SLESF Fund 100,000 108,334 (8,334) 
• 043 Vehicle Abatement Fund 1,250 (1,250) 
• Realignment Grant Fund 9,601 (9,601) 046 
• Sewer Operations Fund 628,797 050 597,802 70,612 30,995 
• Sewer Capita! Fund 052 255,571 315,281 255,571 
• 053 Sewer Assmt District Fund 28,785 27,500 1,285 
• 054 Sewer Debt Service Fund 325,900 325,880 244,669 20 
• 060 Water Operations Fund 534,560 717,971 166,984 (183,411) , 
061 Water Debt Service Fund 140,724 136,000 166,984 4,724 , 

Water Capital Fund 062 77,000 45,000 32,000 
• Recycling Fund 074 15,033 ( 15,033) 
• 093 Spay & Neuter Fund 2,868 (2,868) 

TOTAL FY 2014·2015 3,124,369 3,297,915 518,434 518,434 (173,546) 

BACKGROUj\;D Aj\;1) DISCllSSIO;\; 

Cily Staff have been working on the budget process since [l,larch. Each Cily Department has 
developed a budget proposal that has been recommended bl the City Manager and reviewed by 
the City Council. Work session on the 2()1~-15 budget occurred on May 9 and June 10, 2()1~. 

A few changes have "cen made to the budget since the June I (), 20 I ~ meeting, as found in 
attachment "r\" The net change to budget is an increase of appropriations in the amount of 
5225.095 (due to contingencies. water and wastewater charges. and other items as shown in 
Attachment A). 

r\ deviution from the City Council minimum re,erve policy of IS';; has neen noted for several 
funds in Resolution 1225·201~. 

At this time all recommendations. suggestions, and corrections noted have been implemented 
into the proposed draft. and the staff recommendation is for the City Council to approve 
Resolution 1225-2()1~ ad'lpting the 201~-2()15 Fiscal Year Operating and Capital Budget. 

14 



RESOLUTION NO. 1225-2014 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CrTY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 
ADOPTING THE OPERATING & CAPrT AL BUDGET 

FOR THE FISCAL-YEAR 2014-2015 

WHEREAS. the City i, required to adopt an annual operation, budget pur,uant to City of Rio Dell 
Re,olution 966-2007; and 

WHEREAS. the propo,ed budget for the Fiscal-year beginning Jul) l. 2014 and ending June 30, 2015, 
as presented by the Finance Department ha, been reviewed and revi,ed by the City Manager, and the City 
Council; 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the use of General Fund revenues to reimburse the Rio 
D"'I Volunteer Fire Department and the County Library located within the City for water and sewage 
service,. pur,uant to Section 7 beillW. is done for a proper and valid public purpose: and 

l'\OW THEREFORE BE rT RESOLVED, that the City of Rio Dell City Couocil does hereby adopt the 
City of Rio Dell 201-1-2015 Operating & Capital Budget, including revenues totaling $3,124,169 and 
expenditures in the amount of S3,297,915. and appropriation of reserves in the amount of 

-S 173,546 as follows: 
EXPEN- Transfers RESERVE 

FUND REVENUE DITURES Transfers In Out ALLOCATION 

DOO General Fund 775,838 891,443 28,467 (115,605) 

'008 Building Fund 50,075 81,042 28,467 (30,967) , 
Parks Fund 7,300 (7,300) 015 , 

020 Gas Tax Fund 90,OlD 205,081 7,702 (115,071) 

'024 TDA Fund 108,609 116,311 7,702 (7,702) , 
Solid Waste Fund 027 8,500 9,500 (1,000) , 

037 CDBG RRLF Fu nd , 
039 CDBG Fund , 
040 SLESF Fund 100,000 108,334 (8,334) , 

Vehicle Abatement Fund 043 1,250 (1,250) 
'046 Realignment Grant Fund 9,601 (9,601) , 
050 Sewer Operations Fund 628,797 597,802 70,612 30,995 , 

Sewer Capital Fund 052 255,571 315,281 255,571 , 
053 Sewer Assmt District Fund 28,785 27,500 1,285 , 
054 Sewer Debt Service Fund 325,900 325,880 244,669 20 
'060 Water Operations Fund 534,560 717,971 166,984 (183,411) , 
061 Water Debt Service Fund 140,724 136,000 166,984 4,724 , 
062 Water Capital Fund 77,000 45,000 32,000 
'074 Recycling Fund 15,033 (15,033) 
• 093 Spay & Neuter Fund 2,868 (2,868) 

TOTAL FY 2014-2015 3,124,369 3,297,915 518,434 518,434 (173,546) 

15 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the stafting is adopted and funded in the 201-1-2015 Operations 
Budget '" follows: 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Job Title FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE 
ACCOUNT ANT 1111 1 1 I 
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 1 
CHIEF OF POLICE 1 1 1 1 1 
CITY CLERK 1 1 1 1 1 
CITY MANAGER (PUBLIC WORKS 
DIRECTOR 1 I 0.75 0.75 .80 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DIRECTOR 1 I 1 1 
FINANCE DIRECTOR 1 1 1 I 1 
FISCAL ASSISTANT lIII 2 2 1 I 1 
POLICE CORPORAL 1 
POLICE OFFICER 5 3 3 3 3 
POLlCE RECORDS TECHNICIA]\; I 
POLlCE SERGEANT 1 ] I 1 1 
PUBLIC WORKS LEAD:\lAl\; I 1 
PW ADMINISTRATIVE TECHNICIAN 1 I 
SENIOR FISCAL ASSISTANT I 1 I I 
UTILITY WORKER IIll 3 4 3 3 3 
WATER/WASTEWATER PLANT 
OPERATOR I I I 
W ASTEW A TER SUPERINTENDENT 1 I I 1 I 
WATER & ROADWAYS 
SUPERINTENDENT I I 1 I 1 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 1 

TOTAL 24 20 17.75 17.75 16.80 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED. as follc)\\s: 

Section I. 
It is the intention of the City Council in apprming and adopting an annual olluget to prO\ide 
financial gUIdance for routint: operation" of City hLl"i!l':<;'~ and for the purpo<.;c of pnn iUlng 
information to th~ genera! puillie. 

Section 2. 
The adopted annual City budget w ill he impicmented and maintained in accordance" ith Cit} 
Budget PoliC} '" outlined in Resolution 966·20()7. 

16 



Section 3. 
Adoption of the annual budget docs not expressly approve expenditures of funds in excess of 
purchasing authority as outlined by City Resolution. Ordinance. State, or Federalla". 

Section 4. 
Adoption of the 2014-2015 Budget includes a new fund for the Buildmg Program. As such, it is 
not projected to have the required minimum Reserve balance as set fanh in City policy. Like
wise. there is no operational reason to require the TDA Fund (024) and Solid Waste Fund (027) to 
carry a Reserve balance. Therefore, an exception to the City's Minimum Fund Balance Policy 
established by Resolution No. 1154-2012 is hereby granted to Funds OOS, 014 and 027. 

Section 5. 
Adoption of the 2014-15 Sewer Program includes an inter-fund transfer of 5244,669 from the 
Sewer Debt Service Fund (054) to the Sewer Operations Fund (QSO) in the amount of 570,612, 
and to the Sewer Capital Fund (052) in the amount of 5315.281. 

Section 6, 

Adoption of the 2014-15 Water Program includes an inter-fund transfer of 5166,984 from the 
Water Debt Sen ice Fund (()061 ) to the Water Operations Fund (()60) in the amount of S 166,984. 

Section 7. 

On the advice of the City Attorney concerning [h~ implications of a Yolo County Superior Court 
decision involving the City or Davis. Ca. and Proposition 218, the Rio Dell City Council 
implemented ink~r~ anu intra-govcrnmental agency charges for City \vater and sewer sen'ices 
without exception at the appl"lcable metered rak available at-large, approving both the 
expenditure and r~venue adjustments requir~d in th~ 2014-15 Budg~t. The Council agreed to 
reimburse the County Library and the Rio Dell Volunteer Fire Department in 201--1-15 for such 
charges from the City Genera! Fund. based on the Council's finding that the reimbuf"iCmcnts to 
the public agencies are for a puhlic purpose, 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City of" Rio Dell on this I" day of July 2014, by th~ following roll 
call sote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Ahstain: 
Absent: 

Jack Thompson. i\layor 

ATTEST: 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

17 



2014-15 FINAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

Attachment A 

General Fund Rio Dell Fire Dept. and County Library Reimbursement 

1. Add $16,000 expenditure to City Manager budget (02-5115) for Matson/Vallerga 

agreements for city hall improvements and planning. 

2. 

Add $3,000 of revenue for police department training reimbursement from POST 

3. Add $18,920 expenditure to Capital budget (14-5115) for school property 

acquisition and expenses, and Davis St. survey at Edwards Drive and intersection 

with Eel River -- Charged to general fund ($9,845), streets ($1,775) and ($7,300) 

from Park & Rec. Reserve. 

4. Add $15,000 expenditure to Capital Project budget (14-5115) for boundary, 

streets, and drainage ditch survey by Kelly O'Hern in the area of the Eel River 

Industrial Park/Northwestern Ave. 

5. Remove ($3,240) from City Council budget (12-5115) for Access Humboldt 

contract (already in City Manager budget) 

6. Add $10,000 expenditure to Capital Project budget under the Water fund for 

repairs to water line on Old Ranch Road. 

7. Add $10,000 revenue to Water fund for reimbursement from Old Ranch Road 

customers for water line replacement. 

8. Reduce Finance Department budget expenditures by ($65,199) for staff reduction 

of Accountant I position ($23,473 General Fund, $20,863 Water Fund, $20,863 

Sewer Fund). 

18 



9. 

2014-15 FINAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

Attachment A 

General Fund Rio Dell Fire Dept. and County Library Reimbursement 

FINANCE ACCOUNT AMOUNT 

5000 Full Time Salaries (43,153) 

5030 Overtime Salaries (200) 

5035 Benefit - ICMA City 451 (4,315) 

5040 Benefit - Health Insurance (11,544) 

5042 Benefit - Life Insurance (96) 

5044 Benefit - Dental/Vision (1,720) 

5045 Worker Compo Insurance (438) 

5050 FICA/MEDI (3,301) 

5055 Unemployment Ins. (432) 

(65,199) 

Add $3,881 to Streets budget for water (Account 5152) to City streets areas 

STREETS ACCOUNT AMOUNT 

Rio Dell Gateway-N. Meter 5152 Water 485 

Middle Meter Mobile Park 5152 Water 427 

S, Meter 750 Wildwood 5152 Water 2,476 

Island across from P.O. 5152 Water 493 

3,881 

19 



2014-15 FINAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

Attachment A 

General Fund Rio Dell Fire Dept. and County Library Reimbursement 

10. Add $1,729 to Buildings and Grounds budget for water to City areas 

11. 

12. 

BUILDINGS & GROUNDS ACCOUNT AMOUNT 

Triangle Park 5152 Water 698 

City Parking Lot 5152 Water 324 

Davis Street Park 5152 Water 324 

Memorial Park 5152 Water 383 

1,729 

Add a total of $323 to the following expenditure accounts to department budgets 

for Rio Dell City Hall water charges (based on FTEs) 

DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT AMOUNT 

Building & Planning 5152 Water 49 

City Manager 5152 Water 39 

Finance 5152 Water 88 

Police Department 5152 Water 147 

323 

Add a total of $603 to the following expenditure accounts to department budgets 

for Rio Dell City Hall Wastewater charges (based on FTEs) 

DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT AMOUNT 

Building & Planning 5153 Sewer 91 

City Manager 5153 Sewer 73 

Finance 5153 Sewer 165 

Police Department 5153 Sewer 274 

603 

20 



13. 

14. 

2014-15 FINAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

Attachment A 

General Fund Rio Dell Fire Dept. and County Library Reimbursement 

Increase water operations revenue by a total of $7,315 

REVENUE - WATER ACCOUNT AMOUNT 

Rio Dell Library 4610 Water - Service 398 

Rio Dell Gateway-N. Meter 4610 Water - Service 485 

Triangle Park 4610 Water - Service 698 

Davis Street Park 4610 Water - Service 324 

Middle Meter Mobile Park 4610 Water - Service 427 

City Parking lot 4610 Water - Service 324 

S. Meter 750 Wildwood 4610 Water - Service 2476 

Island across from P.O. 4610 Water - Service 493 

City Council - RD Fire Dept. 4610 Water - Service 984 

Memorial Park 4610 Water - Service 383 

Rio Dell City Hall 

Building & Planning 4610 Water - Service 49 

City Manager 4610 Water - Service 39 

Finance 4610 Water - Service 88 

Police Department 4610 Water - Service 147 

7,315 

Increase Wastewater Revenue by a total of $3,172 

REVENUE - WASTEWATER ACCOUNT AMOUNT 

City Council- Rio Dell Library 4510 Sewer - Service 702 

Davis Street Park 4510 Sewer - Service 564 

City Council - RD Fire Dept. 4510 Sewer - Service 1,303 

Rio Dell City Hall 

Building & Planning 4510 Sewer - Service 91 

City Manager 4510 Sewer - Service 73 

Finance 4510 Sewer - Service 16S 

Police Department 4510 Sewer - Service 274 

3,172 

21 



2014-15 FINAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

Attachment A 

Genera I Fund Rio Dell Fire Dept. and County Library Reimbursement 

15. Increase Fund budgets for cost contingencies for a total of $130,108 

FUND ACCOUNT AMOUNT 

00 General Fund 42,400 

20 Gas Tas Fund 9,765 

50 Sewer Operations 26,861 

60 Water Operations 34,181 

74 Recycling 15,033 

93 Spay & Neuter 1,868 

130,108 

16. Building & Planning position moved to 4/5 time for a total savings of $18,215 

(General Fund $12,737, Building Fund $5,478) 

17. Increase Wastewater Operations revenue (Account 4510) $43,500, and increase 

the expenditure in the Water Operations budget for Sewer charges (Account 

5153) 

18. Increase Water Operations revenue (Account 4610) $33,600, and increase the 

expenditure in the Wastewater Operations for water charges (Account 5152) 

22 



Estimated 
Beginning 

Fund 

Fund Total City 
Balance . .tIm LESS Estimated Minimum 

Balance Projected Manager Finance 
1ge in 2014"2015 Tramjeni TramJeH Ending Fund 15% 

2014~201S Revenue Dept. Dept 
erve Before {" Ollt Balance 2014 Q"q.rve 

.• once Transfers 2015 Balance 
000 General Fund 1,138,228 775,838 92,543 65,529 5,605j 
008 Building Fund 2,500 50,075 

1,022,623 2X,.I67 994,156 000 133,716 

015 Parks Fund 7,611 
0,967) (28,467) 28-';67 008 12,156 

020 Gas Tax Fund 226,045 90,010 7,211 4,801 
7,300) 311 311 015 

024 TDA Fund 108,609 7,281 4,801 
5,071) 110,974 7.701 103,272 020 30,762 

027 Solid Waste Fund 37,376 8,500 
7,702) (7,702) 7,702 024 17,447 

037 COBG RRlF Fund 18,598 
1,000) 36,376 36,376 027 1,425 

039 COBG Fund 224,809 
18,598 18,598 037 

040 5lE5F Fund 8,334 100,000 
224,809 224,809 039 

043 Vehicle Abatement Fund 2,755 
8,334) 0 0 040 

046 Realignment Grant Fund 20,000 
1,250) 1,505 1,505 043 

050 Sewer Operations Fund 339,617 628,797 45,093 113,907 
9,601) 10,399 10,399 046 

052 Sewer Capital Fund 193,904 255,571 
0,995 370,612 70,(;/2 300,000 050 89;670 

053 Sewer Assmt District Fum 7,654 28,785 
5,S71 449,475 31.'1,281 764,756 052 

054 Sewer Debt Service Fund 570,649 325,900 
1,285 8,939 8,939 053 4,125 

060 Water Operations Fund 114,479 534,560 173,597 113,129 
20 570,669 2·N,669 326,000 054 48,882 

061 Water Debt Service Fund 230,260 140,724 
3,411) (68,932) /6698.f 98,052 060 107,696 

062 WDter Capital Fund 78,500 77,000 
4,724 234,984 166,984- 68,000 061 20,400 

074 Recycling fund 15,033 
2,000 110,500 110,500 062 6,750 

093 Spay & Neuter Fund 2,868 
5,033) 074 

TOTAL FY 2014-2015 3,239,220 3,124,369 325,725 302,167 
2,,868) 093 430 
3,546) 3,065,674 518,434 518,434 3,065,674 473.460 

23 





675 Wildwood Avenue 
Ria Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 1,2014 

TO: Mayor and I\'lcmhers of the City Council 

THROl'GH: Jim S~, City Manager 
<~"~ ____ I ~v_ 

FROy!: Brooke Woodcox, Finance DirectoJ~~lU 

DATE: July L 2012 

SL'BJECT: Billahle Rates 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

OTY Of 

~~ DELL 

Approve Resolution I 23()-20 1.+ Appro\'ing the Billahle Rate for stalT time for the fiscal year 
201.+-2015 and Rescind Resolution 1207-2013, 

BACKGROUND A;o.;D DISCUSSIO;o.; 
From time to time the City is involved in variol" activities and projects that require cost recovery 
for staff time spent on hehalf of a customeL In these circumstances the City prepares an invoice 
detailing all direct and indirect costs incurred hy the City, Orten times the primary charge is for 
staff time. which requires the City to develop a rate that includes the cost of the employee's 
salary. benefits. supplies. and O\erhead which in total is what we call the "billable rate". 

A billable rate for each employee for the fiscal year of 201.+-2015 has been de\e!rlped that 
utilizes the following formula: 

Hourly Rate + City Benefit Cost + Indirect Expenses = Billable Rate. 

The result of the formula i,s a billable rate that allows the City to recover all costs associated with 
staff time. This formula has heen reviewed and approved by City Management. 

Depending on employee classification the hourly rate is set hy various employee contract 
agreements and wage rates hased on classification and step. The City benefit cost percentage is 
determined ,\:i follows: 

Total Benefits -7 (Total Salary + Total Bendits) = City Benefit Cost percentage 

24 



Indirect expenses were determined by taking the total supplies and operating expenses and 
dividing by towl labor hours: 

Total Supplies & Operating Expenditures -;- Towl Department Labor hours 

Attachment: Billable Rates 

25 



TITLE 

City Clerk 

City Manager 

Finance Director 

Fiscal Assistant II 

Senior Fiscal Assistant 

Chief of Police 

Police Sergeant 

Police Officer 

Police Officer 

Police Officer 

Utility Worker I 

Utility Worker I 

Utility Worker II 

Utility Worker II 

Wastewater Superintendent 

Water Superintendent 

Community Development Director 

2014/2015 
Billable Burdened Rates 

Resolution Ko. 1230-2014 

Adopted July 1,2014 

HOURLY RATE BENEFITS 

28.18 52% 

51.38 41% 

32.44 42% 

16.36 33% 

18.76 35% 

40.57 49% 

25.06 45% 

20.71 41% 

22.63 45% 

23.31 47% 

13.77 39% 

14.18 43% 

15.61 38% 

15.15 43% 

29.40 52% 

26.13 35% 

37.43 44% 

INDIRECT 
EXPENSE PER 
LABOR HOUR HOURLY RATE 

16.67 59 

22.81 95 

16.67 63 

16.67 38 

16.67 42 

9.05 69 

9.05 45 

9.05 38 

9.05 42 

9.05 43 

42.19 61 

42.19 62 

42.19 64 

42.19 64 

42.19 87 

42.19 77 

9.24 63 

26 



RESOLUTI01'< 1'<0. 1230-20l.J 
CITY OF RIO DELL 

APPROVING THE BILLABLE RA. TE FOR STAFF TIME 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 

AND RESCl1'<DI1'<G RESOLUTION 1207-2013 

WHEREAS. the California Constitution Article XI. 7 grams Cities the authority to 

enforce all local ordinances and regulations not in conflict with general laws: and 

WHEREAS, the City has further authority to charge regulatory fees to cover the cost of 
regulatory programs. and user fees to limited to the cost of providing service. and 

WHEREAS, the City from time to time must recover the cost of labor and operating 
expenses: and 

1'<OW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED. that the City of Rio Dell City Council does 
hereby adopt the following billable rates for staff time to ensure cost recovery on variolls 
projects as follows: 

INDIRECT 
HOURLY EXPENSE PER HOURLY 

TITLE RATE BENEFITS LABOR HOUR RATE 

City Clerk 28.18 52% 16.67 59 

City Manager 51.38 41% 22.81 95 

Finance Director 32.44 42% 16.67 63 

Fiscal Assistant II 16.36 33% 16.67 38 

Senior Fiscal Assistant 18.76 35% 16.67 42 

Chief of Police 40.57 49% 9.05 69 

Police Sergeant 25.06 45% 9.05 45 

Police Officer 20.71 41% 9.05 38 

Police Officer 22.63 45% 9.05 42 

Police Officer 23.31 47% 9.05 43 

Utility Worker I 13.77 39% 42.19 61 

Utility Worker I 14.18 43% 42.19 62 

Utility Worker II 15.61 38% 42.19 64 

Utility Worker II 15.15 43% 42.19 64 

Wastewater Superintendent 29.40 52% 42.19 87 

Water Superintendent 26.13 35% 42.19 77 

Community Development Director 37.43 44% 9.24 63 

27 



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City of Rio Dell on this r' day of July, 1014. 

Ayes: 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

ATTEST: 

Karen Dunham. City Clerk 

28 



675 Wildwood 
Dell, CA 95562 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Tuesday July 1,2014 

TO: I\layor and Members of the City Council 

THROUGH: Jim Slret~y I\lanager 

FROI\l: BrooKe Woodcrn. Finance Director 

DATE: July l. 201-1 

em Of 

Sl'BJECT: Resolution 1229-201-1 Confirmation of the FY 201-1-2015 Tax Assessment for 
financing of the 19711 Sewer Asse,sment Bonds 

RECOI\[\IENDATIOl\' 
Approve Rc,olution 1229-201-1 Confirmation of the FY 201-1-2015 Tax Assc,slllent for 
financing of the 19n Se\\cr A ssessmenl Bomb. 

IHfDGETARY BIPACT 
Nonc. 

BACKGROliND Al'ID DIS(TSSlOl\' 
Each year the Cit} submits th.: sewer assessment charges hy parcel to the Counly Audihlr
Controller's office for inclusion on the current year property tax bill. Prior to submission. a 
resolution of the gll\erning body is reyuircd for authorilalion for the levying of current year 
taxes/assessments. The 1978 Sewer Assessment Bonds arc scheduled for fu II repay ment in fiscal 
year 20J7-20IS. 

The City's Fiscal Year 201-1-2015 assessment to he levied lowls 528.8111.22. 

Attachment: Sewer Assessment hy Parcel 

29 



RESOLUTIO:S- NO. 1229·2014 
A RESOLUTIO:S- OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 
CO:S-FIRMA TIO:S- OF FISCAL YEAR 2014·2015 TAX ASSESSMENT 

1978 SEWER ASSESMENT BO:S-DS 

WHEREAS. the City of Rio Dell City Council levied a 40 year tax assessment to fund 
the sewer infrastructure improvement project of 1978; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED. that the City of Rio Dell City Council does 
hereby authorize the Humboldt County Auditor Controllers Office to place this 
assessment in the amount of 528.818.22. on the rolls effective July I. 2014. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED hy the City of Rio Dell on this I" day of July. 2014. 

Ayes; 
Noes; 
Abstain; 
Absent: 

ATTEST: 

Thompson. lohnson and Wilson 
None 
None 
M arks and Woodall 

Karen Dunham. City Clerk 

Prepared by: Brooke Woodcox. Finance Director 

lack Thompson. Mayor 

Resolution 1\0. 1229·2014 Sewer Tax Assessment Fiscal Year 2014·2015 
Page I of I 

30 



052053026000 6583 
052011007000 32.91 
052051007000 32.91 
052051008000 65.83 
052051010000 3291 
052051018000 32.91 
052051019000 3291 
052051020000 65.83 
052051021000 3291 
052052002000 32.91 
052052003000 32.91 
052053002000 32.91 
052053006000 32.91 
052053007000 32.91 
052053010000 6583 
052053011000 32.91 
052053013000 6583 
052053014000 3291 
052053015000 32.91 
052053016000 65.83 
052053019000 32.91 
052053020000 98.73 
052053023000 65.83 
052054002000 32.91 
052054005000 65.83 
052054008000 32.91 
052054009000 32.91 
052054010000 3291 
052054011000 32.91 
052054013000 131.65 
052054018000 32.91 
052054019000 65.83 
052054020000 32.91 
052061008000 3291 
052061009000 3291 
052061010000 32.91 
052061021000 65.83 
052061033000 32.91 
052061047000 32.91 
052061048000 3291 
052061049000 32.91 
052061050000 32.91 
052061056000 6583 
052071002000 3291 
052071003000 32.91 
052071006000 32.91 
052071007000 3291 
052071008000 3291 
052071009000 32.91 
052071010000 32.91 
052071011000 32.91 
052072001000 3291 
052072005000 32.91 
052072019000 3291 
052072020000 3291 
052072026000 3291 
052072027000 32.91 
052072031000 32.91 
052072033000 3291 

31 



052072035000 32.91 
052072041000 32.91 
052072043000 32.91 
052081003000 32.91 
052081007000 3291 
052081008000 32.91 
052081011000 32.91 
052081016000 32.91 
052081020000 32.91 
052081021000 32.91 
052081025000 32.91 
052081029000 32.91 
052081032000 3291 
052081035000 98.73 
052081037000 32.91 
052081038000 65.83 
052081043000 32.91 
052082001000 3291 
052082002000 65.83 
052082004000 32.91 
052082010000 32.91 
052082013000 65.83 
052091012000 98.73 
052091014000 32.91 
052091015000 3291 
052092007000 32.91 
052101005000 32.91 
052101006000 65.83 
052101007000 32.91 
052102004000 20.94 
052102006000 98.73 
052111002000 32.91 
052111003000 32.91 
052111004000 32.91 
052111005000 32.91 
052111011000 164.55 
052111014000 32.91 
052112005000 65.83 
052112006000 32.91 
052122001000 3291 
052122002000 32.91 
052122004000 32.91 
052122008000 32.91 
052122012000 32.91 
052122015000 32.91 
052122016000 3291 
052122017000 3291 
052122018000 32.91 
052122020000 32.91 
052122021000 32.91 
052122023000 32.91 
052131004000 32.91 
052131005000 32.91 
052131006000 32.91 
052131007000 32.91 
052131010000 32.91 
052131011000 32.91 
052131014000 32.91 
052141002000 3291 

32 



052141003000 32.91 
052141005000 32.91 
052141010000 32.91 
052152006000 32.91 
052152007000 32.91 
052152008000 32.91 
052152012000 32.91 
052152013000 3291 
052152014000 32.91 
052152015000 32.91 
052152016000 3291 
052152017000 3291 
052152018000 32.91 
052152019000 32.91 
052152021000 11.96 
052152022000 32.91 
052152023000 32.91 
052152024000 3291 
052152038000 65.83 
052152060000 32.91 
052153001000 32.91 
052153002000 32.91 
052153003000 32.91 
052153004000 3291 
052153005000 32.91 
052162005000 3291 
052152008000 32.91 
052162009000 3291 
052162013000 3291 
052162020000 98.73 
052171004000 3291 
052171005000 32.91 
052171010000 32.91 
052171018000 3291 
052172003000 3291 
052181008000 32.91 
052201001000 65.83 
052201002000 3291 
052201003000 32.91 
052201004000 6583 
052201005000 3291 
052201010000 3291 
052201017000 32.91 
052202001000 131.65 
052202002000 3291 
052202003000 32.91 
052202004000 3291 
052202005000 32.91 
052202006000 32.91 
052202008000 32.91 
052202009000 32.91 
052202012000 3291 
052202013000 3291 
052202016000 3291 
052211004000 3291 
052211005000 32.91 
052211014000 32.91 
052211021000 98.73 
052211023000 32.91 

33 



052212006000 32.91 
052212008000 3291 
052213001000 65.83 
052213002000 32.91 
052213004000 32.91 
052213005000 32.91 
052213006000 32.91 
052213007000 32.91 
052213008000 32.91 
052222002000 65.83 
052222003000 32.91 
052222005000 32.91 
052223002000 230.38 
052223005000 6583 
052224005000 65.83 
052231002000 32.91 
052231003000 32.91 
052231006000 32.91 
052231009000 32.91 
052231011000 32.91 
052231012000 32.91 
052231014000 32.91 
052231015000 32.91 
052232003000 32.91 
052232004000 1316.51 
052232006000 32.91 
052233003000 98.73 
052233004000 65.83 
052233005000 98.73 
052233006000 65.83 
052233011000 32.91 
052233012000 32.91 
052241025000 32.91 
052241036000 32.91 
052241067000 32.91 
052241068000 32.91 
052261011000 32.91 
052261027000 32.91 
052261029000 3291 
052261030000 3291 
052261039000 32.91 
052261041000 32.91 
052261052000 32.91 
052261054000 32.91 
052281001000 32.91 
052281006000 32.91 
052281009000 3291 
052281013000 32.91 
052281016000 32.91 
052281018000 32.91 
052281019000 32.91 
052291002000 32.91 
052291005000 32.91 
052291007000 32.91 
052291012000 3291 
052291013000 32.91 
052291014000 3291 
052291015000 3291 
052291018000 32.91 

34 



052291019000 32.91 
052291020000 32.91 
052291021000 32.91 
052291022000 32.91 
052291023000 32.91 
052291024000 32.91 
052291026000 32.91 
052291028000 32.91 
052291029000 3291 
052301012000 65.83 
052301014000 65.83 
052301015000 32.91 
052301016000 32.91 
052301020000 3291 
052301021000 32.91 
052301023000 32.91 
052301026000 3291 
052301028000 32.91 
052301034000 3291 
052301038000 6583 
052301042000 3291 
052301043000 32.91 
052301044000 32.91 
052321003000 32.91 
052321007000 32.91 
052321008000 32.91 
052321009000 32.91 
052322012000 32.91 
052322013000 3291 
052322021000 32.91 
052322027000 3291 
052322033000 32.91 
052322039000 13165 
052322040000 32.91 
052322042000 32.91 
052323002000 32.91 
052323003000 3291 
053011024000 32.91 
053021008000 32.91 
053021009000 3291 
053021010000 32.91 
053021011000 32.91 
053021024000 3291 
053021030000 3291 
053021034000 3291 
053021038000 3291 
053021040000 3291 
053021042000 3291 
053021044000 3291 
053021048000 32.91 
053021049000 32.91 
053021050000 32.91 
053021053000 32.91 
053021054000 32.91 
053021058000 3291 
053021061000 3291 
053022002000 3291 
053022005000 3291 
053022011000 32.91 

35 



053022012000 32.91 
053022013000 32.91 
053022015000 32.91 
053022017000 32.91 
053022019000 32.91 
053022026000 32.91 
053022027000 3291 
053023003000 32.91 
053023005000 32.91 
053023006000 32.91 
053023007000 32.91 
053023010000 32.91 
053023017000 32.91 
053023026000 32.91 
053023029000 32.91 
053023031000 32.91 
053023032000 32.91 
053023033000 65.83 
053051010000 3291 
053051012000 32.91 
053071002000 65.83 
053071003000 32.91 
053071004000 32.91 
053071005000 3291 
053072001000 6583 
053072002000 32.91 
053072003000 32.91 
053072004000 32.91 
053072005000 32.91 
053072006000 32.91 
053072007000 32.91 
053072010000 32.91 
053073002000 32.91 
053073004000 32.91 
053073006000 32.91 
053074001000 65.83 
053074002000 6583 
053074003000 32.91 
053074005000 3291 
053075002000 65.83 
053075003000 32.91 
053075005000 32.91 
053075006000 3291 
053075007000 32.91 
053083008000 32.91 
053083009000 65.83 
053083011000 32.91 
053083017000 32.91 
053083019000 65.83 
053083021000 32.91 
053083022000 65.83 
053091001000 32.91 
053091002000 32.91 
053091004000 32.91 
053091005000 32.91 
053091006000 32.91 
053092001000 32.91 
053092004000 32.91 
053092005000 32.91 

36 



053093001000 32.91 
053093002000 32.91 
053094002000 3291 
053094003000 32.91 
053094004000 32.91 
053094005000 3291 
053094006000 32.91 
053095001000 32.91 
053095002000 3291 
053095003000 32.91 
053095004000 3291 
053095005000 32.91 
053095006000 3291 
053095007000 3291 
053095012000 32.91 
053095013000 3291 
053095014000 3291 
053095015000 32.91 
053095017000 3291 
053095019000 32.91 
053095020000 32.91 
053095021000 32.91 
053096001000 65.83 
053096003000 98.73 
053096004000 32.91 
053096005000 32.91 
053096006000 3291 
053096007000 65.83 
053101001000 32.91 
053101005000 131 65 
053101006000 32.91 
053101007000 98.73 
053101009000 3291 
053101011000 32.91 
053101012000 3291 
053101013000 3291 
053101014000 3291 
053101015000 32.91 
053101016000 3291 
053102001000 6583 
053102003000 3291 
053102005000 32.91 
053102006000 32.91 
053102007000 32.91 
053102008000 3291 
053102009000 20.94 
053102012000 3291 
053102014000 32.91 
053102015000 3291 
053102017000 3291 
053102019000 6583 
053102020000 3291 
053102021000 32.91 
053103001000 32.91 
053103002000 32.91 
053103003000 32.91 
053103004000 32.91 
053103005000 3291 
053103006000 3291 

37 



053103013000 3291 
053103021000 98.73 
053104001000 3291 
053104002000 3291 
053104004000 32.91 
053104005000 32.91 
053104007000 32.91 
053111001000 32.91 
053112001000 32.91 
053112003000 32.91 
053112004000 32.91 
053113001000 32.91 
053113002000 32.91 
053113004000 3291 
053113005000 32.91 
053114002000 32.91 
053114003000 65.83 
053114004000 32.91 
053114008000 3291 
053114010000 3291 
053115002000 32.91 
053115003000 32.91 
053115005000 65.83 
053115006000 3291 
053115007000 230.38 
053115009000 98.73 
053115010000 3291 
053115011000 32.91 
053115013000 32.91 
053115015000 32.91 
053115016000 6583 
053115017000 32.91 
053115018000 3291 
053121001000 32.91 
053121002000 32.91 
053121003000 32.91 
053121004000 32.91 
053121006000 32.91 
053121007000 32.91 
053121010000 3291 
053121012000 32.91 
053121013000 3291 
053121014000 32.91 
053121020000 65.83 
053121022000 32.91 
053121023000 32.91 
053121024000 3291 
053121025000 32.91 
053121026000 32.91 
053121030000 65.83 
053121031000 32.91 
053121032000 32.91 
053121033000 3291 
053121034000 32.91 
053121037000 3291 
053121039000 32.91 
053122001000 3291 
053122002000 32.91 
053122003000 32.91 

38 



053122004000 32.91 
053122005000 3291 
053122006000 32.91 
053122008000 3291 
053122009000 32.91 
053122010000 32.91 
053122012000 3291 
053122013000 32.91 
053122014000 32.91 
053122016000 3291 
053122017000 32.91 
053122019000 32.91 
053122020000 32.91 
053122023000 32.91 
053131004000 3291 
053131005000 3291 
053131007000 3291 
053131008000 3291 
053131009000 3291 
053131010000 6583 
053131011000 32.91 
053131013000 6583 
053132005000 32.91 
053132006000 65.83 
053132007000 3291 
053132009000 3291 
053132010000 32.91 
053133001000 3291 
053133002000 32.91 
053133003000 131.65 
053133005000 32.91 
053133006000 6583 
053133007000 3291 
053133011000 3291 
053133012000 3291 
053141001000 6583 
053141008000 3291 
053141013000 3291 
053141015000 16455 
053141020000 98.73 
053141022000 13165 
053141023000 32.91 
053141024000 6583 
053141025000 6583 
053141026000 3291 
053141030000 23038 
053141033000 32.91 
053141034000 32.81 
053141035000 6583 
053141036000 32.91 
053141038000 3291 
053141041000 6583 
053141042000 3291 
053141043000 3291 
053141044000 3291 
053141045000 32.91 
053141047000 3291 
053151002000 9873 
053151006000 65.83 

39 



053151008000 
053151010000 
053151011000 
053151018000 
053151019000 
053151020000 
053151021000 
053152002000 
053152005000 
053152006000 
053152009000 
053152011000 
053152012000 
053152014000 
053153001000 
053153003000 
053153004000 
053153006000 
053153008000 
053153009000 
053154002000 
053154004000 
053154008000 
053155003000 
053155004000 
053155005000 
053155008000 
053155010000 
053156003000 
053161001000 
053161003000 
053161004000 
053161006000 
053161007000 
053161009000 
053161010000 
053161013000 
053161014000 
053161015000 
053161021000 
053161022000 
053161025000 
053162001000 
053162003000 
053162005000 
053162007000 
053162012000 
053162014000 
053162017000 
053162018000 
053162021000 
053163002000 
053163005000 
053163006000 
053163007000 
053163008000 
053164001000 
053164002000 
053164003000 

32.91 
65.83 
65.83 
32.91 
32.91 
32.91 
65.83 
65.83 
32.91 
32.91 
32.91 
32.91 
32.91 
32.91 
32.91 
65.83 
32.91 
32.91 

131.65 
32.91 
32.91 
3291 
32.91 
98.73 
32.91 
3291 
32.91 
9873 
32.91 
3291 
65.83 
32.91 
3291 
32.91 
65.83 
32.91 

36204 
98.73 
65.83 
65.83 
32.91 
98.73 
32.91 
32.91 
32.91 
3291 
32.91 
32.91 
32.91 
32.91 
32.91 
98.73 
32.91 
32.91 
65.83 
3291 
32.91 
32.91 
32.91 

40 



053165002000 32.91 
053165003000 32.91 
053171004000 32.91 
053171005000 32.91 
053172001000 32.91 
053172002000 32.91 
053172007000 32.91 
053172009000 32.91 
053172015000 6583 
053172016000 65.83 
053172017000 32.91 
053173001000 98.73 
053173002000 32.91 
053173003000 3291 
053173004000 13165 
053173005000 32.91 
053173006000 32.91 
053173007000 32.91 
053174002000 164.55 
053175001000 65.83 
053175004000 32.91 
05317 5006000 3291 
053191020000 65.83 
053191021000 3291 
053212020000 32.91 
053212024000 32.91 
053115019000 32.91 
053115021000 32.91 
053051014000 32.91 

052054030000 3291 
052082018000 32.91 
052223009000 9873 
052241086000 65.83 
052241088000 3281 
052241096000 6583 
052301045000 3291 
053011031000 3291 
053021065000 32.91 
053023038000 65.83 
053096008000 131.65 
053104010000 32.91 
053141050000 16455 
053141052000 6583 
053151022000 16455 
053151027000 6583 
053151030000 9873 
053151031000 6583 
053152017000 13165 
053163012000 6583 

28.81822 

41 



Rio Dell City holl 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcity.co/ll 

July I, 2014 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FRO\!: Jim.Stretch. City Manager 

SUBJECT: Approml of employment agreement with Kyle Knopp. City Manager 

IT IS RECO\1MENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

CITY Of 

Approve the attached 3 year agreement with Kyle Knopp as Rio Dell City Manager, effecti\'e 
July 21,2014 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

With the December 2013announcement for sure of the retirement of City Manager Jim Stretch. 
the City Council retained A\'ery Associates to conduct the professional recruitment for his 
replacement. It was a nationwide search that generated 40 responses, including a few Humboldt 
County candidates. A smull group of the most qualified candidates were invited by the City 
Council to interview in early June and the City Council unanimously agreed on offering the 
position to Kyle Knopp. the Assistant Chief Executive Ofticer t()r Mendocino County. 
California. Basically Kyle is coming home. 

Kyle Knopp grew up in Eureka. attended local schools and graduated from HSU with a BA in 
Political Science. He earned his Masters of Public Administration from Calit()rnia State 
U ni vcrsi ty- Sonoma. 

Mr. Knopp began his public administration career as an Intern for US House of Representatives 
Congressman Mike Thompson. as then took the Position of Administrative Analyst in thl! 
Humboldt County Administrative Office. Shortly thereafter he was hired in the Chief Executi\'c 
Officer's Department of Ivlendocino County where he moved up quickly through the ranks to 
Assistant Chief Executive Officer. Kyle is highly regarded by his peers and associates and comes 
with the highest of recommendations, He is described as confident and self-assured. articulate, 
hardworking, a quick study with good people skills, 

The attachl!d agreement with Kyle Knopp is the same form with the same benefits and conditions 
as the City has had with prior City Managers-nothing special or unusuaL The starting salary is 
5106,875 as advertised with an effective date of July 21. 2014. The agreement has been approved 
as to its legal fllrm by the City Attorney and signed by Mr. Knopp. It is ready t()r City Council 
approvaL 

42 



J..'YLE C. KNOPP 
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
WITH CITY OF RIO DELL, CA. 

This employment agreement is made and entered into 1st day of July. 2014 by and between the 
CITY Of RIO DELL. a municipal corporation of the State ofCalifomia. hereinafter referred as 
the "Employer" and KYLE C. KNOPP, hereinatier referred to as "Employee", both of whom 
understand as follows: 

WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ the services of said Employee as City Manager of 
the City of Rio Dell; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Employer to provide ccrtain benefits. establish certain 
conditions of employment and set working conditions of said Employee; and 

WHEREAS. Employee desires to accept employment as the City Manager ofthc said City: 

NO\Y, THEREFORE. in consideration orthe mutual Clwenants herein contained. the parties 
agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. DUTIES 

Employer hereby agrees to employ Employee as City Manager of said Employer to perf(lrnl 
the 11.Inctions and duties specilld in the Ordinances of said City. pursuant to California 
Govcrnment Code section 36506. and to perform other legally pennissibk and proper duties and 
functions as the City Council shall from time to time assign. 

SECTlO;\! 2. TERM 

The tcnn of this agreement shall be for 3 years: from July 11. 2014 through July 21. 2017. It may 
be extended thereafter by mutual agreement. 

SECTION 3. TERi\IINA TlON/SEYERANCE 

A. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent. limit. or otherwise interfere with the right of the 
Employer to tenninate the scrviees of Employee at any time subject to the provisions set 
["mh hereatler in this Section. 

B. Nothing in this Agreement shall pre\·ent. limit. or otherwise interfere with the right of 
Employee to resign at any time from this position with Employer. subject only to 
provisions set forth hereatier in this Section. 

C. This Agreement of Employment shall be at will and either party may terminate said 
employment with or without cause tor any reason by giving to the other written notice of 
tennination or resignation forty five (45) days prior to the termination date. 

43 



D. In the event the Employer gives said forty five (45) day written notice of termination, the 
City has the option to require the Employee to remain at his position for a period offorty 
five (45) days from date of said Notice of Termination or may require the Employee to 
refrain from performing said duties. In either event, the Employee shall be paid his 
regular monthly salary and benefits for a period of four (4) months from the date of 
notice of termination. 

E. Notwithstanding the above, there shall be a probationary period of employment lasting 90 
days from Employee's first day of employment. During this probationary period, either 
party may immediately tenninate the employment relationship, with or without notice, 
and with or without cause. In such event, there shall be no notice period required and 
said termination may be effective immediately upon receipt. 

SECTION 4, SUSPENSION OR REMOVAL 

A. Employment is "At-Will". 
B. The Employee may be suspended, remm'ed, or dismissed from the service of the City of 

Rio Dell with a super majority vote (4) of the Council, pursuant to Section 3 above and in 
the provisions of City of Rio Dell Ordinance Number 242 (The City Manager 
Ordinance), except Article 7.0 l. 

B. In accordance with Article 7.03 of the City of Rio Dell Ordinance 241, the Employee 
shall not be removed from office, other for misconduct in oftice, during the period of 90 
days following any general municipal election at which time a new Council Member is 
elected, or within 90 days of a new Council member being appointed, 

SECTION 5. DISABILITY 

If Employee is pemlanently disabled or is otherwise unable to per/oml his duties because of 
sickness, accident, injury, mental incompetence, or health for a period offom (4) successive 
weeks beyond any accrued sick leayc, or for twenty (10) working days over a thirty (30) day 
working period, Employer shall have the option to tenninate this Agreement subject to the pay 
requirements of Section 3 above, including compensation for accrued vacation, holidays, and 
other accrued benefits. 

SECTION 6. SALARY 

A. Employer agrees to pay Employee for his services rendered an annual salary orOne 
Hundred Six Thousand, Eight Hundred Seventy Five dollars per year (5 I 06,875.00) 
beginning July 21, 2014, payable in installments (every two weeks) at the same time 
and in the same manner as other Employees are paid. 

B. On the first anniversary with satisfactory completion and performance employment the 
annual salary shall be increased 3% to the annual amount of One Hundred Ten 
Thousand and Eighty One Dollars (S 110,081.00). 

C. On the second anniversary with satisfactory completion and performance the annual 
salary shall be increased approximately 3% to the annual amount of One Hundred 
Thirteen Thousand, Three Hundred Eighty Four Dollars (S 113,384). 

44 



D. On the third anniversary and annually thereafter. with satisfactory perfonmmce and 
completion. the Employer and Employee may agree to extend this ah'Teement with a 
renewal of its terms and conditions. 

Employer may adjust said base salary and 'or other benefits, including a perionnance bonus of 
Employee in such amounts and to such extent as the Council may determine desirable on the 
basis of a salary and performance review at such times as the Councilmuy deem appropriate. 

SECTION 7. PERFORMANCE E\,ALUA TlON 

A. The City Council shall review and evaluate the perfonnancc of the Employee as City 
Manager before the end of the employee's first six months of employment, using such 
procedure as the Council may deem appropriate. Annually thereafter, the Employee shall 
initiate the annual review process by conducting a self-evaluation using the form approved 
by the City Council for said purpose. Notwithstanding. the Council may evaluate the 
performance of the City Manager at other times as it may deem appropriate. 

S. From time to time as may be deemed appropriate. the Council and Employee shall deline 
such goals and pertonnance objectives which the Council detem1ines are necessary for the 
proper operation of the City. In the attainment of the Council's policy objectives. the 
relative priority among those various goals and objectives shall be reduced to writing and 
considered as part of the annual performance evaluation review. 

SECTION 8. HOURS OF WORK 

It is recognized that EMPLOYEE may very likely devote a great deal of time outside nomBI 
ofticc hours to the business of EMPLOYER and may be expected to work in excess of forty 
(40) hours per week. EMPLOYEE shall at all times during this period be considered working in 
a bona tide executive. administrative. or professional capacity under federal or State of 
Cali!()mia law. and as such shall devote his time to the business of EMPLOYER in excess of 
limy (40) hours per week without receiving or claiming overtime payor compensatory time off 
trom work. The provision tor Executi ve Leave under Section I I is intendcd to compensate the 
City Manager in part for such extra hours. 

SECTlO;'ll 9 OTHER EMPLOYERS OR OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES 

Employee agrecs to remain in the exclusive employ of Employer and not to become cmployed 
by any other employcr until tcnl1ination of this employment relationship. The tenn "other 
cmployment" shall not be constmcd to include occasional teaching. writing. consulting. or 
military rcserve service performed on Employees timc off Employee shall not spcnd more than 
t(lUr (4) hours per week in teaching. counseling. or other non-employer connected business 
without the prior written approval of the City Council. 

SECTION 10. AUTOMOBILE 

Employee's duties require that he shall have the use at all times during his employment an 
automobile to perii)nn Employer's business. Employee shall use his own automobile for sueh 

3 

45 



purpose and Employer shall reimburse Employee the sum of Four Hundred Dollars (5400.00) 
per month for all gas, maintenance, insurance and repair of said automobile. Employee shall be 
responsible for paying for all liability, property damage, and comprehensive insurance on said 
automobile, which shall be considered primary coverage in the event of a claim. 
SECTION 11. VACATION, SICK LEAVE, HOLIDAYS, AND EXECUTIVE TIME 

For the health and welfare of its employees, it is the policy of the City of Rio Dell that 
employees be encouraged to usc the vacation benefits granted by the City and shall take an 
annual vacation of at least 40 hours. 

Employee will receive eighty (80) hours of executive leave each fiscal year in two (2) 
installments; 40 hours on July I and 40 hours on January I. The taking of vacation and 
executive leave time shall be coordinated with and approved by the City Council, who shall not 
unreasonably withhold their approval. 

Employee may cash out or utilize the Executive Time installment beginning July I. Employee 
shall be paid on the first pay period of June for each calendar year during the tenn of this 
agreement for accrued Executive Leave that remains unused or unpaid during the pre\'ious 
twelve (12) months. 

Employees accrue a sick leave benefit of eight (8) hours each calendar month actually worked by 
Employee. and vacation time shall accrue in accord with the following schedule based on years 
of continuous employment service to the City: 

Years of Continuous Scrvice Hours per Year Accrual Max. 

One to three (1-3) 80 hours 120 hours 
Four to ten (4-10) 110 hours 180 hours 
Elevcn to fi fteen (I 1-15) 160 hours 240 hours 
Sixteen to twenty (16-10) 200 hours 300 hours 

Employee shall also be entitled to the same paid holidays as the Rio Dell Employees' 
Association, 

SECTION 12. ACCRUED \'ACA T10N LEAVE AND BUY-DOWN. The amount of 
vacation time allowed to be accrued at the end of any pay period shall not exceed 1.5 times the 
annual amount of vacation time for the Employee's year of service stated in the schedule recited 
in Section 10 (not to exceed a maximum of300 hours). Upon reaching the applicable vacation 
accrual maximum in accord with the schedule recited in Section 10. the employee will not earn 
or accumulate additional vacation time and shall be automatically cashed out of 40 hours of 
accrued vacation. to be paid in the next pay period. 

Employee may elect to buy down their vacation accrual at any time. provided that they have 
scheduled a vacation leave with the City Council as appropriate or have taken their annual 
vacation and the balance of their vacation account \vill be at least 40 hours after the buy down. 

4 

46 



SECTlO:\' 13. WORK RELATED EXPENSES REIMBURSMENT 

Employer agrees to reimburse the Employee such verifiable work related out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred by the Employee. Employee shall submit an itemization schedule of his out-ol~pocket 
expenses in writing in the limn of a purchase order for payment. Employer also agrees to pay 
employee a monthly cell phone allowance to ensure employee is contactable at all times. 
Employee must maintain cell phone service. The City's cell phone policy established by 
separate Resolution ofthe City Council is applicable in all regards tor Employee. 

SECTION 14. INSURANCE 

Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance shall be provided tor the City Manager as City provides 
for other management positions. The contribution amount by the City shall be 100% of the 
premium costs fClr these benefits for the employee and 70% of the total premium costs tor 
employee's dependents, depending on their age and status as a student as provided in the plan 
document. 

SECTlO:\' 15. RELOCATION REIMBURSEMENT LOAN 

Employer may loan Employee up to Two Thousand Five Hundred dollars (S2.500) for 
relocation expense from Ukiah Ca. to Humboldt County, CA. which may include the cost of 
replacing some household articles instead of shipping them and may provide for the initial and 
temporary liv"ing expense in Humboldt County. C A for the first 30 days of employment. With 
each full year of employment. the loan balance is reduced by one-third. The outstanding loan 
balance amount is not pro-rated fll!' tractions of a year. With 3 full years of employment, the loan 
balance is reduced to zero. Recoupment of the any outstanding loan balancc shall be deducted 
from Employee's final paycheck, except where the Employer tenl1inates the services of 
Employee subject to the prO\isions set forth in Section 3, in whieh case the loan balance shall be 
forgiven, 

SECTION 16. DEFERRED COMPENSATlO;'l; 

The Employer participates in an IRS Section (457) ICMA" Deferred Compensation Program to 
which it contributes un amount equal to Fourteen percent (l4{~u) of the Employee's base salary 
during such time as the Employee is employed by the Employer. 

SECTION 17. LIFE INSURANCE 

A TERM LIFE INSlJRANCE POLlCY IN THE AMOUNT OF Fifty Thousand Dollars 
(S50,OO()'00) shall be provided by the Employer for the Employee, effective during the term of 
emploYl11ent. 

SECTION 18. AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE 

This Employment A!,'Tcement shall become effective July 21. 2014, and shall remain in effect for 
the term of Employee's employment" subject to mutually agreed upon amendments. 

5 

47 



SECTION 19. INDEMNIFICATION 

Employer shall defend. save hannless and indemnify Employee against any tort, professional 
liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless or otherwise, arising out of an 
alleged act or omission occurring in the perfonnance of Employee's duties as City Manager. 
Employer will attempt to compromise and settle any such claim or suit and pay the amount of 
any settlement or judf,'1l1ent rendered thereon. 

SECTION 20. BONDING 

Employer shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of the Employee under 
any law or ordinance. 

SECTION 21. DUES AND SUBSRIPTIONS 

Employer agrees to budget and pay for the professional dues and subscriptions of Employee in 
the International City Management Association (lCMA) which supports personal growth. 
advancement and active communication for the benetit of the City. 

SECTION 22. TRAVEL EXPENSES 

Employer hereby agrees to pay for the travel and subsistence expenses of Employee for official 
and professional travel while on City Business, provided that funds are available in the City 
Manager's travel budget and the City Council has first approved and authorized said travel and 
training expenses. Such expenses may include attendance at the League of Calit()rnia Cities 
Annual Conference. City Managers Department Meeting and the ICMA Annual Conference. 

SECTION 23. ATTORNEY'S FEES 

Should any litigation be commenced between the parties to this Agreement or the rights and 
duties of either relationship thercto, the prcvailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to such 
other relief as may be granted. in addition to a reasonable sum for attorney's fees. as detennined 
by the court. 

SECTION 24. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 

Employer shall provide Employee with the use of a City cellular telephone or a cell phone 
allowance as provided in City Resolutions 1030-2009 and 1069-10 I O. Furthennore. Employer 
shall provide Employee with the usc ofa laptop (Notebook) computer if desired, compatible 
with the City Manager's desktop computer, all to be used for City related business. 

6 

48 



SF( "110;''; 25. i'iOTiClS 

,\P'IL'" pursu;u1! 10 lb1s /\gr":;"'lllcllf s]1,.1li bL' given deposit ill!];e CJ:->lody nrtlL' t 'lilted SLUe> 

!\l"lcl! Sen'le,,', )11'i.:p;Jld. addressed as j{)!tows: 

l:mploYer 
Rio IJdl City 11,,11 
(175 Wildllood ,h'e 
Rio Dell, California 95562 

Employee 
Kyle C. Kilopl' 
675 Wildn ood An 
Rio Drll, C\ 95562 

/\ltcnullH?ly. notices required pursuant to this AgreC'ment nuy he !y sen cd 111 llle s~!mc 
IlU]1I1Cr ,!S is applicable to c!yil judicial practice. Notice shall be deemed ~i\cn as oi'the (hltc or 
pcr::,onal sen ICC or;:;s of t11..: dute or deposit o!'such \\Tittel! in the tours·,: or tr~m'-im!ssi()n in the 

1"litcd Siaies Posul Sen icc, 

SECTIO:\ 26. CE!'IER\1. I'RO\'!S!O!'lS 

A. '! he tc:.:t herein shall constitute Ihe enlire Agrcl'l11l'Jl! hclwccn pdrlics. 
It This :\grccmcnl shall be binding upon nnd inu!'c to the hcndit of the hi.?!rs nt law and 

,,,eculors or Employee. 
{ , if any pmvI:1io!L or any portion thcn:oL contained in this ,\grccmcnt is held 

UIKOl1stitutional. innilid or unenforceable. the n:muindcr of this ;\gn.:t:mC!lL (11' portion 
tl1l'rcoL ~h;]lj be deemed s,:\'crablc. ~hal! Ilut be u!rccted :chall remain in I J("rc~ and 

1\ \\IT\ES:, WHEREOF. 01 Rio Dell has caused and 
C\ccutl'd in its \'layor. and the Employee has si~mcd und e\:l'cutcd 

the and) l\Jr nl'~t ahon: written, 

E\II'LOYFE 

\ . City (1r Rio 1)>..-'IL I laic Ru;,;, {;diL-i. « \1l,lrllL'\ 

S(~lll' orc;.;!! ,J:; to ! loml 

49 



Rio Dell City hall 
675 Wildwood Ape/we 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
ri odellcitj'. COlli 

July l. 2014 

TO: 

FRO:VI: 

SUBJECT: 

Rio Dell City Council 

J+Ch. City Manager 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Report by Redwood Coast Energy Authority 

IT IS RECOM:VIE:\DED THAT THE CIT'( COU:\CIL: 

CITY Of 

Rccci\'e and file the reports by Redwood Coast Energy Authority on Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

BACKGROU1\'D AND DISCUSSIOl\ 

The Redwood Coast Energy Authority has asked to be on the Council's agenda to present a 
power point on Greenhouse Gas Emissions, The reports in the packet carry a 2005 date. which 
was the inventory year that provided the planning baseline, 

:\0 specific action is requested of the City Council. 

so 



Humboldt County· Arcata· Rio Dell • Blue Lake· Ferndale· Fortuna· Eureka· Tnnidad· Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District 

City of Rio Dell 
2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 

Prepared for 

City of Rio Dell 

In Collaboration With 

Pacific Gas and Electric Corporation 

and 

ICLEI - Local Governments for Sustainability 

6/18/2014 

I CL EI 

L 
local ... < 

Governments v:::.,~ 
(or Sust,lin.lbiJily 

Striving to develop and implement sustainable energy initiatives that reduce energy demand. increase energy efficiency. and 
advance the use of ciean, efficient and renewable resources available in the region. 



This Page Intentionally 
Left Blank 

52 



Credits and Acknowledgments 

City of Rio Dell 
Jim Stretch, City Manager 
Randy Jensen, Water Resources 

California Department of Conservation 
The California Department of Conservation Strategic Growth Council grant was applied for and 
secured by Streamline Planning for the City of Blue Lake. A portion of this funding supported the 
development of the spreadsheet tool used to conduct the greenhouse gas inventories for the rest of 
Humboldt County. 

California Department of Conservation - Division of Land Resource Protection 
The work upon which this publication is based was funded in part through a grant awarded by the 
Strategic Growth Council: Grant Number 3012-552. 

Disclaimer 
The statements and conclusions of this report are those of the Grantee andior Subcontractor and not 
necessarily those of the Strategic Growth Councilor of the Department of Conservation, or its 
employees. The Strategic Growth Council and the Department of Conservation make no warranties, 
express or implied, and assume no liability for the information contained in the succeeding text. 

Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Matthew Marshall, Executive Director 
Jerome Carman, Program Assistant 
Leabeth Peterson, Intern 

ICLEI • local Governments for Sustainability USA 
J.R. Killigrew, Program Officer 

Thank you to ICLEI for the tools, specifically the Community Protocol, and support provided to help 
facilitate and streamline the inventory process. 

Pacific Gas & Electric 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company provides comprehensive climate planning assistance to local 
governments, from providing energy usage data and assistance with greenhouse gas inventories, to 
training and guidance on climate action planso 

Part of the effort towards the completion of this inventory was funded by California utility customers 
and administered by PG&E under the auspices of the California Public Utilities Commission. 

53 



Executive Summary 
This community emissions inventory is the first step towards planning for climate change by 
providing information to inform policy decisions and a baseline from which to assess the success of 
future actions. This inventory informs the climate action plan that the City is currently developing. 

This community emissions inventory can be used to establish local government initiatives that help 
the City move towards a more sustainable and resilient community. Tracking of carbon dioxide 
emissions is considered to be an effective method of measuring the success of the Cities climate 
action initiatives. Future inventories can be compared with this baseline inventory as one metric of 
the effectiveness of government initiatives and community action. 

There are numerous gases emitted by human activity that have a significant environmental impact. 
In accordance with version 1.0 of the Community Greenhouse Gas Inventory Protocol drafted by the 
International Council on Local Environmental Initiatives (ICLEI). three primary greenhouse gases are 
considered for this inventory: carbon dioxide (C02), methane (CH,), and nitrous oxide (N20). There 
is three other primary greenhouse gases also addressed by the Protocol but are not applicable to 
the City of Rio Dell as they are associated only with large industrial processes. Furthermore, in 
addition to these three primary gases, there are a small handful of refrigerants that are also tracked 

by this inventory. 

These greenhouse gases all vary in their impact on global warming, otherwise known as their global 
warming potential (GWP). This GWP has to do with the how well these gases absorb and emit heat. 
The result is that emission of one gas will have a different impact on global warming compared with 
another gas. 

Because of this, all emissions of greenhouse gases are presented as a comparable amount of CO2 , 

called equivalent CO, (C02e). This is analogous to possessing different forms of currency and 
converting the value of all currencies to dollars in order to determine the total value. This means that 
while there are multiple greenhouse gases tracked in this inventory, all are converted to CO 2e for 
direct comparison. 

All COze emissions are presented as originating either from a source or an activity. Source 
emissions are those that occur within the jurisdictional boundaries of the City of Rio Dell. Activity 
emissions are those associated with actions by Rio Dell residents and businesses such as the use of 
electricity or the creation of solid waste. It is useful to make this distinction in order to facilitate 
meaningful and effective government initiatives and community action. 

In addition, emissions are presented in two frameworks: emissions sources and activities that are 
within Significant influence of City government, citizens, and businesses, and those sources and 
activities that are outside significant influence, referred to as upstream emissions. The first 
framework highlights those activities and sources that the City of Rio Dell can have a direct impact 
on. For example, switching from a gasoline car to an electric car directly impacts the local emissions 
associated with the transportation sector. 

Upstream emissions are considered outside the significant influence of the City since the City has no 
control over the methods of resource extraction, processing, and shipment. Upstream emissions are 
included to provide additional information regarding the more global impact of the consumption 
associated with the activities of citizens and businesses. This means that while a reduction in 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
ii 

54 



consumption of energy and fuel will reduce the emissions locally that are officially "assigned" to the 
City of Rio Dell, there will also be an addiUonal and significant change in upstream emissions that do 
not occur locally and so are not offiCially assigned to the City. 

The results of this inventory are shown in Figure 1 and Figure 2, and summarized in Table 1 and 
Table 2 below. Results suggest that future climate action initiatives focus primarily on the reduction 
of fossil fuel use associated both with transportation and with cooking and heating. The next two 
primary emissions sectors are associated with electricity consumption and the generation of solid 
waste. 

Table 1: Summary of emissions sources and activities that are within significant tocal influence. 

2,648 Activity: Electricity Consumptio~ __ ._ .......... _ .. .. 
Source: Stationary Combustion of Fuels 

----=--==: .... -.... - .. ~--
3,862 

Source: Mobile Combustion 12,774 
_ ~ _____ ,. ____ u __ ._._ _ ________ ~. __ 

AcUvity: Solid \IV' aste.9.~ne':.~ti9~_._ •. ___ .... ____ .. __ . =36::-;-1 __ _ 
904 
28 ---

Source: Industrial Point Sources o 
TOTAL 20,577 

Table 2: Summary of upstream emissions that occur outside of Rio Dell as a result of the consumption of these 
resources within Rio Dell. 

Activity: Ups tream Ga~()lirlElEf12~s-,~i~~s. _____ ._._ .. 2,579 

. Acti':,i!!':. U Estreamge~tri:::~!!'_E:rnJ~si.CJ.rJ~._. ______ .. 758 

5,080 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
iii 

55 



Activity: Solid 
Waste 

Generation 
2% 

Activity: 
Upstream 

Diesel 

Source: 
Wastewater 
Treatment 

4% 

Source: 
Industrial 

Point 
Sources 

Local Emissions 

20,577 Metric Tons 
eO,e 

Activity: 

Source: 
Leaked 

Refrigerants 
0% 

Upstream 
Propane 

Emissions 

Activity: 
Upstream 

Natural Gas 

Upstream Emissions 

5,088 Metric Tons eO,e 

Figure 1: Summary of emissions sources and activities that are within (above) and outside (below) significant local 
government influence. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
iv 

56 



The combined result of all emissions from sources and activities both within and outside significant 
govemment influence is shown in Figure 2. The overall story conveyed by these results shows that 
upstream emissions add roughly 20% to those emissions that are within local influence. 
Furthermore, while local jurisdictions do not have control over the processes that contribute to 
upstream emissions, they can be reduced directly through a reduction in local consumption. 

Combined Local and 
Upstream Emissions 

25,658 Metric Tons CO,e 

Figure 2: Combined emissions for all seclors both within significant government influence and outside Significant 
government innuence. Both direct and upstream emissions are included. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
v 

57 



Table of Contents 

Climate Change Background ........................................................................................ , ............... 1 

1.1 Climate Adaptation is Insurance Against the Risks of Climate Change ................................ 1 

1.2 Evidence of Climate Change .................................................................................................. 1 

1.3 California Policy ....................... , .............................................................................................. 2 

1.3.1 Global Warming Solutions Act (AB32) ............................................................................ 2 

1.3.2 SB 375 .............................................. , ..... , ........................................................................ 2 

1.3.3 Executive Order S-3-05 ................. , ................................................................................. 2 

1.3.4 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) ................................................................. 3 

1.4 Sustainability and Climate Change Mitigation Activities in the City of Rio Dell. .................... 3 

2 Inventory Methodology. .................. .......................................... .. .................. 3 

3 

2.1 Community Emissions Protocol ........................................................................................... 3 

2.2 Quantifying Greenhouse Gas Emissions ............................................................................. .4 

2.2.1 

2.2.2 

2.2.3 

2.2.4 

2.2.5 

Sources and Activities ................................................................................................. .4 

Regional and Upstream Emissions Sources and Activities ......................................... .4 

Information Items..... .. ............................................................................... 5 

Base year ........................... .. .. , .... ,................. . ..... , ................................... 5 

Quantification Methods .......... .. ...... 5 

Community Emissions Inventory Results ............. , ........ ,., .. , .............. , ......... , ................ 6 

3.1 Community Profile ...................... .. . ...... , ........................................................ 6 

3.2 Emissions from Sources and Activities Under Significant Local Government Influence ....... 7 

3.2.1 

3.2.2 

3.2.3 

3.2.4 

3.2.5 

3.2.6 

3.2.7 

Activity: Electricity Consumption ............. , ........... . ...................................... 9 

Source: Stationary Combustion ........................................... .. .. .............................. 9 

Source: Mobile Combustion ....................................................... . 

Activity: Solid Waste Generation ........................ .. 

Source and Activity: Wastewater Treatment.. 

Activity: Consumption of Potable Water .. 

Source: Fugitive Leakage of Refrigerants ............................................. . 

. .......... 11 

.. ........... 15 

......... 17 

..... 18 

..... 19 

3.2.8 Source: Industrial Point Sources .................................................................................. 21 

3.3 Additional Emissions Sources Outside of Significant Local Government Influence ............ 21 

3.3.1 Activity: Upstream Emissions from Utility Energy Consumption .................................. 22 

3.3.2 Activity: Upstream Emissions from Mobile Combustion of Gasoline and Diesel. ......... 23 

3.3.3 Emissions From Air Travel ............................................................................................ 24 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
vi 

58 



4 Forecast"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" """""" """""""" """""""""""""""""""" """"""""""""""""" """""""""" """"""" """""" ""25 

5 Discussion"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" """""""""""" """""""""""""""""""" """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""" """"""""""""""" """""""" """""" "26 

Appendix A Inventory Scope and Reporting Table """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""28 

Appendix B NCAIS Job Sector Data """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" """"""""""""""""" """"""""""33 

Appendix C DMV Vehicle Population Percentage Values"""""""""""""""""""""""" """""""""""""""" """"""""""34 

Appendix D Daily Vehicle Miles Traveled Data Used for EMFAC2011 Emissions Modeling""" """"""35 

Appendix E Compound Annual Growth Rates Used to Forecast Future Emissions """"""""""""""" """""""38 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
vii 

59 



List of Tables 
Table 1: Summary of emissions sources and activities that are within significant local influence""",.3 

Table 2: Summary of upstream emissions that occur outside of Rio Dell as a result of the 

consumption of these resources within Rio Dell, ."""".".""""".".""""""."""" ...... "".""" .. """"""" .. 3 

Table 3: City of Rio Dell 2005 community indicators ..... """.""""."."."".".""""" ....... "".""".,,,,.,,,, .... 6 

Table 4: Emissions associated with the activity of electricity consumption within jurisdictional 
boundaries." ... ,',."." ..... , .. " ... " .. ,""', ....... , ... " ... ,,,.,. "","" " ............ ,," ". " ...... "",,, ......... " ..... " ........... " ..... 9 

Table 5: Emissions associated with the stationary combustion of fuels within jurisdictional 

boundaries." .. " .. ,. , ... " ...... " .. " .. " .. " ... "." ....... ". " ... """ ... "" .. , ..... "". " ..... " ... "." .. " ........ " ....... ". " .. ",." ... 11 

Table 6: Emissions associated with the combustion of fuels by mobile vehicles and equipment. " ... 12 

Table 7: Description of listed vehicle class labels .. "" .... ""."""""".""""""""" ... " .. " .. """.,,,, ....... ,, .. 14 

Table 8: Description of the various activities that comprise each off-road vehicle sector. """"""" .... 15 

Table 9: Emissions associated with the transportation. processing, and decomposition of solid 

waste ... " .... " .. " .... " .. "." ..... "." ... ""." ........ ". " .. " "'"'''''''''''' " .. "" .. " .. , " ...... " .. ,." ... "" .. "" ... "" ....... " ...... 16 

Table 10: Emissions associated with the processing of wastewater from both the central treatment 

plant and septic systems within jurisdictional boundaries. " ... "."" .. "".""." .. """""""""".""""""" ... 18 

Table 11: Emissions associated with pumping and treatment of potable water served to the City of 

Rio Dell, ...... ". """."" .. ". ,,'" "" .. ". "" .... ,,' ". "" .. " " ......... "" .. ".' "" ... ".'" " ......... " .. , .. ". "." .. , ..... , ...... " ...... 19 

Table 12: Estimated emissions associated with the leakage of refrigerants from commercial and 
industrial stationary and mobile equipment. "". "".' .... "." ... " .. "" .. ".' " .. " ... " ........... ". ". "". "" ...... ,,, ..... 20 

Table 13: Greenhouse gas and criteria pollutant emissions estimates from industrial point sources . 
....... , .................. , ..................... , .. , ................... , .... " ......... , .... , .. , ..................................................... , ........ 21 

Table 14: Upstream emissions estimates associated with processing offuels used to generate 

electricity and for stationary combustion ....... "" .... " ..... "" .... , ... ".""." "" .. ,." .. " ...... ". " .. , "" ..... " ... " ...... 23 

Table 15: Upstream emissions associated with gasoline and diesel fuel consumption .. """"" .. """ .. 24 

Table 16: Direct CO, emissions estimates associated with commercial and private air travel.." ....... 24 

Table 17: Upstream CO,e emissions estimates associated with commercial and private air travel .. 25 

Table 18: Forecast factors used to estimate emissions for each sector. """."""."" .. "." ..... ""."",, ... 26 

Table 19: NCAIS employment sectors used to allocate County-wide HPMS VMT to retail and 

commercial truck vehicle classes ..... ," , ............. , ... " ..... " ......... , ..... " .. "." ....................... " ........ ,.,." ...... 33 

Table 20: Percent popUlation of vehicles registered to owners that have an address within the 

jurisdiction ..... "" ....... " .. ,." .... " ...... " " ........ , ..... "". """., .... "., " .... "".", " ... " .... " ................ " .... " ... ,. " ....... 34 

Table 21: Daily VMT values used to estimate CO, emissions from the EMFAC2011-SG sub-model. 

Refer to the Methodology Report for definitions of vehicle classes""."" .... "." ..... ". "."" .. """"",, ...... 35 

Table 22: Daily VMT values used to estimate CH" and N,O emissions from the EMFAC2011-LDV 
sub-model. Refer to the Methodology Report for definitions of vehicle classes. "" ... ""." .. "."" .. "" ... 36 

Table 23: Population compound annual growth rates calculated from ACS 5 year estimates of SF1 

100% Census data. "" .... " ..... "."" ..... " ...... "." ... " ... , "".".". " ... " ...... "." .. "" ........... ,,",., ... " ... " ..... "." .... 38 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
viii 

60 



Table 24: Population compound annual 9rowth rates calculated from the County General Plan, 
version dated 03/2012 .......................................................................................................................... 38 

Table 25: Compound annual growth rates calculated for NCAIS job sectors ..................................... 39 

Table 26: Carbon intensity reduction rate factors estimated from the PG&E Renewable Portfolio 
Standard ............................................................................................................................................... 39 

Table 27: County vehicle miles traveled (VMT) growth rates estimated from the state highway 
performance monitoring system (HPMS). VMT growth rates are the same across all jurisdictions ... 39 

Table 28: Vehicle emissions carbon intensity reduction factor values ............................................... .40 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
ix 

61 



list of Figures 
Figure 1: Summary of emissions sources and activities that are within (above) and outside (below) 
significant local government infiuence .................................................................................................. .4 

Figure 2: Combined emissions for all sectors both within significant government infiuence and 
outside significant government influence. Both direct and upstream emissions are included .............. 5 

Figure 3: Relationship of community and government operations inventories ..................................... 3 

Figure 4: A summary of all emission sources and activities, by energy source (top) and emissions 
sector (bottom) that are under significant local government influence .................................................. 8 

Figure 5: Emissions associated with the activity of electricity consumption within jurisdictional 
boundaries ............................................................................................................................................ 1 0 

Figure 6: Emissions associated with on- and off-road vehicle travel. ................................................. 13 

Figure 7: Disaggregation of on-road vehicle emissions by vehicle class and fuel type ...................... 14 

Figure 8: Break down of activity sectors that comprise the off-road transportation emissions sector . 
.............................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Figure 9: Solid waste emissions by waste type ................................................................................... 17 

Figure 10: Waste water emissions by type .......................................................................................... 18 

Figure 11: Refrigerant emissions by type ............................................................................................ 20 

Figure 12: Summary of all emissions outside significant influence by the City of Rio Dell. ................ 22 

Figure 13: City of Rio Dell forecasting results ...................................................................................... 25 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
x 

62 



1 Climate Change Background 
Naturally occurring gases dispersed in the atmosphere determine the Earth's climate by trapping 
solar radiation. This phenomenon is known as the greenhouse effect Conclusive evidence shows 
that human activities are increasing the concentration of greenhouse gases and changing the global 
climate, The most significant contributor is the burning of fossil fuels for transportation, electricity 
generation and other purposes, which introduces large amounts of carbon dioxide and other 
greenhouse gases into the atmosphere, Collectively, these gases intensify the natural greenhouse 
effect, causing global average surface and lower atmospheric temperatures to rise, 

Reducing electricity, natural gas, and fossil fuel use in the community can have many benefits in 
addition to reducing greenhouse gas emissions including: 

• more efficient use of energy which further decreases utility and transportation costs for 
residents and businesses, 

• money not spent on energy is more likely to be spent at local businesses and add to the local 
economy, 

• retrofitting homes and businesses to be more efficient creates local jobs, 

• reducing fossil fuel use improves air quality which reduces criteria pollutants that impact the 
health of the community, 

• promotion of alternative transportation provides opportunities for walking and bicycling which 
improves residents' health, 

1.1 Climate Adaptation is Insurance Against the Risks of Climate Change 
For many of the same reasons that home owners carry fire insurance and car owners carry auto 
insurance, the City of Rio Dell has completed this inventory in order to inform decisions that will 
insure the community against the risks of climate change. Planning for future climate change, and 
targeting methods of adaptation, will allow Rio Dell to reap significant benefits in the quality of life, 
economic health, and environmental stewardship of the community. Regardless of the reasons for 
climate change, government and community action now will help buffer the citizens of Rio Dell from 
future changes in the climate, 

1.2 Evidence of Climate Change 
There is international scientific consensus that the global climate is changing, and that human 
actions, primarily the burning of fossil fuels, are a main cause of those changes, The 
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCG) is the scientific body charged with bringing 
together the work of thousands of climate scientists, The IPCG's Fourth Assessment Report states 
that "warming of the climate system is unequivocal:" Furthermore, the report finds that "most of the 
observed increase in global average temperatures since the mid-20th century is very likely due to 
the observed increase in anthropogenic greenhouse gas (GHG) concentrations," 

The year 2012 was the hottest year on record for the continental United States, with two dozen cities 
breaking or tying their all-time high temperature records'" Globally, the 12 years from 2001-2012 are 

1 IPCC, 2007: Climate Change 2007: SyntheSis Report Contribution of Working Groups I, II and III 
to the Fourth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [Core Writing 
Team, Pachauri, RK and Reisinger, A (eds,)], IPCC, Geneva, Switzerland, 104 pp, 

2 Burt, Christopher C, "2012 a Record Warm Year for Continental US. January 2, 2013, 
http://www.wunderground.comlbloglweatherhis!orianlcomment.html?entrynum=112 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
1 

63 



among the hottest on record, and 1998 was the only year in the 20th century hotter than 2012] The 
year 1976 was the last year with a below average global temperature. 

In addition to the study of the global impacts of climate change, there has been significant scientific 
work looking at the potential impacts of climate change at the regional level. Results say that the City 
of Rio Dell could be impacted by'; 

• a possible fivefold increase in the number of days above 85 'F, 

• an 80% to 90% loss in annual snow pack, 

• a 3.6% increase in acreage burned by forest fires, 

• a roughly 15% reduction in annual precipitation, 

• increased vulnerability to extreme weather events (e.g. flooding), 

• increased load and stress on community infrastructure such as roads, power lines, and 
communication systems. 

1.3 California Policy 
California has a number of state level policies that serve as regulatory drivers for climate action 
planning at the local government levels, which are described below. 

1.3,1 Global Warming Solutions Act (AB32) 
California passed the Global Warming Solutions Act (AB 32) in 2006, which charged the California 
Air Resources Board (CARB) with implementing a comprehensive statewide program to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions. AB 32 established the following greenhouse gas emissions reduction 

targets for the state of California: 

• 2000 levels by 2010 

• 1990 levels by 2020 

1,3.2 58375 
SB 375 enhances California's ability to reach its AB 32 goals by promoting good planning with the 
goal of more sustainable communities. SB 375 requires CARB to develop regional greenhouse gas 
emission reduction targets for passenger vehicles. CARB is to establish targets for 2020 and 2035 
for each region covered by one of the State's 18 metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs). 

1.3.3 Executive Order 5-3-05 
Executive Order S-3-05, issued by Governor Schwarzenegger, reinforces these goals and also sets 
a schedule for the reporting of both the measured impacts of climate change upon California's 
natural environment and the emissions reduction efforts undertaken by a myriad of state, regional, 
and local groups. Executive Order S-3-05 establishes an additional target of 80% below 1990 levels 
by 2050. Rio Dell's GHG emissions inventory is intended to enable the City to develop effective GHG 
reduction policies and programs to meet these targets and track emissions reduction progress. 

3 NOAA: State of the Climate 2012 Summary. http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/sotc/ 

4 Local impact estimates obtained from http://cal-adapt.org/ and the California Adaptation Planning 
Guide available at 
http://resources.ca.gov/climate_adaptation/docs/APG_Defining_Local_and_Regional_lmpacts.pdf 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
2 

64 



1.3.4 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
CEOA requires public agencies to evaluate the environmental impacts of discretionary development 
plans and projects in their jurisdictions. CEQA guidelines were updated in March 2010 to require 
analysis of climate change in CEOA documents. Many jurisdictions are finding that climate change 
impacts from local government activities are "significant" under CEQA, and are identifying emissions 
reductions targets and Climate Action Plans as mitigation measures to reduce climate change 
impacts to less-than-significant levels. 

1.4 Sustainability and Climate Change Mitigation Activities in the City of Rio Dell 
Rio Dell has already taken steps that have or will lead to ancillary benefits in the form of community 
resilience, energy conservation and greenhouse gas mitigation. These include: 

• Implementation of a more efficient wastewater system, 

• Public Works solar/wind energy interest, 

• And planned climate change policy programs. 

2 Inventory Methodology 
The first step toward achieving tangible greenhouse gas emission reductions requires identifying 
baseline emissions levels and sources and activities generating emissions in the community. This 
report presents emissions from the Rio Dell community as a whole; emissions from operations of the 
Rio Dell govemment are presented in the previously released City of Rio Dell 2005 Government 
Operations Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory. 
The government operations inventory is mostly a 
subset of the community inventory, as shown in 
Figure 3. For example, data on commercial energy 
use by the community includes energy consumed by 
municipal buildings, 
and community vehicle-miles-traveled estimates 
include miles driven by municipal neet vehicles. 
As local governments have continued to join the 
climate protection movement, the need for a 
standardized approach to quantify GHG emissions 
has proven essential. This inventory uses the 
approach and methods provided by the Community 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Protocol (Community 
Protocol)s. 

2.1 Community Emissions Protocol 
The Community Protocol was released by ICLEI in 

Figure 3: Relationship of community and 
government operations inventories. 

October 2012, and represents a new national standard in guidance to help U.S. local governments 
develop effective community GHG emissions inventories. It establishes reporting requirements for all 
community GHG emissions inventories, provides detailed accounting guidance for quantifying GHG 
emissions associated with a range of emission sources and community activities, and provides a 
number of optional reporting frameworks to help local governments customize their community GHG 

s http://www.icleiusa.org/tools/ghg-protocollcommunity-protocol 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
3 

65 



emissions inventory reports based on their local goals and capacities. The State of California 
Governor's Office of Planning and Research recommends that California local governments follow 
the Community Protocol when undertaking their greenhouse gas emissions inventories. 

2.2 Quantifying Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
A summary of the approach and method used to quantify emissions are given below. A more 
detailed methodology that includes data sources and calculations is available in a separate 
document entitled Humboldt County Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory Tool: Calculation 
Methodologies. This document is available by request from the Redwood Coast Energy Authority. 

2.2.1 Sources and Activities 
Communities contribute to greenhouse gas emissions in many ways. Two central categorizations of 
emissions are used in the community inventory: 1) GHG emissions that are produced by "sources" 
located within the community boundary, and 2) GHG emissions produced as a consequence of 
community "activities". Emissions sources and activities are color coded as shown in the following 
table. 

I 

nn'v~'r'" process 
boundary that releases GHG emissions into 
the atmospher~._.m_ .... _ ........ _ .. _ ..... . 

use of energy, 
members of the community that result in the 
creation of GHG emissions, 

By reporting on both GHG emissions "sources" and "activities", local governments can develop and 
promote a deeper understanding of GHG emissions associated with their communities. A purely 

source·based emissions inventory could be summed to estimate total emissions released within the 
community's jurisdictional boundary. In contrast, a purely activity· based emissions inventory could 
provide perspective on the efficiency of the community, even when the associated emissions occur 
outside the jurisdictional boundary. The division of emissions into sources and activities replaces the 
"scopes framework" that is used in government operations inventories, which does not have a clear 
definition for application to community inventories. 

2.2.2 Regional and Upstream Emissions Sources and Activities 
In addition to emissions sources and activities that are assigned to the City of Rio Dell, additional 
upstream emissions are shown in order to provide a more complete picture of the global impacts 
from the consumption of energy and fuels. Upstream emissions are those that occur during the 
manufacture and transportation of raw materials and fuels related to the production of end use 
products consumed by the City of Rio Dell. For example, upstream emissions associated with the 
consumption of electricity is calculated based on the fuels used to produce that electricity. It is 
possible to estimate the quantity of different petroleum-based fuels used to produce a portion of the 
electricity consumed. The upstream emissions associated with the production of these fuels (e.g. 
mining, extraction, and shipping) are estimated and assigned as the upstream emissions for the 
consumption of electricity. Upstream emissions are color coded as shown in the following table. 

Emissions associated with the mining, extraction, and shipping of raw materials required to nrc,virl'p 
the end use Jlroducts that are consumed by the City. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
4 

66 



2.2.3 Information Items 
There are additional emissions sources and activities that are included solely as an information item 
to further inform policy decisions. Information items can be labeled as such for two possible reasons: 

• the emissions source is partially due to the activities of Rio Dell residences and businesses 
but there is not enough information to guide a fair allocation to individual jurisdictions, 

• or emissions associated with a particular source or activity are already accounted for in 
another sector. 

Information items are labeled separately in the tables throughout this inventory. Information items 
are not included in the total roll up of emissions for the jurisdiction. 

2.2.4 Base Year 
The inventory process requires the selection of a base year with which to compare current 
emissions. Rio Dell's community greenhouse gas emissions inventory utilizes 2005 as its base year. 
This year was chosen during the City's Municipal Operations Emissions Inventory due to constraints 
on data availability for earlier years. This same base year is chosen for this inventory to allow 
consistency with the municipal operations inventory. 

2,2.5 Quantification Methods 
Greenhouse gas emissions can be quantified in three ways: 

• Measurement-based methodologies refer to the direct measurement of greenhouse gas 
emissions (from a monitoring system) emitted from a flue of a power plant, wastewater 
treatment plant, landfill, or industrial facility. 

• Report / Survey-based methodologies refer to emissions reported to a regulating agency 
such as the North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District (NCUAQMD). 

• Ca!culation-based methodologies use activity data and emission factors. 

Most emissions sources in this inventory are quantified using calculation based methodologies. 
Activity data refer to the relevant measurement or modeling of energy use or other greenhouse gas
generating processes such as fuel consumption by fuel type, metered annual electricity 
consumption, and annual vehicle miles traveled. See the Humboldt County Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions Inventory Tool: Calculation Methodologies report for additional information. 

Some measurement-based data is also used in this inventory. The process emissions from the 
wastewater treatment plant use recorded biological oxygen demand and average volume of influent. 
Also, the North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District (NCUAQMD) keeps track of the large 
emitters in the County Data from the NCUAQMD is used to estimate emissions from industrial point 
sources and large refrigeration units. 

Only refrigeration units larger than 50 Ibs are tracked. No unit larger than 2000 Ibs is known to exist 
within the jurisdictional boundaries of Rio Dell. Due to the data tracking methods used by the 
NCUAQMD, the largest refrigeration unit assumed in this report is 200 Ibs. 

Known emission factors are used to convert energy usage or other activity data into associated 
quantities of emissions. Emissions factors are usually expressed in terms of emissions per unit of 
activity data (e.g. metric tons CO2/kWh of electricity). Emissions factors used for each sector are 
given for sectors except the transportation seclor where complex modeling software was used that 
uses a large database of emissions factors. 



For this inventory, calculations were made using the Humboldt County Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
Inventory Tool. This tool was developed by the Redwood Coast Energy Authority to establish a 
consistent calculation methodology for the County of Humboldt and all incorporated jurisdictions. 
This tool is built upon an Excel spreadsheet template provided by ICLEI. This spreadsheet is used 
both for data entry and emissions calculations. This tool, along with a user manual, is available by 
request from the Redwood Coast Energy Authority. 

3 Community Emissions Inventory Results 
The Community Protocol recommends reporting results in one or more frameworks. Each framework 
includes a particular set of emissions sources and activities, and each tells a different story about 
community emissions. This report looks at Rio Deli's community emissions through two frameworks: 

• Local government significant influence: this framework highlights emissions sources over 
which the City of Rio Dell has the most significant influence and has the greatest opportunity 
to address. These emissions are more regional in the location of occurrence. 

• Community-wide activities: this framework highlights emissions associated with the activities 
of residents and businesses that occur in a more global geography. This is intended to 
provide a broader picture of the impact associated with consumption. 

Some emissions sources and activities are reported in both frameworks, so it is important not to add 
the emissions presented by both frameworks together. The purpose of these two approaches is to 
provide different perspectives to better inform and guide both local government action and 
community action. 

3.1 Community Profile 
To put emissions inventory data in context for comparison with other jurisdictions, it is helpful to have 
some basic information about the community such as population and number of households. This 
information is provided in Table 3. 

Table 3: City of Rio Dell 2005 community indicators. 

Population 3,167 

Number of Households 1,483 

Number of Jobs 217 

Service Population (ReSidents + Jobs) 3,384 

Estimated Number of Registered Vehicles 1,110 

Average Temperature OF 

Total Heating Degree Days 3,245 

The community indicators were obtained from various sources. Population and number of 
households were pulled from the U.S. Census. The number of registered vehicles was pulled from 
DMV records. Temperature and heating degree days were pulled from www.wunderground.com 
historical data. Temperature and heating degree days were used from 2005 Eureka, CA recorded 
data as the data was not available for the City of Rio Dell. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
6 

68 



3.2 Emissions from Sources and Activities Under Significant Local Government 
Influence 

This framework emphasizes policy relevance; highlighting a set of emission sources and activities 
that Rio Dell has the greatest opportunity to address. This frame includes ali of the five Basic 
Emissions Generating Activities required by the Community Protocol, plus additional sources and 

activities. These are: 

• Electricity Consumption 

• Stationary Combustion 

• Mobile Combustion 

• Solid Waste Generation 

• Wastewater Treatment 

• Potable Water Consumption 

• Refrigerant Leakage 

• Industrial Point Sources 

The total emissions estimated to be 20,577 metric tons of C02e from all of these sectors are 
summarized in Figure 4. Details regarding each sector are provided in the following sections. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
7 

69 



Wastewater Refrigerants 

Solid Waste 
2% 

Treatment 0% 
4% Industrial Point 

Solid Waste 
Wastewater 

4% 

Sources 
0% 

mmercial 
5% 

Figure 4: A summary of all emission sources and activities, by energy source (top) and emissions sector (bottom) that 
are under significant iocal government influence. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
8 

70 



3.2.1 Activity: Electricity Consumption 
Electricity consumption contributes to greenhouse gas emissions indirectly. Emissions are generated 
at generation plants, usually through the combustion of fuels which generate heat that is then used 
to drive steam engines. Additional electricity generation fuels, such as hydropower and wind, are 
also used and are considered to be free of emissions. Emissions factors used are generated by the 
Climate Registry on an annual basis for PG&E and reflect the average mix of electricity generation 
fuels for the inventory year. The results are shown in Table 4. 

Some electricity is lost during transmission and distribution (T&D) due to resistive loses within the 
materials used. This lost electricity is also accounted for, the emissions of which are shown in Table 
4. 

Table 4: Emissions associated with the activity of electricity consumption within jurisdictional bcundaries. 

Residential 393,315 

Total: 8,524,696 

Consumption: 3,005,772 

Commercial T&D Losses: 145,389 

Total: 3,151,161 

Consumption: 0 

Industrial T&D Losses: 0 
-----~----

0.000329891 
0.000226794 
0.000221807 
0.000329891 
0.000226794 

-----_. -,------

130 
1,933 
667 
48 

715 
o 

------- -------
o 

0 Total: 0 

.... _ .. <::.<:insumption: _~11, 13~153.__ 0000221807____ __ 2:~7~ __ _ 
All Sectors T&D Losses: 538,704 0.000329891 178 

- - -~------------
Total: 11,675,857 0.000226794 2,648 

A visual comparison between the residential, commercial, and industrial sectors is shown in Figure 
5. This can help Rio Dell visualize which sector to prioritize during emissions reduction planning 
efforts. 

3.2.2 Source: Stationary Combustion 
Stationary combustion is associated with the combustion of fuels at a specific location. This includes 
the combustion of natural gas, propane, fire wood, etc. The vast majority of these fuels are 
combusted for cooking and space heating. Emissions associated with the combustion of these fuels 
can be considered eitiher a source or an activity since the activity usually occurs at the point of 
combustion. This inventory considers this sector an emissions source. Table 5 shows the results. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
9 

71 



Industrial 
0% 

Figure 5: Emissions associated with the activity of electricity consumption within jurisdictional boundaries. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
10 

72 



Table 5: Emissions associated with the stationary combuslion of fuels within jurisdictional boundaries. 

Natural Gas 
(therm) 

Residential 
Propane (gaL) 

Fuel Wood 
(MMBTU) 

Total 

561,431 0.005307 

90,424 0.005686 

10,590 

2,980 

514 

97 
3,591 

Natural Gas 
--~ .---~----...... -----;-;-;-----;-~-.------------

Commercial 

Industrial 

All Sectors 

.E E Commercial 
-= 2 Generators 

(therm) 
Propane (gaL) 

Fuel Wood 
(MMBTU) 

Total 
Natural Gas 

51,100 0.005307 

° 
° 

271 
---0 

° 271 ---- .. __ ... ---

__ . (therm) ... _ .. _0._0_0 ___ ............... __ ........ . 

Propane (gaL) ° 
Fuel Wood 

. (MMBTU) _~O __ ° Total o 
Natural Gas 

....... (therml.__ 612,531 0.005307 3,251 

£,ropane (gal.) _ ..... ~~,4~~_.__ .. _0 ._0056~~... ... __ ~1.4 .. 
Fuel Wood 

_ .. (MMBT.L:!L_ .. _10~~~~ ____ 0.009152 ...... __ ~ .... 9~. 
Total 3,862 

Diesel (gallons) 130 0.01021 1 
. ................ ... ................. .... ............... --. ............... . ............ _........ ............._ .... _ ... -

3.2.3 Source: Mobile Combustion 
Mobile emissions are associated with mobile vehicles and equipment. This includes passenger 
vehicles, freight and service trucks, off-road vehicles, and construction equipment to name a few. 
Emissions results are shown in Table 6, 

These emissions are considered a source due to the inventory methodology used. Rio Dell is 
assigned mobile emissions based on whether the emissions occur within the jurisdictional 
boundaries of Rio Dell. For example, under this method, a resident of Rio Dell that commutes 
between Rio Dell and Rio Dell only contributes emissions to the City for the miles traveled within the 
jurisdictional boundaries. 

The emissions factors used are those associated with two computer models created by the 
California Air Resources Board (CARB): EMFAC2011-SG and OFFROAD2007. A wide range of 
emissions factors are used by these models that depend on numerous factors such as vehicle age 
and type, fuel type, and temperature and humidity to name a few. Refer to the Inventory 
Methodology Report and the documentation for these computed models for more information. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
11 

73 



Table 6: Emissions associated with the combustion of fuels by mobile vehicles and equipment. 

Diesel EMFAC 351 
On-Road Passenger Not 
Vehicles LPG/CNG 

Modeled 

Total 8,920 

Gasoline 23,329 EMFAC 215.89 

Diesel 83,895 EMFAC 946.96 
Retail and Commercial Not 
Trucks LPG/ CNG Modeled 

Total 1,163 
-,--,--,,-------,~~--~--

Gasoline 40,438 OFFROAD2007 2.34E+02 

Off-Road Vehicles and Diesel 241,684 OFFROAD2007 2.40E+03 

Equipment LPG/CNG 8,514 OFFROAD2007 5.36E+Ol 

Total 2,691 

Gasoline 984,977 Combined 9,018 

Diesel 356,870 Combined 3,702 
All Sectors ... ""'_u ________ ,_,_,, ___ , ___ ,~ 

. .. _--""----
LPG /CNG 8,514 Combined 54 

,,~-~------. .-~,--,---

Total 12,774 
.~ - , -- ------------, .-'- ""-------.---~-----.--------""-------~.---------~-----"---~-.-

A visual comparison between passenger vehicles, retail and commercial trucks, and off-road 
vehicles is shown in Figure 6. This can help Rio Dell visualize which sector to prioritize during 
emissions reduction planning efforts. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
12 

74 



Figure 6: Emissions associated with on- and off-road vehicle travel. 

Additional details regarding the primary contributors to on-road vehicle emissions are shown in 
Figure 7. Results are disaggregated by vehicle type and fuel. This demonstrates that gasoline fueled 
passenger vehicles and light duty trucks are the primary contributor to emissions in this sector. Note, 
however, that this is not the case for the off-road vehicle sector where diesel is the dominant fuel. 
Definitions of the different vehicle classes are shown in Table 7. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
13 75 





Light 
Commercial 

10% 

Lawn and 
Garden 

3% 

Figure 8: Break down of activity sectors that comprise the off-road transportation emissions sector. 

Additional data used to determine emissions from the transportation sector are provided in the 
Appendices. Refer to the Methodology Report for information regarding how this data is used. 

Table 8: Description of the various activities that comprise each off-road vehicle sector. 

Off-road Activit Sector Oescri tion 
In d ustria 1_____. __ 6.g!.icul~ur<l1J.nd ~~!~::l~a.':lsll299~n.9_ _.~.. __ _ 
C on stru ction_'!r:!.c!.~il1i.n9_ ~.I..::onstructi0l1... ___ ... ~ __ . ___ .. __ ........ ~ __ ._._ 

.JJght Commercial n_.J:.':ltertainmen!~!ig_h_~ cOmmercial, and recreatiofl_. 
Lawn'!.rld Garden ._ Lall.d..!i91£ing<lfl~m.::lill~f1<lIl.c:E3._____. 

3.2.4 Activity: Solid Waste Generation 
Emissions are generated by the transportation, processing, and decomposition of solid waste. This 
inventory estimates the emissions associated with all three. 

Emissions from the transportation of waste out of the County from the Humboldt Waste Management 
Authority (HWMA) distribution center are included as an information item as they should be 
reasonably modeled within the Mobile Combustion sector (see Section 3.2.3). Note that emissions 
from self-hauling and from trash trucks are also assumed to be reasonably modeled within the 
Mobile Combustion sector but are not estimated separately due to lack of infomlation. 

Waste processing emissions associated with onsite landfill operations are also included as an 
infomlation item. Different emissions factors are used based on whether the onsile equipment is 
fueled by either diesel or compressed natural gas (CNG). All landfills that are used by HWMA utilize 
diesel equipment with the exception of the Altamont Landfill in Livemlore. CA. Only a small fraction 
of waste is trucked to this site and therefore the large majority of process emissions are associated 
with diesel equipment. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
15 

77 



Emissions from the decomposition of waste are associated with paper, food, plant, textile, wood, and 
animal wastes. Appropriate emissions factors are used for each type of waste. Results of all 
emissions are shown in Table 9. 

Table 9; Emissions associated with the transportation, processing, and decomposition of solid waste. 

Paper Waste 

Food Waste 

Plant Waste 

Wood I Textile 
Waste 

Other Waste 

All Sectors 

Additional 
Emissions 
Sources 

277 

Waste Decomposition 
173 

116 

398 

Waste Decomposition 1,220 

Landfill Process 1,220 
Equipment ________ . ___ . __ 

On-Road Transportation 
of Waste 

1,220 

Numerous. Refer to 
Methodology Report. 

Numerous. Refer to 
Methodology Report. 

Numerous. Refer to 
Methodology Report. 

157 
122 

43 

40 

o 

361 

14 

119 

A visual comparison between the emissions produced by the various waste types is shown in Figure 
9. This can help Rio Dell visualize which sector to prioritize during emissions reduction planning 
efforts. Note that transportation to landfills is estimated to comprise roughly 5% of total emissions 
from the generation of solid waste. 

City of Rio Oell2oo5 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
16 

78 



Figure 9: Solid waste emissions by waste type. 

3.2.5 Source and Activity: Wastewater Treatment 
Greenhouse gases are emitted from processing as well as the energy consumed for processing. 
Both the central treatment plant and septic systems are considered. Process emissions are 
considered an emissions source from the central plant. 

Central treatment plant process emissions are associated with methane release from anaerobic 
activity and the creation of nitrous oxide during the conversion of ammonia. Septic system process 
emissions are associated with methane release from anaerobic conditions. Central treatment plant 
energy consumption (noted as an information item since this energy consumption is already 
captured in Sections 3.2.1 and 3.2.2) is associated with the electricity and natural gas required to run 
the plant. Emissions results are shown in Table 10. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
17 

79 



Table 10: Emissions associated with the processing of wastewater from both the central treatment plant and septic 
systems within jurisdictional boundaries. 

Central Treatment Process Emissions 

Fugitive Emissions From Septic 

All Sectors 

E 

Average 
BOD5 (kg / day) 

Average daily volume 
of wastewater 

(gallons) 
Population served 

Estimated population 
served 

Estimated number of 
pemnitted septic 

systems 

267,000 

3,100 

175 

71 

Numerous. 
Refer to 

Methodology 
Report. 

0.108 metric 
tons C02e 
per person 

per year 

~ Central Treatment Energy 
.E Consumption 

Consumed electricity 
(kWh) 

Consumed natural 
gas (themns) 

518,120 0.0002218 

2,543 0.005307 .5 

Fugitive 
Emissions -----c 

From 
Septic 

2% 

Figure 10: Waste water emissions by type. 

3.2.6 Activity: Consumption of Potable Water 

The Community Protocol requires reporting of emissions associated with potable water 

consumption. This sector is highlighted to emphasize the impact that water saving measures can 

have on reducing a communities emissions. Results of the estimated emissions associated with 
pumping and treatment of potable water are shown in Table 11. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 

885 

19 

904 

115 

13 

18 
80 



This emissions source is already accounted for in the Electricity Consumption and Stationary 
Combustion sectors, so should not be added to these sectors. Instead, this emissions activity should 
be considered as an information item to guide policy decisions. Note that these emissions primarily 
occur outside jurisdiction boundaries since much of the extraction, treatment, and transport of water 
occurs outside the City. 

Table 11; Emissions associated with pumping and treatment of potable water served to the City of Rio Dell. 

E Pumping and 
served 

'" Gallons of water ::: Treatment Energy 119 0.2018 24 
.E Consumption 

consumed (MGL 
.----~-

.5 Energy IntenSity 
0.8486 

(MWhlMG) 
---------~--

3.2.7 Source: Fugitive Leakage of Refrigerants 
Leaked refrigerants can be a significant source of greenhouse gases as many refrigerants have 
extremely large global warming potential factors. Even though the quantity of leaked refrigerants is 
generally small, their large global warming potential makes their relative impact significant. This 
inventory estimates the emissions associated with stationary and mobile refrigeration equipment 
operated within industrial and commercial sectors. Vehicle air conditioning units are not tracked 
given the difficulty of the task and the lack of local government influence over the emissions source. 
The estimated emissions associated with leaked refrigerants are shown in Table 12. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
19 

81 



Table 12: Estimated emissions associated with the leakage of refrigerants from commercial and industrial stationary 
and mobile equipment. 

Size 50 - 200 1 14.37 
Ibs 

Size 200- 0 0 
Stationary Refrigeration Equipment 2000lbs 

Size >2000 0 
Ibs 

Total 1 

Transport Refrigeration Unlls 31bs 9 1.530 

Ail Sectors Ail Sizes 10 Various 

Figure 11: Refrigerant emissions by type. 

Data on stationary refrigeration units are obtained from the North Coast Unified Air Quality 
Management District (NCUAQMD). The size and leakage rate of these units is roughly 
approximated. See the Methodology Report and the Master Data Workbook for additional 

infonmation. 

14 

0 

0 

14 
14 

28 

Transportation units refer to mobile refrigeration units such as those carried by food delivery trucks. 
This emissions sector is a rough estimate modeled by the OFFROAD2007 emissions model created 
by the California Air Resources Board (CARB). This model estimates the emissions from this sector 
at a County level and allocated to the City of Rio Dell based on the percentage of jobs within the 

jurisdiction. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
20 

82 



3.2.8 Source: Industrial Point Sources 
As required by the state, industrial point sources are tracked by the NCUAQMD given their large 
contribution to overall emissions. Estimated emissions from all regulated industrial sources within the 
jurisdictional boundary of Rio Dell are zero. In addition, criteria pollutants associated with 
environmental and health concems are also included for information purposes. The results showing 
zero emissions from industrial point sources are shown in Table 13. 

Table 13: Greenhouse gas and criteria pollutant emissions estimates from Industrial point sources. 

--_._-_._._-_.-

o 1 o 
Unknown 25 

Unknown 298 

Unknown 

Unknown 

Sources Tracked by the NCUAQMD 
o 

NO, 0 

SO, 0 

PM o 
TOG 0 

Total o 

3.3 Additional Emissions Sources Outside of Significant Local Government Influence 
Included in these results are additional inventoried sources and activities over which the City of Rio 
Dell does not have significant influence. However, consumption of goods and services within the 
community indirectly contribute to these emissions. Therefore, it is useful to include these sources to 
provide a more complete picture of the impact the City of Rio Dell has on global emissions. 

Total upstream emissions are estimated to be 5,080 Metric Tons of CO,e. The majority of the 
emissions shown here are upstream emissions of petroleum fuels. These are emissions associated 
with the production of these fuels. The fuels considered are those used for transportation, those 
used for stationary combustion, and those used to generate electricity. Also included are estimates 
of direct emissions, not upstream emissions, associated with commercial and private airplane flights. 
Figure 12 summarizes these emissions. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
21 

83 



Figure 12: Summary of all emissions outside significant Influence by the City of Rio Dell. 

3.3.1 Activity: Upstream Emissions from Utility Energy Consumption 
In addition to the emissions associated with electricity. natural gas. and propane that are accounted 
for in Sections 3.2.1 and 3.2.2, there are additional emissions associated with the production of 
these fuels. These upstream emissions can account for a significant portion of the total emissions 
associated with the consumption of these fuels, and can often be overlooked since the production of 
these fuels occurs in places very far removed from the City of Rio Dell. However, there is a direct 

connection between the demand for these fuels and the emissions associated with their supply. 

Table 14 provides estimates of these upstream emissions. These estimates apply only to the 
production of fuels, not to the mining of fuels, or to the construction, operation, or decommissioning 
of fuel processing infrastructure. Hence, while these estimates provide a bigger picture of the impact 
associated with the consumption of electricity, natural gas, and propane, there are additional 

emissions not accounted for that further increase this impact. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
22 

84 



Table 14: Upstream emissions estimates associated with processing oftuels used to generate electricity and for 
stationary combustion. 

Electricity 

Stationary 
Combustion 

Coal (kg) 

Residual Fuel Oil (L) 

Distillate Fuel Oil (L) 

Natural Gas (m3
) 

Total 

Natural Gas (themn) 

Propane (gallon) 
Generator Fuel 

(gallon) 

Total 

50.516 0.0001890 10 

23.862 0.0005350 13 

15.256 0.0004920 8 

1.635.987 0.0004450 728 

758 
612.531 0.001141 699 

90,424 0.001162 105 

Unknown Unknown 

804 

3.3.2 Activity: Upstream Emissions from Mobile Combustion of Gasoline and Diesel 
As with the utility energy-related fuels. there are also emissions associated with the production of 
gasoline and diesel used in on- and off-road vehicles. These emissions are important to account for 
as they fomn a significant fraction of the overall emissions associated with the demand for these 
fuels. In 2007 the State acknowledged this fact by enacting the Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS). 
The purpose of the LCFS is to reduce the lifecycle carbon intensity of all fuels utilized by the State, 
including gasoline and diesel as well as compressed natural gas. ethanol. hydrogen. and other 
alternative fuels. 

The Significance of including these upstream emissions is to emphasize the additional impacl that a 
reduction in fuel consumption will have. By reducing the consumption of gasoline and diesel. not 
only will greenhouse gas emissions. as well as local criteria pollutants that impact the health of 
community residents. be reduced locally. these emissions will also be reduced in all regions affected 
by the production and transportation of these fuels. 

Upstream emissions factors. also referred to as well-to-pump emissions factors. were pulled from 
the GREET modelS developed by the Argonne National Laboratory. These factors are used to 
estimate the emissions associated with the consumption of gasoline and diesel by the Rio Dell 
community. These factors. along with the resulting emissions. are shown in Table 15. Note that. for 
2005. the ethanol content in blended Califomia gasoline was 5.5%7. This is also factored in to the 

total emissions estimate. 

6 Database version 8065 was used to obtain emissions factors. 

7 Detemnined from historical fuel consumption data obtained from NCUAQMD 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
23 

85 



Table 15: Upstream emissions associated with gasoline and diesel fuel consumption. 

Gasoline 
Ethanol 

Diesel 
California Low 356,870 0.002604 929 
Sulfur Diesel 

LPG/eNG 
Liquid Propane 8,514 0.001162 10 

Gas -------

3.3.3 Emissions From Air Travel 
Commercial air travel is a difficult emissions source to allocate to jurisdictions within a County as it is 
difficult to determine the origin and destination of passengers. Commercial air flight emissions are 
estimated for the County using total in-County sales of jet fuel as a proxy. Small private airplane 
flight emissions are estimated for the County using 100% of in-County fuel sales of 1 OOLL AvGas. 

The total emissions are then allocated to Rio Dell based on the percent of the County population that 
resides within jurisdictional boundaries. Again, this is neither a reliable nor fair method, but is given 
here for information purposes and to give a sense of the impact of air travel to a community's over all 

emissions impact. 

Furthermore, aviation fuel sales were obtained only for the year 2012, so are not directly 
representative of the inventory year. Hence, the numbers provided should be considered only as a 

ballpark estimate. 

Both direct combustion emissions as well as upstream emissions were quantified for the 
consumption of aviation fuel. Table 16 shows the direct combustion emissions estimates, and Table 
17 shows the upstream emissions estimates. 

Table 16: Direct CO, emissions estimates associated with commercial and private air travel. 

Private Jets 

Other Private 
Small Airplanes 

Jet Fuel 

AVGAS 
(100LL) 

9,124 0.009637 

1,827 0.008368 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 

2.46% 

2.46% 

87.93 

15.29 

24 86 



Table 17: Upstream CO,e emissions estimates associated with commercial and private air travel. 

Private Jets 
.E! Other Private 
..5 Small Airplanes 

4 Forecast 

AVGAS 
(1 DOLL) 

1,827 0_002189 2A6% 
-----~----------- -----------

4_00 

Forecasting future community emissions is important for understanding how a community can make 
better choices on how to precede with climate change practices in the future_ To support local 
government climate change initiatives in California the Statewide Energy Efficiency Collaborative 
(SEEC) provides no-cost resources to communities_ SEEC provides the CEMS tool which is used for 
both greenhouse gas inventories as well as forecasting future community emissions_ The SEEC tool 
was used for this report to both build an accessible greenhouse gas inventory online and provide 
emissions forecast into the year 2050_ 

25,000 

20,000 
C1I 

N 

0 
u 15,000 VI 
J:: 
0 
I-
<J 10,000 ·c -C1I 

:::: 
5,000 

0 

" Residential 

Solid Waste 

Transportation 

?1 Fugitive Emissions 

Figure 13: City of Rio Dell forecasting results 

lJ WaterlWastewater 

Commercial 

Figure 13 shows the emissions forecast result for the City of Rio Dell. Population growth rates were 
used to forecast the residential sector, solid waste sector, and water/wastewater sectors_ 
Additionally, job growth rates were used for forecasting of the commercial sector and fugitive 
emission sectors. Growth rates in the amount of vehicle miles traveled were used to predict future 
emissions for the transportation sector_ Refer to Appendix E for tables of the compound annual 
growth rates used for forecasting. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
25 87 



Furthermore, state and federal impacts on the carbon intensity of vehicle emissions and utility 
electricity sources are also accounted for. These expected reductions in carbon intensity are 
reflected as negative compound annual growth rates. The carbon intensity growth rates are also 
shown in Appendix E. Table 18 summarizes the factor sets used in forecasting for the different 
sectors. 

Residential 

Commercial 

Transportation 

WaterlWastewater 

Solid Waste 

Fugitive Emissions 

Table 18: Forecast factors used to estimate emissions for each sector. 

Growth rate Population Growth (ACS & County GP) 

Carbon Intensity PG&E RPS 

Growth rate NCAIS Job Growth 
-----

Carbon Intensity PG&E RPS 

Growth rate Off-road Job Growth, On-road VMT Growth 
-------------

Carbon Intensity All Traffic Carbon Intensity Factors 

Growth rate Population Growth (ACS & County GP) 

Growth rate Population Growth (ACS & County GP) 

Growth rate NCAIS Job Growth 

The decline that can be seen graphically in Figure 13 is due to decreases associated with reduction 
in future carbon intensities and increased renewable portfolio standards (RPS). The forecasting 
model assumes that population is predicted to increase by the County General Plan, thus the 
number of jobs is also expected to grow. With the current climate change practices in the City of Rio 
Dell there will be an inevitable increase in emissions long term; this increase can be seen in Figure 
13. Climate change initiatives could help in decreasing long term increased emissions of the 
jurisdiction. 

5 Discussion 
Two primary classes of emissions are presented in this report: local emissions activities and sources 
that are within local government significant infiuence, and upstream emissions activities and sources 
that are outside local govemment infiuence. Furthermore, emissions results are presented as either 
an activity or a source. This distinction can help guide local government action by targeting either a 
specific source within jurisdictional boundaries, or the activities of the residents and businesses of 
Rio Dell. Additional emissions information items are presented to further inform policy decisions. 

According to this Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Inventory, total emissions for the City of Rio Dell in the 
baseline inventory year (2005) were approximately 20.577 metric tons of CO,e from local emissions 
sources and activities. and an additional 5,080 metric tons of CO,e from upstream emissions. 
Populations within Humboldt County are anticipated to increase and therefore it is expected 
emissions will increase. This GHG Inventory is relative to the data provided for the year 2005. Due to 
increases in population, communities can expect that both the total emissions and local emissions 
have increased in more recent years. The next steps are to set an emissions reduction target, and to 
develop a climate action plan that identifies specific quantified strategies that can cumulatively meet 
that target. Rio Dell should track key energy use and emissions indicators on an on-going basis by 
completing a re-inventory at least every five years to measure emissions reduction progress. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
26 88 



Emissions reduction strategies to consider for the climate action plan include energy efficiency, 
renewable energy, vehicle fuel efficiency, alternative transportation, vehicle trip reduction, land use 
and transit planning, and waste reduction among others. This inventory shows that transportation 
fuel consumption and PG&E electricity and natural gas consumption will be particularly important to 
focus on, Through these efforts and others the City of Rio Dell can achieve additional benefits 
beyond reducing emissions, including saving money and improving Rio Deli's economic vitality and 

quality of life. 

89 



Appendix A Inventory Scope and Reporting Table 
The Protocol requires summarizing the primary emissions sectors that were inventoried in this report in the following standardized table. 

Emissions Type 

Use of fuel in residential and commercial 
stationary combustion equipment 

Industrial stationary combustion sources 
-~~,-'"-"-.----~-------,~--~-,----.-

generation in the 
'" ..... ,'llnitv 

Electricity 
u~e Of tW:::H..am':IlY uy lIltj 

community 
. 

District heating/cooling 

District Heating/ 
raCilitieS in.t~~ community 

Cooling Use of district 
heating/cooling by the 
community 

Industrial process emissions in the community 

Refrigerant leakage in the community 

poflation and Otf1er Mobile Sources 

On-road passenger vehicles 
Passenger operating within the 
Vehicles community boundary 

Source or 
Activity? 

AND 
Activity 

Source 

Source 

Activity 

Source 

Activity 

Source 

Source 

Source 

• 

• 

I ;r 

"t:I 

'" "t:I 
::l 
U 
.E 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Explanation if 
Excluded 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Explanatory Notes 
Emissions 
(MTC02e) 

3,862 

0 

2,648 

0 

28 

8,920 

r:ity of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory L-
I.D 28 
o 



---.--,--~--

"0 i "0 

Source or '" '" Explanation if Emissions 
Emissions Type 

.: "C 
Explanatory Notes 

Activity? 
::J ::J 

Excluded cr (3 (MTC02e) 
'" 0:: r: 
.- .... 

.-,.--.----"'~.--~~-

On-road passenger vehicle 
travel associated with Activity • ! Not Estimated 
community land uses 

, ~--~---

On-road freight and service 
vehicles operating within the Source • 1,163 

On-road Freight community boundary 

Vehicles 
.. _--- j --,-~-.. - --_._-

On-road freight and service 
vehicle travel associated Activity Not Estimated 

community land uses ! 
, -.------,,~.-,,---,,--,-

On-road transit vehicles operating within the 
Source 

, 
0 • community boundary 

---- -. ~-" - - ---,-,----_ .... - ~-

rail vehicles 
operating within the Source Not Applicable 

Transit Rail community boundary 
,--. "" ~-,---~-" -,-,,_._--_ ... 

Use of transit rail travel by 
Activity Not Applicable 

the community 
, •.......... .""._. 

Inter-city passenger rail vehicles operating within 
Source Not Applicable 

the community boundary 

Freight rail vehicles operating within the 
Source Not Applicable 

community boundary , 
.......• i-

vessels operating Will be Included in 
within the community Source Included Elsewhere future County-

Marine boundary wide inventory 
, - ~'""-"-"""""--.---~,,~--" 

Use of ferries by the 
Activity Not Applicable 

community 
-- -

rjty of Rio Dell :W05 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory L---.-
CD 29 
~ 



Emissions Type 

Off-road surface vehicles and other mobile 
equipment operating within the community 
boundary 

Operation of water delivery 

Potable Water -
facilities in the community 

Energy Use 
Use of energy 
with use of potable water by 
the community 
------"~.----"-,~.~,~.,. 

Use of energy associated with generation of 
wastewater by the community 

---'-~~-~---"------'-'--""--"'-"~" 

Process emissions from 
operation of wastewater 

Centralized treatment facilities located in 

Wastewater the community 

Systems - Process Process emissions 
Emissions associated with generation 

of wastewater by the 
community 

Source or 
Activity? 

Source 

Source 

Activity 

Activity 

Source 

Activity 

------.-'".----.-'"--,.,~"~" --------

I 

I 

"tl 

.~ 
::l 
0-
III 
0:: 

• 

• 

I 

"tl 
III 
"tl 
::l 

i3 
t: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

I 

~ 

Explanation if 
Excluded 

Not Estimated 

Not Applicable 

Explanatory Notes 
Emissions 
(MTCO,e) 

2,691 

24 

60 

904 

~ity of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory ~ 
~ 30 
N 



Emissions Type 

Use of septic systems in the community 

Upstream impacts of fuels used in stationary 
applications by the community 

and transmission and distribution (T&D) 
impacts of purchased electricity used by the 
community 

Upstream impacts of fuels used for transportation 
in trips associated with the community 
-~~-_ ... _-- -~- .. ~-.------- --~ ,._-""'''-_ .. ,,-------- ~-

Upstream impacts of fuels used by water and 
wastewater facilities for water used and 
wastewater generated within the community 
boundary 

Upstream impacts of select materials (concrete, 
food, paper, carpets, etc.) used by the whole 
community 

f .. 

Source or 
Activity? 

Source 
AND 

Activity 

Activity 

Activity 

Activity 

Activity 

• 

• 

• 

Explanation if 
Excluded 

Not Estimated 

Not Estimated 

Explanatory Notes 

Included in 
electricity and 

stationary 
combustion 
upstream 

emissions estimate 

Emissions 
(MTC02e) 

19 

804 

758 

3,518 

rity of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory ~ 
~ 31 
w 



Emissions Type 

.g., gas 
transportation, and the purchase of all other food, goods 
and services by all households in the community) _ .. ~. . -~~.-.---.......... --... ~~- .• "'" '.'~ ......... ~ ...... ~ 

Government Consumption (e.g., gas & electricity, 
transportation, and the purchase of all other food, goods 
and services by all governments in the community) 

gas 
electricity, transportation, and the purchase of all other 
food, goods and services by all businesses in the 
community) 

Activity 

Activity 

't:I 
Ql 

't:I 
:J 
U 
c: 

Excluded 
(IE, NA, 

NO, or NE) 

Not Estimated 

Not Estimated 

Not Estimated 

Explanatory Notes 
Emissions 
(MTC02e) 

r:ity of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory ~ 
w 32 
.j:> 



Appendix B NeAIS Job Sector Data 
As described in the Methodology Report, census data on the number of jobs for a jurisdiction, 
classified using the North American Industry Classification System (NCAIS), is used to allocate 
County-wide vehicle miles traveled from retail and ccmmercial to the City. The percentage of County 

jobs within the City is shown in Table 19. 

Table 19: NCAIS employment sectors used to allocale County-wide HPMS VMT to retail and commercial truck 
vehicle classes. 

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 
Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and S;~~.ExtraC!i()1l 

Utilities 
Construction -.-- .... - .. -.----.-.-~~:=:=-'-----~ 

_ •• _m ___ ••• _ •• _. Manufacturing 
Wholesale Trade 

Retail Trade 

0.13% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
~,,---.--~--

0.78% __ ~_u _____ ,_,~_. ___ ~~~ 

0.46% , _________ ~_~_~_u,. __ u __ 

0.00% 
0.73% 

--c---~~--------.--- ... -. 
Transportation and.Wa..rehousin!L __ . _______ J~% _______ _ 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
33 

95 



Appendix C DMV Vehicle Population Percentage Values 
DMV data was used to further localize the allocation of vehicle miles traveled VMT. The percentage 
values used for this VMT allocation are shown in Table 20. Refer to the Methodology Report for 
further details. 

Table 20: Percent population of vehicles registered to owners that have an address within the Jurisdiction. 

LOA-Gasoline 53.256% 
LOA-Gasoline Hybrid 0.077% 
LOA-Propane 0.000% 
LOT1-Compressed Natural Gas 0.000% 
L0T1-0iesel 0.288% 
LOT1-Gasoline 21.228% 
LOT1-Gasoline Hybrid 0.005% 
LOT2- Compressed Natural Gas 0.000% 
LOT2-0iesel 2.995% 
LOT2-Gasoline 20.963% 
LOT2-Gasoline Hybri~ _____ ._-~. 0.000% 
MOV-Oiesel ~~_._~ .. ____ ... _. 0.635% 
MOV-Gasoline 0.261 % 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
34 

96 



Appendix D Daily Vehicle Miles Traveled Data Used for EMFAC2011 
Emissions Modeling 

The following tables list the vehicle miles traveled data (VMT) that was input into the EMFAC2011 
model to obtain emissions estimates for the transportation sector. Both the EMFAC2011-SG (SG) 
and the EMFAC2011-LOV (LOV) sub-models were run. The SG model was used to obtain CO2 

emissions for all vehicle classes8 as well as total organic gases (TOG) and nitrous oxides (NO,). The 
LOV model was used to estimate the CH4 and N,O emissions from those vehicle classes modeled 
by the LOV sub-model. The CH4 and N20 emissions from all other vehicle classes were estimated 
from the TOG and NO, emissions estimated from the SG model (see the Methodology Report for 
additional details). 

VMT data used for the EMFAC2011-SG sub-model 
The following table lists the daily VMT values used to estimate CO, emissions for all vehicle classes. 

Table 21: Daily VMT values used to estimate CO, emissions from the EMFAC2011-SG sub-model. Refer to the 
Methodology Report for definitions of vehicle classes. 

All Other Buses-DSL .-_ .... --.-. . ..... --... ----------:-c:;:;-;=---
LDA·DSL 157.95 
LDA·GAS 31190.02 
LDT1·DSL 
LDT1·GAS 

168.48 
12412.30 

LDT2·DSL 1750.62 
12254.35 LDT2·GAS 

LHD1·DSL 
LHD1·GAS 

-~---~-----.-----

LHD2·DSL 
-----"--,,-.. ~ .. -,, -

LHD2·GAS 
MCY·GAS 

296.40 
172.07 
177.97 
60.18 

384.99 
------.,,--.---.-.-~.-,,--,~ .-~-.----.-.--

MDV·DSL 371.18 
MDV·GAS 152.69 .. -------.-.---~ .. ~ ... --~-.-<---. 
MH·DSL 26.09 
MH·GAS 232.41 
Motor Coach·DSL 52.00 ----------<---_.-
OBUS·GAS 63.18 --,---------_._-- --- - -----------,-- -------~---------
PTO·DSL 
SBUS·DSL 
SBUS·GAS 

59.63 
97.37 
22.B4 

. T6 Ag·DSL ._. __ . __ ....... _ .......... 34._40 ..... . 
T6 CAIRP heavy-DSL... 0.41 --_._--_.- ------~-------
T6 CAIRP small-DSL 1.41 

8 Refer to the Humboldt County Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory Tool: Calculation 
Methodologies for additional infomnation regarding vehicle class definitions as well as the methods 
used to estimate CH4 and N,O emissions. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
35 

97 



T6 instate construction heavy-DSL 
T6 instate construction smali-DSL 
T6 instate heavy-DSL 
T6 instate smali-DSL 
T6 005 heavy-DSL 
T6 005 smali-DSL 
T6 Public-DSL 
T6 utility-DSL 
T6TS-GAS 
~~~~--.-.•. - .. 
n Ag-DSL 
T7 CAIRP-DSL 
n CAIRP construction-DSL 
n NNOOS-DSL 
n NOOS-DSL 
n other port-DSL 

4.91 
10.31 
45.64 
95.91 
0.24 
0.81 
5.94 
0.70 

47.86 
80.62 
162.01 
2.60 

182.26 
59.00 
13.47 

T7 POAK-DSL 
n POLA-DSL 
n Public-DSL 

........ _. ______ . __ 0_.0_0 __ ... 
0.00 
8.79 

n Single-DSL ........ 74.30 
n single constructi~I1.-D~.!:._ ... __ .. ~72~ 
n SWCV-DSL 4.15 
n tractor-DSL 89.09 

-------~-----~--------------

n tractor construction-DSL 5.01 
- -------------~ 

n utility-DSL ....... _ ... _ .... _ .... ___ ._~3_9 __ 
nIS-GAS .~:-::o.:~:::...... __ ...... _._._ .. _. __ . 
USUS-DSL 
USUS-GAS 

...... !.otai Daily VMT = 
VMT data used for the EMFAC2011-LOV sub-model 

17.43 
84.66 
21.88 

61.214 

The following VMT values were used to estimated CH4 and N,O emissions using the EMFAC2011-
LOV sub-model. Only a subset of vehicle classes are modeled by this sub-model. Note that while the 
EMFAC2011-LOV and EMFAC2011-SG sub-models do not use the same names for vehicle classes, 
there is a direct correlation. This correlation is provided by the EMFAC2011 model documentation. 

Table 22: Daily VMT values used to estimate CH, and N,O emissions from the EMFAC2011-lDV sub-model. Refer 
to the Methodology Report for definitions of vehicle classes. 

01 - Light-Duty Autos (PC) 
02 - Light-Duty Trucks (T1) 
03 - Light-Duty Trucks (T2) 
04 - Medium-Duty Trucks (T3) 
05 - Light HD Trucks (T4) 
06 - Light HD Trucks (TS) 
07 - CAIRP+OOS+IS Trc/Sngl (T6) 
08 - Agriculture (T6) 

31.347.97 
12.580.78 
14,004.97 

523.87 
468.47 
238.15 
47.86 

09 - Public + Utility (T6}._ .. ___ . ___ ........ . 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
36 

98 



10 • Out of State (T7) 
.. 11 • CAIRP (T7) 
12· Instate Tractor (T7) 

17.43 13 . Instate Single (T7) 
14· Port (Drayage) (T7) ~=-:""=':-'-'.::':'::!.::5~~.L.. ____ ,_, __ ,_ 

15· Agriculture (T7) 
16 • PUblic+UtiI+SolidWaste(T7) 
17 • Other Buses 
18· Urban Buses 
19· Motorcycles 
20 • School Buses 

50.71 
106,54 
384,99 
120.21 

21 • Motor Homes 258.51 
-~----------,,-~~---

____ .. _______.T ota I, Da ilYV~T=_ 60,150 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
37 

99 



Appendix E Compound Annual Growth Rates Used to Forecast 
Future Emissions 

To properly forecast for the City of Rio Dell, specific growth rates were used to estimate growth in 
population and job sectors. Population growth rates for Rio Dell were used up until 2012 and can be 
seen in Table 23. Population growth rates for the county were then used for the other periods as 
displayed in Table 24. The growth rate used for the period of 2025·2030 seen in Table 24 was used 

to extend the forecast to 2050. 

Refer to the inventory tool to gain further information on how growth rates were used to calculate 

forecasted emissions. 

Table 23: Population compound annual growth rates calculated from ACS 5 year estimates of SF1 100% Census 
data. 

-.. -- .. ----- -----.--20:,00::
1
'7
0

"-.-=2"'07-
14

;,9-.----------------.---.-- --------..:.0:::-.700~OO-:4=O44=:9=-----·--- ------------

Table 24: Population compound annual growth rates calculated from the County General Plan, version dated 
03/2012. 

9 
------------------------------~=--=---~O:;"'----------------.-----------------.-__7'~_=__="'=___---.. -------.-.--~ 

2020·2024 0.0014023 
-. ___ m.m _____ • __ .• _ •. ···_ 2025.2029'0--------·-·-·-------------- ---------.----.-0.001 3925 --.-.------------~--. 

--,-----~-,-,,"------~ 

2030·2034 0.0013925 ----_.------ --,,--------
2035·2039 0.0013925 

----~-~-------------

2040·2044 0.0013925 --------------------=~~~. 
2045·2049 0.0013925 

The job growth rates for the City of Rio Dell can be seen in 

Table 25. The growth rate for the 2006·2010 period was used for all periods up to 2050. 

9 The compound annual growth rate calculated from ACS 5 year estimate SFl 100% census data for 
the years 2010 . 2012 was applied to forecast years 2010 • 2014. 
10 The population growth factor for 2025 ·2029 was applied to all future years. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
38 

100 



Table 25: Compound annual growth rates calculated for NCAIS job sectors. 

-----:2==,0":'1 O~--=20:':1:-=40;,r, ---------.-.-.-

2015-2019 
0.004833532 
0.006674091 

2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2034 
2035-2039 

0.006674091 ._ ..... _-_._._-_ ... _ .. _-_. --~~=-~~ ....... ------~ .. 
0.006674091 

2040-2044 
~------"'~-------------

2045-2049 

0.006674091 
0.006674091 
0.006674091 
0.006674091 

To forecast into 2050 carbon intensity reduction rate factors were used from PG&E's Renewable 
Portfolio Standard (RPS). For the periods preceding the period 2010-2014 seen in Table 26 the 
SEEC forecast tool assumes the -0.045 RPS carbon intensity. The SEEC tool assumes that the 
periods following the 2015-2019 period use the -0.059 RPS carbon intensity, 

Table 26: Carbon Intensity reduction rate factors estimated from the PG&E Renewable Portfolio Standard. 

Period PG&E RPS Carbon Intensit 
-0.045 2010-2014 

2015-2019 
~,--,-,--,--.-,----------------.----------------... 

·0.059 ... _.--_ ................... _--_._ ... _------

Highway perfonnance monitoring systems are assumed the same throughout Humboldt County. 
Thus, all jurisdictions have the same vehicle miles traveled growth rates that can be seen in Table 
27. The rate for 2010·2014 period was applied to all future years to provide a forecast to 2050. 
Similarly, all traffic carbon intensity factors are used for all jurisdictions as seen in Table 28. 

Table 27: County vehicle miles traveled (VMT) growth rates estimated from the state highway performance 
monitoring system (HPMS). VMT growth rates are the same across all jurisdictions. 

Period VMT Growth Factors 
2000-2004 0.005392 ._._._--",--_._.- .. _ ... _._ ........................ --_ .. _- . . ...... _-------. 
2005-2009 0.005392 

.----------.~:7_'~.::_- ... ----- . - ... - .......... - ... - ... - ..... -.----:=.:=:::=='7 
2010-2014 0.006010 

-" -- -----_._-- --------- -_._--_.-
2015-2019 0.006010 ---------- "._- ----------------_._--------------
2020-2024 0.006010 

--:::~=-==-.---.... -........ _ .... __ ... _ ....... -----.. --_ ... _-_ ........ _-
2025-2029 0.006010 .. ---·· .. ·· .... -·--.. ---==-~~77 -----....... .-.-.... ------... -~----.. -- .-------... - ... -
2030-2034 0.006010 

.................. ----------.. -.-•...• -- .... -.~:-::-:-::----
2035-2039 0,006010 .--.---- . -·2040=2044------·- .... -............ ---- 0,006010 

...... ..,,-_ ....... _._-_.. .. .. _._---- ._ .. _ ..... __ .. __ .. -._-
2045-2049 0,006010 =c::..:..::'........ __ ........... _ ... __ 

11 2010 - 2014 growth rate was estimated from 2006 - 2010 HPMS data. This rate was then applied 
to all future years. 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
39 

101 



Table 28: Vehicle emissions carbon intensity reduction factor values. 

2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2034 -0.012 

~~7"-.-~~ .. ~---
-0.006 
-0.002 
-0.001 

City of Rio Dell 2005 Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
40 

102 



~ 

o 
w 

"'~' . . , , 

REDWOOD COAST' . 
EnergyAuthority 

Pacific Gas and 
Electric Company' 

re 
L loc.1 

Governments USA 
for Stlslilln"bllity 



~ 

o 
+::0 

Purpose of Conducting a Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions Inventory 

• Inform in the development 
of a Climate Action Plan 

• Gauge the success of 
community actions that 
reduce emissions 

• Inform integration of 
climate-related actions 
into the General Plan 

Climate 
All... Action r:r~ 
.~ ~ 

Planning 



~ 

o 
U1 

Benefits of a Climate Action Plan 

• Save community money 

• CEQA streamlining 

• Leverage funding tied 
to climate goals 

• Prepare for changes in 
the community that result 
from climate change 

Climate 
'it Action 

Planning 
~. 

"'F 



~ 

o 
m 

Emissions Inventory Methodology 

u.s. Community Protocol Version 1.0 

• First protocol to 
standardize community 
inventories for Cities and 
Counties 

• Emissions inventory tool 
developed for the County 
based on this Protocol 

• County and all other 
jurisdictions will have an 
inventory using this method 

1l1t> no!lonalo!!Indl!rd "".Igned 10 Insplno> Rnd gukle U.S.locol 
goYe"rnments to Qcoount1o..-and report on (J1'eeooOU$e 9M 
..,,1$910,.. auocl.tod WIth til<! eGmmunitJe~ til<!r ~.",,!. 

let E I 
v~~ ,,,', i X) 

Qc:tnc-e..-20t2 

LIK'.Jl 4').,":> 
liU¥n'~)lff.J1h' ,!;:~f,L nll'~'~~l" tr/ 

f,...,.1.,_t.tmh'!tl" W;,<'," f(:~n M !~1Cn: G.~'''','''''I1~' ,-]r :2"',l.,.{',;Jt~'\-t USA 



~ on o -

-
(/) 

c: 
o .-
(/) 
(/) .-
E 

IJJ 

~ 

"'0 -o 
...Q 

E 
::J 
I 

o 
~ 
~ 
o 
~ 

C 
<D 
> 
C -

107 



~ 

o 
00 

Emissions Sources and Activities 

• The causes of emissions are identified as either a 
source or an activity to guide policy decisions. 

• These are color coded to ease navigation through 
the emissions inventory 

Any physical process inside the 
jurisdictional boundary that releases 
GHG emissions into the atmosphere 

The use of energy, materials, and/or 
services by members of the community 

that result in the creation of GHG 
. . 

emissions. 



~ 

0 
<.0 

Emissions Sources and Activities 

• Information items are included to provide 
additional information to assist policy decisions 

• Color coded light green 

Paper Waste 256 157 
"~ ,~''''--.. -~-... -------- .~,-,-,-."-----

Food Waste 277 122 
------" -.--~-----------~ .. -- Waste Numerous, Refer to -~"----

Plant Waste 173 43 
Decomposition ~ .. -"~~-'- Methodology Report 

Wood I Textile Waste 116 40 
----~"""-"'"" .. --,~-~""'"-.-""-" .. ---- --,~-----

Other Waste 398 0 

All Sectors 
Waste 

1,220 
Numerous, Refer to 

361 Decomposition Methodology Report 
Wm\~1W(:j(~A\~m'_!lJI.Ii!f!tl"q ,,-

Landfill Process 
1,220 14 E Equipment 

'" Additional Emissions Numerous, Refer to ;:t:: 

.E Sources On-Road Methodology Report 

.5 Transportation of 1,220 119 



~ 

~ 

o 

Emissions Sources and Activities 
Total Local Emissions: 20,577 Metric Tons C02e 

Wastewater 
Treatment Refrigerants Industrial 

Solid Waste 4% 0% Point 
Sources Largest Emissions 

Sectors: 
2% 

0% 

• Mobile Combustion 
• Stationary Combustion 
• Electricity Consumption 

"r' 



~ 

~ 

~ 

Emissions Sources and Activities 

Total Emissions: 20,577 Metric Tons C02e 
Wastewater 

Solid Waste 4% 
2% Industrial Largest Emissions 

Sectors: 
• Transportation 
• Residential 

Commercial 
5% 



~ 

~ 

N 

Emissions Sources and Activities 

Transportation Emissions: 12,774 Metric Tons C02e 



~ 

~ 

w 

Upstream Emissions 

Fuel extraction, 
refining 

and distribution 

rosourws ;]ro greenhouse 
gns·frcc and/or rencwClbt~ 

'Nuclear 

-Large Hydro 

• Renewabl(! 

Focused on fossil fuels used for 
electricity production and 

transportation 

required to "provioe the ... 

end use products that are consumed by the City. 



~ 

~ 

.j::. 

Upstream Emissions 
Total Emissions: 5,080 Metric Tons C02e 

Upstream emissions are 
estimated to account for 

an additional 200/0 



~ 

~ 

U1 

Forecasting for the City of Rio Dell 
25,000 

20,000 

w 
N o U 15,000 
II) 
c 
o 
t
u :s 10,000 
w 

::E 

5,000 

o 
~~~0v~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Residential Transportation Water/Wastewater 

Solid Waste Fugitive Emissions Commercial 

.. The SEEC tool was used to forecast future emissions. 
III Greatest emissions come from the transportation sector. 
II Next step: Climate Action Plan (CAP) 



~ 

~ 

en 

REDWOOD COAST" 
EnergyAuthority 

Pacific Gas and 
Electric Company' L 

local 
Governm~nls tJ~1/\ 

for Sustilin.,bllity 



c: 
0 .-
~ c. 
E ro 
::l 

0': 
..... ~ 
UJo 

V') :::Jo 
-0 c: C 

0 
U ro 

°
0 
~ 

~ Q)~ EO 
~ EI'-.- 0 
U 0 .-
L.. 
~ u 
QJ -LLI 

117 



"'C o o 
~ 
OJ s-.-

LL. .. 
OJ 
c: 
ItS 
C
O s-
a.. 

-
~ 
:::J ......, 
ItS 
Z 

C'il 
'2 
(])~ 
EK
E 
o 
u 

"0 o 
o~ 3: 0 
(])('I") 
'-

i.L 

118 



~ 

~ 

lP 

On-Road Vehicle Emissions 
Total Metric Tons Of C02e By Vehicle Class and Fuel Type 

4.50E+03 ..------------------------------, 

-;:- 4.00E+03 +1------1 
co 
~ 3.50E+03 +1 -----~ -Q) 3.00E+03 +1 -----~ 

N 
o 2.50E+03 +1 -----~ 
U 
~ 2.00E+03 

.8 1.50E+03 +1 ------
to) 

~ 1.00E+03 +1------
Q) 

E 5.00E+02 +1 -------1 - O.OOE+OO +1 ------r~-~,---' 

,,0"" 
~v-\c; 

0"" .,,(} 0"" .(} 

~ef 
~2;-0 

~q;.:' 
o' 

*"" >:-Cij c; 
",,0 ",,0 

1}"" r_e;. « 

,:c,."" ,:c,."" 0"" 
0-0 0-0 0<:::' 

>:-0 >:-0 if' 
~o 1f 1f 

~O 
*"" c; >:-0 ",,0 1} 

'1>"" 0 

0"" 
0<:::' 0"" <ov0 

0"" <ovCj 
O~ 

~O'" 
>:-0 

>:-0 
",,1f 

if 

>:-0 
",,1f 

if 
",,0 1f ",,0 



~ 

N 
o 

Off-Road Vehicle Emissions 

Light 
Commercial 

10% 

Lawn and Garden 

Lawnand~ 
Garden .. 

Landscaping and maintenance 



121 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

Gn' ()[ 

~ DELL 

For Meeting of: July 1, 2014 

To: City Council 

From: 

Through: 

Kevin Caldwel" Community Development Director e 
Jim S~, City Manager 

Date: June 19, 2014 

Subject: Establish Residential Multifamily Zoning and General Plan Designations, 
redesignate approximately 8.7 acres from Urban Residential to Residential 
Multifamily, redesignate the City parking lot from Town Center to Public Facility 
and the establishment of Emergency SheltersiTransitional Housing Regulations. 

Recommendation: 

That the City Council: 

1. Receive staff's report regarding the proposed text amendment; 

2. Re-Open the public hearing, receive public input, and deliberate; and 

3. Approve and adopt Ordinance No. 321-2014 and Resolution No. 1220-2014 to: 

A. Establish a Residential Multifamily (RM) Zoning and General Plan Designation; and 

B. Redesignate approximately 8.7 acres from Urban Residential to Residential 
Multifamily; and 

C. RedeSignate the downtown City Parking Lot from Town Center to Public Facility; and 

D. Amend Table 1-1 of the General Plan, Rio Dell Land Use Designation Acreage 
Distribution, to refiect the above mapping changes; and 

E. Amend Table 1-2 of the General Plan to include the Residential Multifamily 
designation; and 

2014 Quanerly General Plan Amendments and Zone Reclassifications July 1. 2014 

122 



F. Amend Section 17.10 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC), Definitions, to include 
Emergency Shelters and Transitional Housing; and 

G. Establish Emergency Shelters and Transitional Housing Regulations, Section 
17.30.079 of the RDMC 

4. Direct the City Clerk, within 15 days after adoption of the Ordinance and Resolution, to 
post an adoption summary of the Ordinance and Resolution with the names of those City 
Council members voting for or against, or otherwise voting in at least three (3) public 
places and to post in the office of the City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the 
adopted Ordinance pursuant to Section 36933(a) of the California Government Code. 

Discussion: 

Staff introduced Ordinance No. 321-2014 and Resolution No. 1220-2014 at the City Council 
meeting of June 17, 2014. The Ordinance and Resolution establishes a Residential Multifamily 
designation with a maximum density of 15 dwelling units per acre as required by the State. The 
amendments also include redeSignating approximately 8.7 acres from Urban Residential to 
Residential Multifamily, redesignating the downtown City Parking Lot from Town Center to 
Public Facility, amending Tables 1-1 and 1-2 of the General Plan reflecting the Residential 
Multifamily designation and the mapping changes. The amendments also include establishing 
Emergency Sheitersrrransitional Housing regulations as required by the State (SB 2) and to 
include the definition of Emergency Sheitersrrransitional Housing in Definitions provisions of the 
Zoning Regulations. 

Plan and Zone Amendment Required Findings: 

1. The proposed amendments are deemed to be in the public interest. 

The State has determined that the City must have a minimum density of up to fifteen (15) units 
per acre for multifamily developments. State policies and regulations are deemed to be in the 
public interest. In addition, providing greater densities for multifamily development typically 
results in a more completive housing market helping maintain and in fac! sometimes reducing 
housing costs. 

Redesignating the City Parking Lot downtown from Town Center to Public Facility is in the 
public interest, because the Public Facility designation is intended to be applied to City and 
other government owned lands (i.e. Schools, Utilities, Fire Stations, etc.). 

Amending Tables 1-1 and 1-2 of the General Plan is in the public interest because it ensures 
that the amendments are consistent with other applicable portions of the General Plan. 

As required by Senate Bill 2 (SB 2) establishing Emergency Shelters and Transitional Housing 
regulations has also been deemed by the State to be in the public interest. Furthermore, 
establishing definitions and performance standards to help minimize potential impacts is also in 
the public interest. 

2014 Quarterly General Plan Amendments and Zone Reciassifications July 1, 2014 

123 



2. The proposed amendments are consistent and compatible with the rest of the General 
Plan and any implementation programs that may be affected. 

As previously discussed in order to ensure overall consistency with the General Plan, Tables 1-
1 and 1-2 must be amended to reflect the recommended land use changes. 
The establishment of Emergency Shelters and Transitional Housing opportunities is consistent 
with Policies C-1 and C-2 of the Housing element. In addition, item B-40fthe Housing 
Element's Action Plan requires the City to enact regulations implementing SB 2. 

With these recommended changes, staff believes the amendments are consistent with an 
overall comprehensive view of the General Plan. 

3. The potential impacts of the proposed amendments have been assessed and have 
been determined not to be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare. 

There is no evidence to suggest that the proposed amendments would be detrimental to the 
public health, safety or welfare. 

The proposed Urban Residential to Residential Multifamily redesignation will have little if any 
impact to the parcels and the surrounding properties. Five of the six parcels are already 
developed and there have been preliminary discussions with a local developer regarding the 
development of a twenty-six (26) unit senior housing project. Although there is a possibility of 
an agency establishing an Emergency ShelterrTransitional Housing on the vacant parcel, staff 
believes the recommended operational standards will minimize potential impacts to the area. 

Redesignating the City Parking Lot from Town Center to Public Facility will not result in nay on 
the ground changes. The parcel is currently used as a parking lot and will continue to be used 
as a parking lot. 

The other text amendments to Tables 1-1 and 1-2 of the General Plan are also very minor and 
there is no evidence or reason to believe that they would be detrimental to the public health, 
safety or welfare. 

4. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA). 

The primary purpose of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is to inform the 
decision makers and the public of potential environmental effects of a proposed project. 

Urban Residential to Residential Multifamily: All but one of the parcels to be redesignated 
from Urban Residential (UR) to Residential Multifamily (RM) is developed. Currently 
development of the vacant parcel is Categorically Exempt pursuant to Section 15332 (In-Fill 
Development) of the CEQA Guidelines. Based on Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines, the 
proposed amendments are Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 15061 (b)(3) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations. 

Town Center to Public Facility: The property is currently used for a public parking lot and will 
continue to be used as a public parking lot. There will be no change in the use of the property. 

2014 Quarterly General Plan Amendments and Zone Reclassifications July 1. 2014 

124 



Based on the nature of the project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter3 of the California 
Code of Regulations, Pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption 
is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment Where it can be seen with certainty that there 
is no possibility that the project in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
project is not subject to CEQA 

Emergency Shelters and Transitional Housing Regulations: Pursuant to Sate law the use 
must be principally permitted and as such is considered a ministerial project Pursuant to 
Section 15268 of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of 
Regulations the project is statutorily exempt In addition, the development of the vacant parcel 
is Categorically Exempt pursuant to Section 15332 (In-Fill Development) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, Based on Sections 15268 and 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines, the proposed 
amendments are Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations, 

Financial Impact 

The City is responsible for the costs associated with processing the proposed amendments, 
The staff time associated with the processing of the amendment is included in the current 
budget Therefore, no additional budget costs will be incurred, 

Exhibits/Attachments: 

Attachment 1, Ordinance No, 321-2014 and Resolution No, 1220-2014 implementing the 
recommended changes, 

Attachment 2: Post Adoption Summary 

2014 Quarterly General Plan Amendments and Zone Reclassifications July 1, 2014 

125 



ORDINANCE NO. 321- 2014 

01YOf 

~ DELL 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL (1) 

ESTABLISHING A RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY ZONING DESIGNATION, SECTION 

17.20.035 OF THE RIO DElL MUNICIPAL CODE; (2) A ZONE RECLASSIFICATION 

REDESIGNATING APPROXIMATELY 8.7 ACRES FROM URBAN RESIDENTIAL TO 

RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY; (3) A ZONE REClASSIFICATION REDESIGNATING THE 

DOWNTOWN CITY PARKING LOT FROM TOWN CENTER TO PUBLIC FACILITY; (4) 

ESTABLISHING EMERGENCY SHELTERS/TRANSITIONAL HOUSING REGULATIONS, 

SECTION 17.30.079 OF THE RIO DELL MUNICIPAL CODE; (5) AMENDING SECTION 17.10 

OF THE RIO DElL MUNICIPAL CODE, DEFINITIONS TO INCLUDE EMERGENCY 

SHELTERS/TRANSITIONAL HOUSING. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DElL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) recently 
informed the City that the minimum density for multifamily development is required to be 15 
units per acre; and 

WHEREAS the City is required to establish a land use designation allowing up to 15 units per 
acre prior to the State's approval the updated Housing Element; and 

WHEREAS the City does not currently have a residential multifamily land use deSignation; and 

WHEREAS the Urban Residential designation does allow attached dwelling units (multifamily 
development) and a density of up to ten (10) units per acre; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommended that six (6) parcels along Rigby Avenue and 
Center Street be redesignated from Urban Residential (UR) to Residential Multifamily (RM); and 

WHEREAS the purpose of the Residential Multifamily or RM zone is to provide land suitable for 
higher density residential uses; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommended that the Residential Multifamily designation 
allow a density of up to fifteen (15) units per acre; and 

2014 Quarterly Amendmenl Ordinance No, 321-7014 

ATTACHMENT 1 126 



WHEREAS in order to ensure the recommended establishment of a Residential Multifamily 
designation and redesignation of the six (6) parcels are consistent with the General Plan, Tables 
1-1 and 1-2 must be amended to accordingly; and 

WHEREAS it was recently brought to staff's attention that the downtown City parking lot is 
currently designated Town Center; and 

WHEREAS all other public lands within the City are designated Public Facility; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommended that the City parking lot be redesignated to 
Public Facility; and 

WHEREAS in order to ensure the recommended redesignation of the City parking lot from Town 
Center to Public Facility is consistent with the General Plan, Table 1-1 must also be amended; 

and 

WHEREAS in January 2008 the State of California enacted Senate Bill 2 (SB 2), which called for 
changes to the Government Code as it relates to zoning for emergency homeless shelters and 
transitional and supportive housing; and 

WHEREAS 5B 2 mandates that cities and counties statewide to bring their zoning ordinances 
into conformance with the new state requirements; and 

WHEREAS the purpose of the 5B 2 revisions was to support the needs of the homeless by 
removing barriers to and increasing opportunities for development and/or operation of 
emergency shelters and transitional and supportive housing facilities in California; and 

WHEREAS all cities and counties must identify one or more specific zones where emergency 
shelters are principally permitted without the need for a conditional use permit or other 
discretionary action; and 

WHEREAS transitional and supportive housing must be explicitly identified as principally 
permitted residential uses and subject to the same development standards and permitting 
procedures as traditional residential uses 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommended that emergency homeless shelters and 
transitional and supportive housing be principally permitted in the residential Multifamily zone; 

and 

WHEREAS State law allows local jurisdictions to set the same operational standards for 
emergency shelters such that apply to residential or commercial development within the same 
zone except that the City may apply written, objective standards that include all of the items 
allowed by the State and listed in the Housing Element policy; and 

2014 Quarterly Amendment Ordinance No, 321-2014 

127 



WHEREAS the purpose of the recommended operational standards is to help minimize potential 
adverse impacts to surrounding property owners; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendments in conformance 
with Sections 65350 - 65362 of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that 
the proposed amendments are in the public interest, are consistent and compatible with the 
General Plan and any implementation programs that may be affected, are not detrimental to 
the public health, safety and welfare; and 

WHEREAS the proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does hereby 
ordain as follows: 

Section 1. 

Establishment of Section 17.20.035 Residential Multifamily or RM Zone 

The purpose of the Residential Multifamily or RM zone is to provide land suitable for higher 
density residential uses. The following regulations shall apply in all Residential Multifamily or 
RM zones: 

(1) Principal Permitted Uses. 

(a) Detached Single-family dwellings, multiple dwellings and dwelling groups; 

(b) Community Care Facility for six (6) or fewer individuals; 

(c) Family Day Care Home for twelve (12) or fewer children, including children who reside at the 
residence; 

(d) Emergency Shelters/Transitional Housing subject to the operational standards in Section 
17.30.100; 

(2) Uses Permitted with a Use Permit. 

(a) Mobilehome and Recreational Vehicle Parks; 

(b) Community Care Facility for seven (7) or more individuals; 

2014 Quarterly Amendment Ordinance No. 321·2014 

128 



(c) Family Day Care Home for twelve (13) or more children, including children who reside at the 
residence; 

(d) Public and private non-commercial recreation facilities; 

(e) Churches, civic and cultural uses 

(f) Any use not specifically enumerated if it is similar to and compatible with the uses permitted 
in the zone 

(3) Other Regulations. See Table 17.20.140 for development standards for the Residential 
Multifamily (RM) zone. 

Table 17.20.035 
Development Standards for the Residential Multifamily or RM Zone 

Site Development Standard Zone Requirement 

Minimum Lot Area: 6,000 square feet, but not less than 600 square feet for each 
dwelling unit 

Maximum Ground Coverage: 60% 

Minimum Lot Width: 60 feet 

Minimum Yards 

Front: 

Rear: 

Side: 

Exterior Side: 

Double Frontage lots 

Special Yards for Multiple 

Dwellings on the Same lot 

20 feet 

10 feet 

5 feet 

Same as the front or one-half (1/2) the front if all parts of the 
main building(s) are more than twenty-five (25) feet from the 
rear lot line and the exterior side yard does not abut a collector 
or higher order street. (In questionable cases the Public Works 
Director shall classify the subject street.) 

Front and rear twenty (20 feet, except the rear yard setbacks 
may be reduced to ten (10) feet where such yard abuts an alley. 

• The distance between separate dwelling units in a group on the 
same lot shall be not less than ten feet (10'). 
• The distance between the front of any dwelling unit in the 
group and any other building shall be not less than twenty feet 
(20'). 

• The distance between the front of any dwelling unit in the 
group and any side lot line shall be not less than twelve feet (12'). 
• All of the above distances shall be increased by two feet (2') for 
each two feet (2') that any building on the lot exceeds two (2) 

2014 Quarterly Amendment Ordinance No. 321-2014 

129 



stories. 

Maximum Building Height: 45 feet 

All new multifamily The following Design Concepts apply to the review of residential 
development is subject to the multi-family development. The City encourages: 
City's Design Review 
regulations, Section 17.25.050 • Mass, scale and architecture which is compatible with existing 

and adjacent neighborhoods. The intent is to encourage 
appropriate transitions between uses and structures of varying 
residential density and a general compatibility of architectural 
styles. 

Section 2. 

Zoning Map Amendments 

• Original designs that are tailored to the site and discourage 
monotonous or institutional type bUildings and site design. 
• Site designs that preserve, enhance and incorporate the 
significant natural features of a site as an element within the 
overall design. 
• High quality building designs that consist of durable and 
maintainable materials for the exterior treatment of the 
buildings that complement the building mass and articulation. 
• The establishment of a streetscape presence and appearance 
through setbacks, landscaping, building placement, and 
architecture that defines the pedestrian and vehicular corridor 
and presents an appealing and continuous theme along a 
sidewalk, street or trail. 
• Landscaping that softens the appearance of pavement and 
structures, and provides an eventual tree canopy along the 
street and pedestrian walkways. 
• Ensure that design provisions do not preclude the 
development of multifamily housing affordable to all income 
levels. 

Section 17.15.030 (Zoning Map) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended to 
redesignate Assessor Parcel Numbers (APN's) 052-312-002, -004, -005, -011, -012 & -013 as 
shown in Exhibit A from Urban Residential to Residential Multifamily. 

Section 17.15.030 (Zoning Map) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended to 
redesignate Assessor Parcel Numbers (APN) 053-141-021 as shown in Exhibit B from Town 
Center to Public Facility. 

2014 Quarterly Amendment Ordinance No 321-2014 

130 



Section 3. Establishment of Section 17.30.079 Emergency Shelter/Transitional Housing 
Regulations 

1. Purpose 

It is the purpose of this section to prescribe standards and regulations for the establishment 
and ongoing operation of emergency homeless shelters/transitional housing to protect the 
public health and safety from conflicting uses and to ensure that shelters provide appropriate 
services to the homeless. 

2. Permit Requirements 

The following prescribes the permit requirements for emergency shelter/transitional housing. 

(a) An emergency homeless shelter/transitional housing that meet the standards of subsection 
3 of this section is exempt from a Conditional Use Permit. A conditional use permit may be 
granted from the planning commission for deviations to the development and management 
standards. The Planning Commission must make findings for use permits pursuant to Section 
17.35.030 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) 

3. Development Standards. 

(a) Prior to commencing operation, the emergency shelter/transitional housing shall comply 
with the following standards: 

(b) Distance Separation Requirements. No emergency shelter/transitional housing shall be 
located within three hundred (300) feet of any other emergency shelter. 

(c) Occupancy. An emergency shelter/transitional housing shall not exceed twenty·five 
(25) residents, excluding staff. 

(d) Length of Occupancy. Any single resident's stay shall not exceed six consecutive months. 

(e) Zone Specific Development Standards. An emergency shelter/transitional housing shall 
comply with all development standards of the zoning district in which it is located except as 
modified by these standards. 

(f) Parking Requirements. Every emergency shelter/transitional housing shall provide one 
parking space for every staff member or volunteer on duty and one parking space for every 
five (5) beds. The Director of Community Development may reduce the parking requirements 
if the shelter can demonstrate a lower need. 

(g) Intake/Waiting Area. There shall be an adequate intake and waiting area inside the 
building 50 that prospective and current residents are not required to wait on sidewalks or 
any other public rights of way. 

2014 Quarterly Amendment Ordinance No. 321·2014 

131 



(h) Screening. An outside waiting and recreation area adequate in size to serve the residents 
shall be fenced and screened from view. 

(i) Individual Space. Each resident shall be provided a minimum of 50 gross square feet of 
living space (per 2013 California Building Code for the dormitories function of Table 
1004.1.1)' not including space within common areas. 

(j) Security. Security shall be provided on site during hours of operation. 

(k) Staffing. On-site management by at least one emergency shelter staff member shall be 
provided at all times while residents are present at the shelter. 

(I) lighting. Shelter lighting shall be provided on all exterior walls, and shall be directed 
downward. 

4. Management 

Prior to commencing operation, the emergency shelter/transitional housing provider must have 
a written management plan, approved by the community development director, confirming 
that the following items (at a minimum) are provided for: 

(a) Stafftraining; 

(b) Staff TB screening in compliance with Humboldt County Health Department standards; 

(c) Resident identification process; 

(d) Neighborhood outreach; 

(e) Policies regarding pets; 

(f) The timing and placement of outdoor activities; 

(g) Temporary storage of residents' personal belongings; 

(h) Safety and security. 

Section 4 Establishment of the definition of Emergency Shelter/Transitional Housing 

Section 17.10.010, Definitions, of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended to include the 
following definition: 

"Emergency Shelter/Transitional Housing" means housing with minimal supportive services for 
homeless persons that is limited to occupancy of six months or less by a homeless person. No 
individual or household may be denied emergency shelter because of an inability to pay. 

2014 Quarterly Amendment Ordinance No. 321-2014 

132 



Section 5 Severability 

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 6. limitation of Actions 

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds 
shall be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of 
this ordinance. 

Section 7. Effective Date 

This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Rio Dell on June 17, 2014 and furthermore the forgoing Ordinance 
was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio 
Dell, held on the July 1, 2014 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Jack Thompson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 321-2014 which was passed, 
approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, held on 
the July 1, 2014. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

2014 Ouarterly Amendment Ordinance No. 321-2014 

133 



)5221112 

I ,--------- ~.-~-~-~-~-~ , 
I , 

\, , 
\ 
\ 

\ , , 
\ 

\ 

\\ 
[ll'V I:; ,,'1' ~ 

I 

2014 Quarterly General Plan Amendments and Zone Reclassifications 

Urban Residential to Residential Multifamily 

Urban Residential to Residential Multifamily 

EXHIBIT A 

C52191(W 

134 



OTY 01 

~ DELL 

7 

·~~:;;l:;'''> 
I~---- ~ --- ~--{ 

2014 Quarterly General Plan Amendments and Zone Reclassifications 

City Parking lot from Town Center to Public Facility 

APN 053-141-021 

City Parking Lot Town Center to Public Facility 

EXHIBIT B 

[F 

135 



RESOLUTION NO. 1220 - 2014 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL (1) A GENERAL PLAN 

ESTABLISHING A RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION; (2) A 

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT REDESIGNATING APPROXIMATELY 8.7 ACRES FROM 

URBAN RESIDENTIAL TO RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY; (3) A GENERAL PLAN 

AMENDMENT REDESIGNATING THE DOWNTOWN CITY PARKING LOT FROM TOWN 

CENTER TO PUBLIC FACILITY; (4) A GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT AMENDING TABLE 1-

1 OF THE GENERAL PLAN, RIO DELL LAND USE DESIGNATION ACREAGE DISTRIBUTION, 

TO REFLECT THE MAPPING CHANGES; (S) A GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT AMENDING 

TABLE 1-2 OF THE GENERAL PLAN TO INCLUDE THE RESIDENTIAL MULTIFAMILY 

DESIGNATION: 

WHEREAS the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) recently 
informed the City that the minimum density for multifamily development is required to be 15 
units per acre; and 

WHEREAS the City is required to establish a land use designation allowing up to 15 units per 
acre prior to the State's approval the updated Housing Element; and 

WHEREAS the City does not currently have a residential multifamily land use designation; and 

WHEREAS the Urban Residential designation does allow attached dwelling units (multifamily 
development) and a density of up to ten (10) units per acre; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommended that six (6) parcels along Rigby Avenue and 
Center Street be redesignated from Urban Residential (UR) to Residential Multifamily (RM); and 

WHEREAS the purpose of the Residential Multifamily or RM zone is to provide land suitable for 
higher density residential uses; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommended that the Residential Multifamily designation 
allow a density of up to fifteen (15) units per acre; and 

Resolution No. 1220·2014 Quarterly Amendments July 1, 2014 

ATTACHMENT 2 136 



WHEREAS in order to ensure the recommended establishment of a Residential Multifamily 
designation and redesignation of the six (6) parcels are consistent with the General Plan, Tables 
1-1 and 1-2 must be amended to accordingly; and 

WHEREAS it was recently brought to staff's attention that the downtown City parking lot is 
currently designated Town Center; and 

WHEREAS all other public lands within the City are designated Public Facility; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommended that the City parking lot be redesignated to 
Public Facility; and 

WHEREAS in order to ensure the recommended redesignation of the City parking lot from Town 
Center to Public Facility is consistent with the General Plan, Table 1-1 must also be amended; 
and 

WHEREAS in January 2008 the State of California enacted Senate Bill 2 (58 2), which called for 
changes to the Government Code as it relates to zoning for emergency homeless shelters and 
transitional and supportive housing; and 

WHEREAS SB 2 mandates that cities and counties statewide to bring their zoning ordinances 
into conformance with the new state requirements; and 

WHEREAS the purpose of the SB 2 revisions was to support the needs of the homeless by 
removing barriers to and increasing opportunities for development and/or operation of 
emergency shelters and transitional and supportive housing facilities in California; and 

WHEREAS all cities and counties must identify one or more specific zones where emergency 
shelters are principally permitted without the need for a conditional use permit or other 
discretionary action; and 

WHEREAS transitional and supportive housing must be explicitly identified as principally 
permitted residential uses and subject to the same development standards and permitting 
procedures as traditional residential uses 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommended that emergency homeless shelters and 
transitional and supportive housing be principally permitted in the residential Multifamily zone; 

and 

WHEREAS State law allows local jurisdictions to set the same operational standards for 
emergency shelters such that apply to residential or commercial development within the same 
zone except that the City may apply written, objective standards that include all of the items 
allowed by the State and listed in the Housing Element policy; and 

Resolution No. 1220-2014 Quarterly Amendments July 1, 2014 

137 



WHEREAS the purpose of the recommended operational standards is to help minimize potential 
adverse impacts to surrounding property owners; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendments in conformance 
with Sections 65350 - 65362 of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that 
the proposed amendments are in the public interest, are consistent and compatible with the 
General Plan and any implementation programs that may be affected, are not detrimental to 
the public health, safety and welfare; and 

WHEREAS the proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell finds that: 

L The proposed amendments are in the public interest; and 

2. The proposed amendments are consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific 
plan; and 

3. The proposed amendments are not detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare; and 

4. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA) 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of the City of Rio Dell approves the 
following General Plan Amendments to: 

1. Establish a Residential Multifamily (RM) General Plan land Use Designation; and 

2. Redesignate approximately 8.7 acres from Urban Residential to Residential Multifamily as 

shown in Exhibit A; and 

3. Redesignate the downtown City Parking Lot from Town Center to Public Facility as shown in 

Exhibit B; and 

4. Amend Table 1-1 of the General Plan as shown in Exhibit C, Rio Dell Land Use DeSignation 

Acreage Distribution, to reflect the above mapping changes; and 

Resolution No. 1220-2014 Quarterly Amendments July 1. 2014 

138 



5. Amend Table 1-2 of the General Plan as shown in Exhibit D to include the Residential 

Multifamily designation; and 

6. Find that the proposed amendments are Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) 

of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was PASSED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting 

of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on July 1, 2014 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 
ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Jack Thompson, Mayor 

ATIEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 1220-2014 adopted by the 

City Council of the City of Rio Dell on July 1, 2014. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Resolution No. 1220-2014 Quarterly Amendments July 1. 2014 

139 



,-
"~~-'--t) I~-------·~-- -

//t/ I (f)~,i~W~I~'.? 
\ til I \ , \ 

" 

\ l' [ill \_... I 1 \05.2.30112. I I 
--= ---'-<:-&N< ... - .L..J. 

I U 
C~2, 1213 r :6231211 

, 
r L .--------. 

\ , 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 

L?l.1!l5 51' 

\ 
\ , 
\ 

\ , 
I 

I 
! , 

2014 Quarterly General Plan Amendments and Zone Reclassifications 

Urban Residential to Residential Multifamily 

Urban Residential to Residential Multifamily 

EXHIBIT A 140 



Cf:[J1\R ST . 

H.-l-/UN.orr P0 

2014 Quarterly General Plan Amendments and Zone Reclassifications 

City Parking lot from Town Center to Public Facility 

APN 053-141-021 

City Parking Lot Town Center to Public Facility 

EXHIBIT 8 

DF 

141 



City of Rio Dell General Plan 
Table 1·1 Rio Dell Land Use Designation Acreage Distribution 

Land Use Designation 
Citv sal I Total 

Acreage % Acreage I, % Acreage I % 
R I Rural --'--~~~~--~+-=3'=34C:',:::0= 21,2% 160 100% 494.0 I 28.6% 
SL I Suburban Low i 250.9 16.3% 0 0.0% 250.9 I 14.6% 
SM I Suburban Medium I 0 0.0% I 0 0.0% I 0 I 0.0% 

l§£LJ Suburban Residential , 6.0 I 0.3% I 0 I 0.0% 6.0 i 0.3% 
I UR I Urban Residential I ~ ~ I 0 I 0.0% 1 ~ 1 21 .0% 
L-! I 352.3 f 22.370 I ~ __ '_jl_, 1 352,3 I 20.270 

I~t' ReSidential Multifami!Y. __ [ 8.7,_ I .005Vo I . J. 8.7 I .005Ya 
TC Town Center 1 +Q;l. I 0.8%! ' 0 I 0.0% i 10.7 i 0.6% 

I ' 110.5 ___ .! I ~_+ 10.51 ::-=:C;--1 
IC !Neighborhood Comm'ercial I 6.0 I 0.3% I ~ 0.0% L 6.0 I 0.3% 

CC I Community Commercial 133.0 -,,J 2.1 % I 0 : 0.91Ll~ 33.0 I 1.9% 
, I Industrial lOt 0.0% I 0 I 0.0% I 0 I 0.0% rc- I Industrial Commercial -_J 95.0 _ 16Jl%T=--=-~-'~+~J.O'Yo+-- 95.QT5:5%l 
~NR _+Natural Resources ___ ,--. 183.0, 111.6% i, 0 I 0.0% i_ 183.0110.5% i 
I PF 'I' Public Facility i 2B4 I 1.6% I 0 1 0.0% I, 2B4 I, 1.4% I 
. I I I , 

i=:- iB2.aJlBights of Way/River T~~O -ri'6.8%-t==~=~ 0 I o.(io~t 2~::~ i 15.3% I 
[!otals~ ___ , ___ ' __ ' __ ' __ ~78.9J,100% 1160 _, __ ,~% I 1738.9 ,100%j 

2014 Quarterly General Plan Amendments and Zone Reclassifications 

8.7 Acres Urban Residential to Residential Multifamily 

.24 Acres City Parking Lot from Town Center to Public Facility 

2014 Quarterly General Plan Amendments and Zone Reclassifications June 17. 2014 

EXHIBIT C 142 



City of Rio Dell General Plan 
Table 1·2 General Plan Land Use Designations 

Residential Multifamily (RM) Designation 

Permitted Uses """,,,,UrT' .?p~~ Lot Size 

Detached single-family dwellings, multiple 
dwellings and dwelling groups; 

Community Care Facility for six (6) or fewer 
individuals; 

Family Day Care Home for twelve (12) or fewer 
children, including children who reside at the 6,000 50% 
residence; square 

feel 
Transitional housing and emergency shelters, average 
subject to the operational standards in Section 
17.30.100. 

Mobilehome and Recreational Vehicle Parks; 

Community Care Facility for seven (7) or more 
individuals; 

Family Day Care Home for twelve (13) or more 
children, including children who reside at the 
residence; 

Public and private non-commercial recreation 
facilities; 

Churches, civic and cultural uses. 

Any use not specifically enumerated if it is similar 
to and compatible with the uses permitted in the 
zone, 

Ub"~:~, 
FAR* B~~~~r 

15 units Maximum 
per acre 3 stories 

or 45 feet 

2014 Quarterly General Plan Amendments and Zone Reciassifications June 17. 2014 

EXHIBIT 0 143 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(TO?) 764·3532 

Public Notice 
City of Rio Dell City Council 

SUMMARY FOR POSTING AFTER ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 

(The summary shuH be published or posted within 15 cillendm days after the adoption of the ordinance) 

Summary 

On Tuesday, July 1, 2014 at 6:30 p.m .. Ihe RIo Dell City Council held a public hearing in Ihe 

City Council Chamber at City Hall and approved and adopted Ordinance No. 321·2014 and 

Resolution No. 1220~2014. The Ordinance and Resolution es!abfishes a Residential 

MultifamHy designation with a maximum density of 15 dwelling units per acre as required by the 

Slate. The amendments also include redesignating approximately 8.7 acres from Urban 

Resldentlallo Residentral Multifamily. redesignating the downtown City Parking Lot from Town 

Center to Public Facility; amending Tables 1-1 and 1*2 of the Genera! Plan reflecting the 

Residential Multifamily designation and the mapping changes, The amendments also include 

establishing Emergency Shelters/Transitional Housing regulations as required by the State (S8 

2) and to include the definition of Emergency SheJlersrrransitional Hous"lng in Definitions 

provisions of the Zoning Regulations 

Section 36933(a) of the California Government Code requires that the City Clerk, to post a 

summary of the Ordinance within 15 days of adoption with the names of those City Council 

members voting for or against, or other\Nise voting in at leas! three (3) public places and to post 

in the office of the City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the adopted Ordrnance. Said 

Ordinance was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of RIO Dell. held on the July 1. 2014 by the following vote 

AYES 

NOES 

ABSENT 

ABSTAIN 

A certified copy of the full text of the Ordinance and Resolution is posted in the office of the City 

Clerk at 675 Wildwood Avenue in Rio Del!. General questions regarding the Ordinance, 

Resolution and the process should be directed to Kevin Caldweli, Community Development 

Director. (707) 764-3532. 

2011 QuartLT~\' Amendment Summary 

ATTACHMENT 3 144 



Rio Dell 
675 Wi,ltI""fM,tI renue 

J lIne 24. 2104 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Jim S~. City Manager 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing and Second Reading of Wastewater Ordinance 322-2014 
concel11ing the removal of wastewater fees from the City Municipal Code 
Ordinance for placement in Resolution 1222-2014. and when to pay ttlr new 
conncction fees. 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

I. Open the continued public hearing for the second reading (by title only) of 
Ordinance 322-2014 to amend Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) Section 
13.10.130, noting when wastewater fees are due and transferring wastewater fee 
authority from the Rio Dell Municipal Code to Resolution 1222-2014. and 

") Receive public testimony and then close the public hearing. and 
3. Adopt Ordinance 322-2014. effective 30 days after a summary of the Ordinance is 

posted. 

BACKGROU0ID AND DISCUSSION 

On June 17.2014 the Rio Dell City Council opened the puhlic hearing on Ordinance 322-2014 
and conducted the tlrst reading of the Ordinance hy title only. Council Members asked that 
amendments he made to Section 13.10.230 of Ordinance 322-2014 (3) to delete reference to 
supplying sewer sen'ice to customers outside of the City as there arc no cllstomers outside of the 
City limits and there is no plan to offer sewer service there. 

By way of recap. on May 20. 2014 the City Council by motion and unanimous vote accepted 
staffs recommendation on the proposed wastewater rate study as sct t(Hih in the May 14.2014 
rate study by Bartle Wells Associates. As you know. the recommendation was to change the 
wastewater rates trom a lixed $76.16 month to a rate structure of 70(J·" llxed (S4 7.01 Imonth) and 
3()o'(J'month detenl1ined by volume and strength of water usage. based on the survey month of the 
preceding December. January and February. The Council adopted companion Fee Resolution 
1222-2014 on JUlle 17.2014. 

145 



Ordinance 322-2014 proposes minor changes to Section 13.10,130 of the RDNlC, deleting the 
fee language conccming fees for new sewer connection, in favor of establishing them in 
Resolution 1222-2014. 

The second minor amendment to Section 13.10.130 provides that connection fees are payable 
when the building pennit application is filed, prior to construction. 

The third minor amendment to Section 13.10.230 (3) of the RD:VIC was mentioned abO\'c and 
concems providing services outside of the City limits. 

Ordinance 322-2014 is attached and becomes effective 30 days after adoption and the posting of 
a summary of the Ordinance. 

Attachment: Ordinance 322-2014, amending RDNIC Section 13.10.130 & 13.10.230 (3). 

2 

146 



3 

147 



ORDINANCE 322-2014 

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell adopted Resolution 1222-2014 on June 17,2014 
to establish new wastewater fees based on volume. to be ertective August 1, 2014, 
and 

WHEREAS, Rio Dell Municipal Code Section 13.10.130 contains wastewater 
fees for new connections that are included in Resolution 1222-2014. thus making 
the Section obsolete, and 

WHEREAS, the Rio Dell i\lunicipal Code needs to be amended t" establish that 
the City Council tnU)/ adopt sewer fees and charges by Resolution from time to 
time as they deem appropriate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council orRio Dell 
does hereby ordain as !t)llow:-;: 

Section 1. Amendments 

Chapter 13.1 0 
SEWER RATES AND REGULA nONS 

Section.;: 

Arttck L In General 

13. to.OlO Ddinltion,~, 

13.10.020 [kpartI11etl! rules and rcgulatlons ;...roJd~'ing fates, 

13.10.030 Settit:me!1t of lbputc:-> kt\\l'cl1 consumer Jnd City. 

13.10,040 Repcakd. 

13.10.050 Connection..; prohihitcd 

13.10.060 DIstance of sen er or gel" sen icl' from \\ ;:lIer st:f\ ict:, 

13.iQ,070 RepJirs to sc\\er hnes by the City. 

13. iQ,080 Shutting off v"ate!". 

148 



13.10.090 RighI of entry of City employees for the purpose of milking inspections. 

13.10.100 Tuming \\atcr off Of on in an cmergcnc) Rendering sc\\t'r senic!! inopcrah!e. 

13.10.110 l'nl,-m ful use. injury. etc., of equipment. 

13.10.120 Application for scnice Form. 

13.10.130 Fecs for nc\\ s\.!\\er sen ice connections. 

13.1 0.140 Charges for installlng SC\\!:f scn icc.';. 

Article II. Connections lnsta!btion of Scr\ icc 

13.10.150 InsLl!btions and connc.:tJons oUhidc City ];mih. 

13.10.160 Reconncction fees. 

13.1 0.1 70 Pn:rt:'quisi!es tu multiple sen ice conn(!ctions, 

13 .10.180 t' sc of SC\\ er by contr J.etors and other pcrsPlls cngJgcd in c\)!htructlon \\ ork. 

13.10.190 Supplying tu other dun occupant of premises. 

13.1O.200 Cunsul11(,[s tn accept sen icc conditiOlh, 

13.10.212 Se\\er s~...;tcm n:qutn:d. 

13.10.210 Buiidmg ~t:\\ns, ]dlcrab and connection, 

Article Ill. !tJtcs, Charges and Billing 

Ibtc~, charg;::.; Jnd hi!ling~_ 

13.lO240 Dlscontmu;JjKc of scn ice f;Jl" nonpay11lt.:1H 

13. to. 150 Procedure for rc.;wring scn i.:c aftcr ddmquen.::. 

13.10.251 Pretrealment charges and fees 

Art!clc IV. Sen ices 

To remain ( 

One "en· ice to lot or pared of land ['(ceptilln. 

149 



13.10.280 Connr:ction sen ier: pipe to system Premisr:s to be letl as originally found upon 
completion of tests l\otiee to Cit~ Liability ofp!umber and customer. 

13.10.290 Bill to he rr:mk'red aner conncction, 

13.10.300 Li3bllity of customer for damages to s)stem. 

13.10.310 Cutting off or interfering \\ lth se\\ er scn ice. 

13.10.320 Application for storring se\\cr s.:nice bill to be renden:d, 

13.10.330 :\uisa!1ce ahJkment 

13.10340 Se\\age not to be discharged so as to n~su1t in contamination. pollution or nUisance. 

l3.10.350 Ahatemt:nl of cnntaminatlon, 

13.10.360 bsu3nce ofpen:mptory abatement order Report l\) regional bo;ml Prosl'clltion of 
injunction procccdmgs. 

13.10.370 Discinrge ofsc\\age Dr other \\JS1.: rbulting in contamination a misdemcJllor. 

J3.10.3RO Abatement pmccdurcs. 

13.10.390 Liability. 

13.10.400 Rcpt:Jjt:d. 

;-\rt!ch.; \'. Cieneri11 Se\\er l·sc ReguLltinn:-; 

13.10.410 Dhcharges Critena, 

13.10.420 Prohihition:;, 

13.10.421 Dilution, 

13.10.422 City's right ofrc\j"inrL 

Anidl.! \"1, Prdrt.!<ltmcnt of Wast\.'\\aters 

13.10.425 PretrL'.ltmt:nl and scn:ening, 

13.W.426 Prt:lreatmenr tJt:i1itit.'s. 

I3.i0.427 Additional pretreatment meJSlln:S, 

150 



13.10.428 Accidc!1wl discharge slug control plans< 

13.10.429 Tenant responsibility< 

13.10.430 Haukd \\JS!C\\ ;:HeL 

13.10.431 Fctkr31 catcgnrica! pretreatment stanuarus< 

IntL!rceptor fl.'quin:ment:;, 

13.10.43.l rime of comp!i;mct:. 

13.10.434 \lonitoring and rl.'poning, 

t\nick \'H WJ'itr: Dischargt: Pt:rmit 

13.10.435 Wa-;tc\\cHersunt:y. 

J}.10.43.Q Wa"tl.'\\ater disch,lrg\..· permit requiremt'nis. 

13,10.437 Waste\\ater dIscharge rennit apP]lcation< 

13. HL438 WJSh.'\uter di.,chargt: pCI'm!! deciskl!h< 

13.10.439 DuratIOn o1'pt:r11111 R",h"uJ!1ce. 

1;2.10.440 Permit conknh, 

Appca!s. 

Permit mud!t!.:ation. 

rr cln~l(:r of permit 

Rc\ocation of permit. 

Ani,jc VIII. Reportmg Requiremenh 

('ompliancc schedule prngress rernrt 

Report Oil compllallce \\ilh "alegorical pretreatment ~Ull{brd t!cJdllllCS. 

Penodl<: compliance reports. 

151 



13.10.449 Reports of changed conditions. 

13.10.450 Reports of potentia! prohlems. 

13.10.451 Reports from nonsignificant industrial users. 

13.10.452 X"otice of\!ubtion Repeat samplmg and ft!porting. 

13.10.453 i\otificarion of the discharge ofhJlarUOlls \\Jsk. 

13.10.454 Analytical requirements, 

13.10.455 Sample co!kction Determination ofnoncompltance. 

13.10.456 R,,!cord keeping: 

Article IX. Administral!lm and Fnforcement 

lUOA.rl Duties of City ~fanJ.geL 

13.10.458 Complian..:e monitoring. 

13.10.459 Publication ofindustrta! users in signifit.:ant noncompliance. 

13.10.460 Administrati\ e enforcement remer..lit:s. 

13.lO.461 Judicbl enforcement remedlcs. 

13.10.462 Supplemental cn(on:emenl actions. 

13.10.463 Remedies !llme'\dus\\e. 

13.10.464 Aflirmati\e defenses to dbcharge \iolations. 

13.10.465 Pell.lit). 

13.10.466 Appeal,. 

Artick X. Sc\\cr LUera/Inspection at Time ofSa!c 

13.10.467 frali"ll:r ofprl1pcrt} Jnd testing. 

13.1O.46S Se\\cr IJteral testing, 

13.10.469 Failure of tt.!st. 

152 



Article XL BacUlaw and Clt:anou! Installation 

Article I. In Genera! 

13. Hl.{110 Definitions. 

'"Act" Of ··the Ace means tilt: Federa! Water Pollution Control Act, also kncl\\n JS the Clean 
Watt.:r Act. a:-> amended. 33 l'Se 125l et seq, 

'":\rr!iClnt" mt.:an:->;3O 0\\ ner of property \\ ho applies for sanitar} st.:\\t.:r st.:n ice to such propCl1y 
(hereinafter n:ft:rred to as ··se\\l;:r"), 

Authorized RepresentHi\c oftht: Industrial L"ser, 

(I) [ftlle industria! llser is a corporation. "authorized n:presentati\\.'·· shall meJn' 

(a) The presidenL seCfetlry. trCJsurer, or a \ icc-president of the corporation in charge ofa 
rrin:;:ipal husiness funet!o!1. or any other person \\ho performs similar policy or lkc!sion 1113king 
functions for the corpor~1tion, 

(h) The manager of one or more manu [lCturing, production. or or~rJ.tion facilJticc; prm ided the 
m;mager is authorized to make management dcc!,,,ions that go\cm the operation or the rcgubtd 
Lc1!!ty indudmg h:1\ing the c,\plicii or implicit dut] ofmJking major CJ.pita! imcstmenl 
recommendations, and initiate and direct olher comrrdwnsi\.c mcasun:s to assure long-term 
emlromm:niJ! compJiance \\i!h cmironmenta! !:1\\S Jnd n:gulations; can t::!lsun: that the 
neces:iar) syitcm.,; an.: estahh.;;hed or actions taken to gather complete and Jccura!e information 
for indi\ idual \~ JS!C\\;;llcr discharge pennit or generJl permit requin:ments: and \\ here authority 
tu :iign document:-. has neen J'isigncd or (h:lt:g:lled hl the; managt:r in accoruant:c \\ lth corpl,r;llc 
Jlrm:edure~ 

(:?) lflhe mdu'-,rriaJ u"cr is J partnership, or sDk proprietorship, an authonzed reprc;.;entati\t; shall 
mean J. geneui partner or prorrielor. n:spccli\d)-

(3) ffthe industrial user is a FedcL:d, State or inca] gO\crnmentai facility. an authorized 
n:pfl:sentathc shaH me:m a (hrector or highe;st offkial appointed or desibrnated to o\cr"l'C the 
operation and performance of the aC(I\ itie~ of the gO', emment facility, 

H) The indl\ iduab dcscribd in sulbl.:ctions (I) through (J) of this ddimtion rna} design3te 
another :luthorlled repn::sentJti\l.: if the Juthon73tion is in \\fiting, the authorization specllies the 
indnidual or po~ition respons]hlt: for the D\Cra!! operation of the fudlit) from \\hiCh tilt: 
(llsdurge originates or hcn,jng o\eraJl n:sronsihdity for t?n\lronm~ntJl matters for the company. 
and the \\rittC'll authorization is submitted to the Cit:. 

153 



"Best management practices (B\IPs)'" meJns schedules of acti\ itics. prohihitions of practices. 
maintenance procedures. and other management practices to implement the prohibitions listed in 
RD\i1C 13.10...1- I 0 through 1:,.10.42 I, B\lPs also incluue trcatment requirements. operating 
procedures, and practices to control plant site runoff. spi!!age or leaks. sludge or \\3ste disposal, 
or drainage from r;1\~ materiJIs storage. 

"Biochemical oxygen dcmJnd (BOD),' means the quantity of oxygen utillzed in the biochemical 
oxiuation of organic matter under standard lahoratory procedure, fin:~day 20 degree centigrade 
expressed in tams of mass and concentration milligrams per liter (mg !). 

"Building" meanS any structure inhabited or used hy human heing", 

"Suilding sc\\er or lateral" means a se\\cr cOl1\eying \\ <lste\\ atl..'r from the premises ofa user to 
the POT\\'. 

"Categorica! pretreatment standard" or "categorical stambrd" means any regulation containing 
pol!utant discharge limits promulgated hy the t .S, EPA In accordance \\ith SectIon,..; 307(b) and 
(c) or the Act (33 esc 1317) \vhich appl: to a specific eategor: of industrial users and which 
appear in .. W CFR, Chapler L Subchapter:':, Parts 405 471, 

"City" means the City oC Rio DdL Califomia. or tilt! City Council or Rio Dt!l1. 

"City manager" or "m::mager" means the person designJled hJ [he Clly to manage the operation 
of the POTW, and \~ho is charged \\ith certain duties and responsihilities hy this chapter or his 
duly authorized rcprescntati\c, 

"City of Rio DeB sanitary SC\HT system" mt.'ans the sanitary se\\er ",;yskm 0\\ ned by the City of 
Rio DdL 

"'Color" means the optical density at the \i:;ua! \\a\c length of maximum absorption, relatl\c to 
dlstil!cd \uter. One hundred percent transmtttance is equ!~alen! to zero optical i.lt::nsity, 

"Compnsire samplc" means the sample rcsulting from the comhlnJtion of rndi\'iduJ.1 \~;:tstC\\ ala 
samples taken at selected intL'r\3ls b;:t-;ed on In increment of either tl()\\ or tim!.!, 

"Consumer" means an: person to \~hom the City supplies se\\cr sen ice under a contracL either 
expressed or implied. to make payment therefor. 

"Cost" means bbor. m~ltL'riaL transpnnation, cxpense, supcn ision, engineering and other 
necessary o\t.'rhead expense. 

"Counci!" mt.'ans City Council or [ht.' City }.ianager acting under authority of the City Council, 

"OepanmenC ml!ans the Sc\\er Department orthe City. 

154 



"Doml:.'5tic \\u~tl:.'\\atl:.'« mean5 \\<}s!c\\atcr d~r!\\:d principally from u\\.:!lings. business 
huildings. institutions and the Eke. 

"Emiromnental Protet.:tioo Agency (EPA)" means the C,s. Emironmenta! Prott:ction Agency or. 
\\11er<:.: appropriate, tht: term may also be ust'd as a desigJ1Jtion for the regional \\3k(" quality 
control board or other t.l uly authorized official of said agency, 

"Existing source" means any sourcc ofu!scharge. the construction Of operation of\\hich 
commenced prior to the puhlication of proposed categorical pretreatmcnt standards \\ hich \\ ill he 
applicable Hl such source if the standard is thereaftcr promulgated in accordance \\ltb Section 
'07 of th, Act. 

"Extension" means sc\\ cr m;}in extension. Of system of collection lateraL 

"Grab sample" means a sample \\hich is tJken from J \\Jste stream on;) ont>tJlTIe basis \\ithout 
fl.'!prd to the tlo\\ in the \\;)stt: Slream and \\!tbout consideration of time. 

"'Cin:Jse hau!cr"' means a person, firm or husines-; tlnt collects the content-; ora grease 
mterceptor and transports it 

"Grease intt:rccptor" mC:;..lnS a plumbing arrurt..:!unce or appliance that inltTCepts Cns, oil ;md 
grease from a \\iJ,-.;tt:\\alc:r discharge. 

"Indirect or "dhchJrgc" means tbt: introduction of pol!utants into tht: POTW frnm 
an) nondomestic source, 

'"lndu;itrial ther" or "user'" m..:ans an) l'ltTson \dlO discharges or CClUses or permit:-; tht: ""'''tan!" 
of nrllldoltl6t!C \\<-l'ite\\iJ.t..:r Int(1 the POI W, 

"!nstmtaneGU~ m;nimum allrmahh.' limit"" mCdl1:, thc mJ,\imum concentrJ,twn {or 
IO"lHtlglOra al k)\\ cd to he dbdurgcJ at any time. uetcrminl'd from the (]na])si~ orany 
discrete or comrosited sJ.mp!e collected. mdl'pcmknt of the jndu~lrial tlm\ fatl.' and the dUfGtion 

01'1111.' samr!mg e\enL 

'"lnterferencl''' means a disdlJ.rge \\hich alone or m conjunction \\ith a dJsch;ugc or dlsdurgl.'s 
from other sourt.:c~: inhihits Of di~rurts the POT\\', irs tn:atment proct',"scs. or operations or its 
sludge rroces~es, usc. or disposal: and then:fore is a cause of a \iobtion of the Cny's :\PDES 
permit or of the prc\entinn of:.;c\\agc sludge usc or di~pos;:1! in cumpliance \\ilh ;my ofthc 
fo1!O\\mg stJtutOl": regulatory prm isions Of permits issued tlH:n;ulll.h:r {or more stringent State or 
!oca! regu!JlionsJ: Section -to::; of the Clc;m WJter Act; the Solid Wa:,te Disrnsal Act iSWDAL 
mc!uding Titl!: II commonl;.- referred to a~ ih~ Re~ourcc Conser\. J.t!on and Reco\ Cf;'- Act 
(RCR)d: 0.11) State rcgub{ion~ cont:lincd in any SUt;;' sludge management pbn preparcJ 
pursuant to Subtitle D of the SWDr\; th..: ClcJ.l1 Air Act: the Toxic Suhstances Control Act: and 
the \\ann..: ProtectlOl1, Research and Sanctuaries Act. 

155 



"Lega! or equitahle own<:r" rneJn-S any O\\ner of record. mortgagee. trustt:c or contmet purchaser 
of rea! property_ 

··\..fain" means J s<:\\cr main in the sc\\cr ca!lcellon system of the City \\lthout regard to sizing. 

"~1edical \\3S!C" means isolation \\;]stcs. infectious ag<:nts. human hinDu and blood byproducts. 
pathological \\ astes, sharps, bod::- parts. fomites, etiologic agents, contaminated bedding, surgical 
\\3 . ..;tes, roknttally contaminated laboratory \\;]stes and dialysis \\astcs. 

(1) An~ bui!Jing, structure. facility. or Installation from \\hich there is (or may be) a discharge of 
pollutants. the construction of\\bich commenced after the publication of proposed prl.!trcatment 
standards under Section 307( c J of the Act that wi II hI.! applicahle to such source if such standards 
are thereafter promulgated in accordanc!.: \\-ith that sc:ction; prmided. that: 

{J) The building, structure. facilit;.-. or instaHation is constructed at a site at which no otheT 
source is located; or 

(h} The huilding, structure, facUity, or installation totally replaces the process or production 
equipment that causes the discharge of pollutants at an existing source; or 

(c) The production or \\-aste\\ater generating processes orthe hudding, structure. facility, or 
installation an! suhstantially independent of an existing source at the same site, In determining 
\\hether these arc suhstantially independent, factors such as the extl.!nt to \dllch the ne\\ facility 
is integrated \\ith the e'(isting plant. and the extc:nt h) \\hich the ne\\ facility is engaged in the 
same general type ()f acti\'ilY as the existing source, should be considered. 

(2) Construction on J site at \\hich an existing source is located results in a modification rather 
than a ne\\ source if the construction does not create a ne\\ bUilding. structure, facility, or 
installation meeting the criteria of subsection (I }(h) or (c) of tilis dt!f'inition hut othen\ ise alters. 
rep1act's, or adds to existing process or production equipment 

0) Construction ofa ne\\ source as deflllt'd in this section has commenced trthe owner or 
operator has: 

{a) Begun. or caused to hegin, as part ora continuous on~site construction program OJ an::
placemellt. assembly. or installation offaciiitie:'. or equipment; or (ii) sibTflificant site preparation 
\\ork Including cJearlng< cxcJ\ation. or remo\J[ ofe,xisting buildings. structures, or facilities 
\\hich is necessary for thl.! pbcemcnt. 3:->semhlj, or installation of nc\\ source facilities or 
eqwpment: or 

(b) Entered into a bindmg cDntraclUal oblIgatIOn for the purchase of tllCilnies or equipment 
\\ hich are intended to be uSl.!d in its operation within a reasonabk time. Options to purch3:->c or 
contracts which can be terminated or modi tied \\!thout substantial loss, and contracts for 

156 



fea::iihility. engineering, and d6!b'il studies do not constitute a contractual obligation under this 
suhsection (3)(b), 

":';onconlact coo!mg \\3te(' means \\ater uSl.?d for cooling \\hich does not come into direct 
contact \\ith any fJ\\ m;:lteriJL intermediate product \\Jste produce or finished product 

"'~u!s;mce" means anything \\hich is injurious to health or is im.k:cent or offensi\e to the senses 
or an ohstruction io the free usc of property 50 as to interfere with the comfort or enjoyment of 
!ift: or rmpl..'rty or \\hkh affects at the 5ame time em enlire community Of neighhorhood or an.;.
considerable number ofpl!rsons although the extent of the annoyance or damagt: inflicted upon 
inJi\ iduals may he unequal. 

"Pass through" mean~ a disch::lrgr: \\hich \!Xlts the POTW into \\Jters of the l'nited Statl'~!n 
quantiti.::-i or concentrations \\ hich. alone: or in conjunction \\ ith a dlschargr: or di~chJrges from 
other sources. is J cause ofa \!OIi:H!On OrallY requirement of the City's :\PDES permit (mduliing 
an increase in the magnitude or uuratinn ofa \iolatlont 

"Permit"' means an.;.- \\fitkn authorilJ.tion required pursuant hl this chaptr:r or any other 
regulation of the City for the inst::l!larion of the se\\uge s.;.-stem. 

"Pl'r~on '" means any indi\ iduaL partnership. co-part!1cf::ihip. firm. company, corporatIon. 
a,>soc!ation. joint :-itock company, trust l'state, gO\ emmenta! entitj. or an}- other legal entity. or 
their !ega I n:rrescntati\{:s. agents or a:-isigns. Th!s definition include::> aU Federal, Slate, or 10-.:al 
gmcmmcnt,-ll entll](':-;, 

"pI!" me::ms a measure of the acidity or albl mity of a substance. c\presscU in stJf1(brd units, 

"PnHutanC mean" ;:1!ly dredgt:d spotL solid \\3:-ite. incinerator residue. sc\\agc. garbage. se\\agc 
sludge. munitions. mdical \\;tsks. chemica! nastcs, industrial nJstes. biological materials. 
ndmactne material:-;. heaL wrecked or discharged equipment. rock. sand. cl'lbr dirt, agricultural 
cmu inuustrial \\ il.::itcs. and the charackri::>tlcs of the \\ J.'itl..!\\ ater 1 LI..! .. pH. !emperilturl'. total 
suspended so!id~ (ISS), turhidilY. color. BOD. chemical (nygell demand (COD). {(ni(it)-. odor}. 

--Prernises" means a pan.:e1 urn:al estate. indmimg any impro\cments thereon, which is 
determined h)- the Cay to bt: a sing!e- user for the purpose ofrccei\ing. using and for 
:-icnlces 

"Pretn:Jtment" me:ms the reduction of the amount of pollutants. the dHninai!on of pol !utanb, or 
the alteration of the nature ofpo!iutJJ1! rropCr1!C~ in \\as!e\\Jter prior to or in lieu ofmtroJucing 
such pollutant--; into the POT\\'. This reduction or alteration can be ohtained hy physicaL 
chemical or h!Ological processes, 0) process changes. or h) other means, except by diluting: the 
concentration of the polJutants unless aUo\\eJ by In appiJcahk pretreatment stJndanl. 

»Pretreatment requirements" mcJ.!h an.;.- ;..;uhst.mti\t: or procedural requirement related io 
pretreatment imposed on an inJu::>tna! user. other than a pretreatment 5tandaflL 

157 



"Pretreatment stJ!1tJard~" or "standards" mean~ prohibitive discharge standards. categorical 
pretreatment standards. and local limits. 

"Pmhibited discharge standards" or "prohibited dIscharges" means ab:;olute prohibitions against 
tht.' discharge of certain ~ubstances: these prohibitions appear in RD}'lC 13. 100410 and 
13.10.420. 

"Puhlic sc\\er" means a seHer lying \\ ithin a street or ea..;ement and \\hich is controlled by or 
under the jurijdiclion of the City. 

"Publicly owned treatment works" or "POTW" means an) de\ ices or storage, trl.!'atment. 
recycling or redamation of se\\ age or !ndtbtria! \\asks and any Cm1\t.'y:UlCt.'~ \\hich come) 
\\ astt.'\\ aler to a treatment plant AljLJ. the Cit: 's jurisdiction 0\ er the industrial users and 
responsibility t~)r the operation and maintl.!nance of the treatment \\orks. Building se\\ers 
cnnnecting builJing drains to the P01\\' an: not puhlrc se\\ers although the}- ma) ht: parti;}!!;.
h)cJted in a public right~(1r~\\ a) or l.!;}semenL 

uSeptlc lan~ \\3'itt!S" meJns allY Sl:\\Jge from holding unks ju.:h as \es.;;ek chemical tnildS. 
campers. trailers. Jnd septtc tanb, 

"Sl!nice connection or latera!s" mn!1'-; the Llying ofpipt!s from the main to Ihe propert}- Ime 
indus!\ d). 

"Se\\agl!" mean" hUf1ul1 excrement and gra) \\ater (housellOld sl1\1\\('rs. Jis!l\\ashing operations, 
and the like). A cl.)mbination of\\ater~carried \\ilstL'S from re-;iderh:(:s. husinl.!ss buildmgs. 
in"titutlon..;, and industria! estahlishments, 

"Significant industrial user" applies to industrial users subjel.'t to cakgorica! pretrcaOllent 
sunJ.mls: any other industria! user that dijcharges: an a\ crag.: (If 25.000 g:ll!nns per d,lY (gpd) or 
more of process \\Jste\\,Her. contributes a pnh.:ess \\3StC stream \\hicb mJkes up fi\c percent or 
mOfC of the ~l\erage ur~ \\eather hyJraullc or organic capacity of the trt..'atment plant. (lr is 
desig.nated as slg:mficant b) the City on the hasis that the industria! user has a reasonable 
potential for ad\l:rsd) affecting the POTW's opl.!ration or for dolating :.l!1y pretreatment 
standard or n:quircmmt. 

"Slug !oJd" mCJ!h an}- dhcharg:e at a 110\\ ratt! or concentration \\hich could cause a \iolation of 
the prohibited discharge standards in RD\{C< 13.100410 and 13,10.420 or any discharge of a 
nonroutinc. episodic nature. including: but not Ilmited w an accidental spill or a noncust()rnJr~ 
batch discharge. 

"Standard Industri,i! Classification (SIC) coue" mCcll1."; a cJassificatilJl1 pursu;mt to the "Standard 
Industria! Classificltiol1 ~lamra!" issued b) the l'.S. Ollice ofivlanagcmcnt and Budget. 

158 



"Storm\\J.ter" means any ntm oc~urring during or follO\\ing any form of natural precipitation 
including S11(mme!L 

"Suspend~d sohds" means the lot;)] su~pcmleJ mattt:r that floats on the surfJce of. or is 
suspended in, \\i1h:L \\ astc\\ Jtr.:r. or other liquid. and \\hich is remo\Jole by bhoratory filtering. 

»Toxic pollutant" means one of 126 poUutant", or combination by the EPA under the prmision 
ofScction 307 (33 t~SC 13J7)ofthc;\CL 

·'Treatment plant efilucnC means an) d!scharg~ of treated \\;]skwater from the pcrnr into 
v,aters of the Slate, 

"WaS1C\\Jtcr'" means liquid and \\atl'r~carrjed inJu~trii1! \\a:-;tes, and se\\age from residential 
d\\d!ings. commerciJ! huildmgs. mdustrial and manufacturing facilities, and institutions, 
\~he!her treatcd or untreated, \\hich 3fC contributed to the POT\\', L'!1contaminmed or 
contaminated \\alers d!scardeu or dischJrgcd hy users and no longer usahle for industria! or 
domestic purposes. including but not limited to \\;:Hcr or a comhination Of\\aler and other 
suhst.mccs described in RD~lC l~,liL±lQ and 13,",-JOA~iJ 

"Waste\\3l;:r treatment plant" or "treatment plant" means the portion of the POTW tksigned to 
prm ide tn:atmen! of .5C\\ age ilnd industria! \\ a"te, [Ord. 2S6. 2012'. Ord _ 203, 1990: Ord, 190 
~~ L 5R. 19R7. Formedy 1.3,1O.520.J 

13.\0.020 Department rules and regulations - :\Iodifying rates. 

The COLlf1l.:iJ resencs the right and po\\er from time 10 time to adopt ruks and n:gulalions for tll"" 
operation and mainteruoce of tile Sc\\cr Dl..'rartmcnl of the and tlir furnishing :-ic\\er 
sen ice. and may hkc\\-isc csuhli:-;h J.1lL! modify the [,ltes. dlJrges Jnd penJ.!ties l'~tJ.h!!shcd and 
lmpo;-;ed by this dnpler. and may from time to timL' prescribe ru!e:-; for the exteo:-iion ofsc\\cr 
cnliection \" ilhin and he)ond the houndarie;-; or the City, [Oni. :?S6. 10! 2: OnL J 90 ~ 2. 1 Q[P. 1 

13.1(1.030 Settlement ofdisl'utes oetween consumer ami City. 

lfa Ji:-iplll.: shall arise oet\\een Jny sc\\er cu;-;tomer and the Crt} concerning se\\t'r sl.'nice or the 
amount ofst;\\cr hilled to such cunsumer. the dispute rna} he sett!t:d suhject 10 the arrro\J! of 
the Council bJ- the City :\-ianagcr or fhe final decision and settlement of any .'iw:h 
Jisputt: shall he recorded in the minutes of the Council. Tht: prm isicHlS and procedure,", pnn iJ.:u 
for in thi;:, ~ec!ion are rt:nnis~!\ e only and shaH in no \\'Jy dffect the other prm iSJOllS of this 
chapter. fOrd. 2:-:16. 2012: Ort!. 190 *). 19S 7.J 

13. HU1-!O Pretreatment and screening. 

13. HI.05() Connections prohibited. 

159 



:\0 person O\\ning. occupying or h;:ning under his contra! any premises shaH connect their vault. 
cesspool. privy, sc\\er or pri\ate drain \\ith any \\atemay, watercourse or ditch in the Cit), [Oni. 
286,2011: Ord. 190 ~ 5. 19S7.J 

13. J(),060 Distance of sewer or gas service from water service. 

;':0 ditch, \~J.tt!f pipe. gas pipe or any other sen icc shaH be instal!ed or maintained nearer than 
mo feet in any direction 10 any sc\\er sen-icc pipe or main. fOrd. 2.'16, 2011; Ord. 190 ~ 6. 
1987.1 

13.10.070 Repairs to sewer lines by the City. 

The City shall. at its own expense. nuke al! repairs necessary to scuer pipe lines connecting \\lth 
mains, The City s11311 make no repair or do any \\ork \\!1;:nsoe\er on the sc\\cr pipe line heyond 
the connection to pri\ate property. fOrd, 286. 2012; Ord. lQO ~ 7, 19S7.] 

13.IO.OSO Shutting off water. 

The Cit) rescnes the right tu shU! off the \\3ter supply to any premises at any {[me. for the 
purpose of making sewer line repairs, extensions or other necessary purposes or for ally 
infrl.lction of this chapter or any 0\ erdue pJyment or derll1quency of payment of any City utility 
sCf\ice hilling. fOrd, 2S6, 2012: Or(L 190 * K 19S7.] 

i3.IO.090 Right of entry of City employees for the purpose of making inspections. 

Any authorized employee of the City shall ha\e reasonahle access to ;::my premises \dth SC\\Cf 

ser\lce for the purpose of making inspections orthe se\\er system upon such premiSeS. Any 
person who, as O\\11er or occupant of any premises. refuses admittJl1ce to or hinders or pre\ents 
lnspection b~ an authorized employee of the Cit}, after ser\lce oCnotice of intent inn, shall hJ\e 
all \\ater shut off In the said premises. (OrJ, 2S6, 2012: Ord, 190 * (), 19S7,J 

i3.IO.IO() Turning water off or on in an emergency - Rendering sewer service 
inoperable. 

The City !illJ!! ha\e the fight in an emergency to tum the \\ater off or on \\ithout notice, hut it 
shall be the dut) of the Water Department to make a reasonahle effort to notify all con~umer" 
that the \\ aler !:-; to be tumed off or on. [Ord. 2S(), 20 t 2: Ord. 190 ~ [0, [9S7. 1 

13.10.110 Cniawfui use, injury. etc., of equipment. 

It shall he unLndlrl for an) person to open an) manhole or to interfere in any manner \\ith any 
street se\\er st,';f\icc connection or Jny senke pipe connected \\lth mains or to tap any se\\er 
scr\ ice pipe. \\ ithout paying the estahlished cost:-; therefor after ha\ ing madc written application 
therefor as prO\ ided by this chapter. or in any \\ ay to trespass upLln the public property of the 

160 



s~\\ er Department \\ ithout \Hitt~n permission first bdng obtaIned from the City i\Ianager or 
designee. [OnL 25;6. 20J2: OnL lC)O~ 11, 19S7,J 

13.10.120 Application for service ~ Form. 

B.:fore any se\\er ser\ice \\ill be surpli.:d by the City to any person \\hich requires a conne-dion 
or reconnt:ction to the City-O\\ned mains of any rea! propt:rty. the owner of the property sl1J.ll 
make J. \\ rith:n application from such sen icc and sen icc connection upon a fnnn prm idd O} 
the City. Such form shaH be sub:">tJntiai!) <1:"> sho\\n in E\hiblt A attached to the- ordinance 
cmilficd in this chapte-r and hy rcferenct: incorporated herein, fOrd. 2,s6. 20 t 2: On!. t90 * 12, 
1937.J 

13.10.130 Fecs for new sewer sen icc connections. 

From time to time, the council shaH and fec;.;, 

ap,rii<:ntion for a and to the actual construction sewer facilities 
the applicant, a sum ofmon.;y equal to the amount ortne applicable connection fees shall be 

to the in addition to any and all actual costs the to provide nc\v service. 
286,2012;Ord, 191§ 1, 1988;Onj, 190§§ 13, 13,1\, 1987.J 

13.10.140 Charges for instalJing sewer services. 

I hen: shall be a charge sd apJrt from ;1!1} other clurg:;: or fcc for actual cosh to the CIt) fllr the 
installation of an) "c\\cr mains or :-i}-stem lakrals to any pr!\ate propcrty or oti1L'r COIbumer; 
priJ\idcd further. tbat such a charge shall hc a minimum ofS200.00 or actual cost:">. \~bkhc\er is 
higher. Size:">. locations and COl1!1l.:ctU1l1 methods shall De at the sole discretion nft!w Cit} 
i\Lmager or designee, (OnL 2Sf), 2012: Ord. 190 ~ 1'+. IOi/,J 

161 



~,\rticle II. Connections Instal!ation of Sen ice 

13.10.150 In,tallations and connections outside City limits. 

\'on\lths!anding an)- other sections, the connection fees and installation charges for outside the 
City limits shaH he 150 percent of those same fees and charges for lnsiJe the City limits. fOnt 
2S6. 2011; Ort.!. 190 ~ t5. 19S7.] 

13.1 O.16() Reconncction fees. 

There shall be hen!\\ith e:-;tablished a reconnection fee for use \\hen ahandoned services arc 
requested to be n:actJ\'atet.!. or \\-l1en a seryice has been dIsconnected because of fallure to pay 
City wHity bilL.." and arc ddinquent or for other reasons such as \andalism of(jty~owncJ 
propert)-. system piping, etc_ (refer to RD\lC IJ.IO.25tn Th ... reconnection fee shall be 5200.00 
plus the actual costs !mohed in ttl ... reconnection as wUl he bllled by the City ).Ianager or 
designee (refer to definition of"cost" in RD\lC U, H2.:Dtt! and pro\ isions of RD\,fC 13.! O,250), 
lOrd. 2S6. 2012: Ord. 1911 ~ 16. 19S7.1 

13.1 O.17() Prereq uisites to multiple service connections. 

:\0 sc\\cr shall be scncd to mo or more parcels of property separately 0\\ nco through a common 
sen ice pipe, When 1110re than one occupancy is placed on the S:ll11e paree[ of propeny and each 
i:-; conducting a scpafJ.rdy estahfished residence or husiness. a separate seHer line shall be 
rl!qulred and installed for each occupancy. 

Whl!re there is a pre~e'{is!ing multiple usc se\\er ser\ice, the City shaH establish additional 
accounts and charges for each Jdditiona! commercial. profeSSionaL d\H~lljng, or li\ ing unit 
situated upn!l the premises not ser\ed hy all indiyidual Se\~eL [Ord, 2S(,. 2012: Ord. ICJQ ~ 17. 
I 9S 7 .] 

13.10.180 l'se of sewer by contractors and other persons engaged in construction 
work. 

Contractors or any person desiring to usc the se\\er system in construction \\ork \\here ulsposal 
must he made other than through a permanent sc\\cr in each and every case must make \\fitten 
application for and ohtain a \\fitten permit for the same from the Sc\\er Department before 
connecting \\ iih any main. and shall make the deposit required by the Se\\er Department. Such 
permit shaH be exhibited upon the \\ork for \\hich it has been issued during rhL' full Itme the 
se\\er IS heing used pursu;mt to such permiL [Ord_ 2S(), 2012: OnL 190 ~ IS, 19S7.] 

13.10.190 Supplying to other than occupant of premises. 

It shall be unla\\ ful for any person to prm ide se\\er sen icc to any other person other than the 
occupants of the premises of such consumer as prodded through an apprmcd collection s:stem< 
[Ord. 2.16. l012: Ord. 190 ~ 19. 19.17.1 

162 



13.10.200 Consumers to accept sen icc conditions. 

All applicant:; for scnicc connections or sc\\er sen ice shall he required to accept such 
condition;;; ofser\icc as are pro\ideJ by the system at the location of the proposed sen ice 
connection and to hold the Depal1mt:nt harmkss from aU damages arising from conditions or 
interruptions afsenice not cXj1ressly cau:-:cd by the sc\\er system. fOrd, 2.'16. 2012: Ord. 190 
~ 20.1987·1 

13.10.210 Sewer system required. 

I! shall be unLl\\ fu! to maintain or use an: residence. place ofhusiness or other hui!ding or place 
\\l1ere persons r('sIUt:. congregate. or arc emplo:;.ed \\hich is not pftl\ided \\ith means for the 
JJsposal of se\\ age, either by tlu<;h toild connectl'u \\ itll ;] 5e\\ age 51 stt:ITI appro\ cd by the City 
of Rio Dell City 0,.lanager or i.h.::;ignec or. \\ hen it is juJgcd pcrmissibh: by th~ County Hea!th 
Officer. a scptic t;mk \\ hleh meets the n:quin.:ments of construction and mainknanc~ as n::quirt:d 
by the "aid County f-kahh Department 

It shall he unLm ful for any person to con"trucl or maintain an) pri\ y. ces-"pooL septk tank. 
SC-\\Jge treatment \\orKs. sc\\er pipes or conouits. or othcr pipes or conduits for the treatment or 
discharge ofse\\age or impure \\;llers or any matter or suhst.l!lce ofTensi\c. injurious or 
tLmgcrous to h.:a!th \\-hereby ihey shall uo any of the folhm 

(!) Cherrlem any lands \\hatevcr: 

(2) [mpt/< 1l0\\, "eep, drain into or afE:ct any springs, :,treams, ri\(:rs. lakes or other \\i\lt::rs 
\\!thin the City orRio Dd!: prmidciL no\\e\-er. nith respect to existing septic tanks, SC\\J.gc 
treatment \\orks, SC\\ cr ripes or conduits ur other pipes or conduits for the trcatmc-nt or discharge 
of sC\\agl,' or impure \\att.:rs, ifit \\ould hi..' impossible to comply \\ith tht.: pro\isiDJb of this 
:;cdion, tb: Count: f-k;jlth Oflker shal! hene the pO\\cr special permit tv a!hm such 
Llrial!OnS frum the pro\!sions conuinl'd in this section Zh \\,ill pn:\en! wmeeessar;, hardship or 
injustice Jnd Jl the same time most nearly accomplish the genera] purpose and intent hereof 

It shall be unLm fu! I~Jr an: person, firm or corporation to CGnstrucL build, nr rehuild any plan.' of 
residence or oth::r builJing or plaCt; \\ here perSOlh congn:gJ1e, n:sidt' or are employed \\ hlch is 
not to be connectl.'J to 3D apprO\ed Jluh!ic s:miti.lry st,::\\-cr \\-ithout fir"t ~ubmitting plans of the 
meaDS disposal to the Cit}- ~bn:1ger or dc-signee ;md ohtaining a pt::rmit therd"or i.lS 
ht:rein pro\ided, Such p!an,.; shall include tht: plot plan oftht: prt:m]st:S \\ith sufficient eit.'HtlOns. 
the size Jnd type of st::ptit: tank. and a p!an of the absorptIOn fidd, gi\ ing a!! dimension" Jnd 
other pertment inf~Jnna[ion. ;\0 SC\\Jge lllspoSJJ instaHJtion shan ht: made \\ithout inspection, A 
cop.: oft:ach inspection report shan he flkd \\ilh the Health OniceL fOnL 286. 2012: 01'0.190 
i 21, 19:)7.j 

13. HI.210 Building scwers, laterals and connections. 

163 



(1) Permit Required.l'\o person shaH construct a building sc\\cr. lateral scwer or make a 
connection \\l!h an) puhllc sewer \\irhout first obtaining a \\ritten permit from the City and 
paying aU fcc..; and connection charges as requircd< 

(1) Design and Construction Requirements. Design and construction of building se\\ers and 
lateral se\\crs shall be in accordance with the requirements of the City and to the apprO\3! of the 
City ~L:mager or designee. 

(3) Separate Se\\ ers. :\0 two adjacent buildings fronting on the same street sha!! be pennitted to 
join the usc of the same side Se\\eL E\cry building or industrial fadlity must be separately 
connected \\'ith a public se\\er if such public sewer exist:-; in the street upon \\'hich the propl:!rty 
ahuts or in an easement \\hich \\l1! serH: said property. I-!owc\cr, 1\\0 or morc buddings located 
on propcrty bclanging to the same owner may he served \\ith the samc side sc\\er prmided the 
property cannot bl:! subdi\ ioed into smaller kgal-sizcd lots. 

H) Old Building Sc\\ers, Old building sewers may be L1sed in connection \\ ith nc\\ huildings 
only \\hcn they arc found, upon eXJmination and test by the City ~tanager or designee, to meet 
all requirement.s ofthc City. 

(5) C!eanouts. Ck:1l1outs in building sc\\ers shall be prm.idcd In accordance \\ith the rulL's, 
regu[arions and ordinances oftbe City. All c!eanours shan bl:! maintained \\JtertighL 

(6) Down Spout..;, Roof Drains. OO\\n spouts or roof drains shall not discharge rain \\ater or 
storm runoff into the building lateral or Jny sc\\cr connl:!ction. 

(7) Sc\\er Too Lo\\. In ali buildmgs hcn:after constructed in \\hich any building se\\cr is too 10\\ 
to pemlil gravit: f10\\ to the publiC sc\\cr, sanitary sc\\age carried by such building sc\\er sha!! 
bl:! liftt.:d by artificial me;:ms, appro\'eJ by thl:! Cit;.- ~lanager or dl:!signce. and dIscharged to the 
publIC sc\\er at thl:! expensc of the OWlleL 

(S) Connection to Public SC\\CL The connection of tile building st.:\\er into thc 5e\\Cr systl:!m 
shal! hI:! made at the applicant's expensc. Thc applicant shall extend the buildmg SI:!\rer to the 
rropt.:rt) line. at \\hich point it shall be thc responsibility of the Ctty to connect the building 
se\\er to the City system lateral. Any damage to tht.: lateral se\\er shall bc repaired at thl:! cost of 
t!1e appllcant tn thc satisfaction of the City ~lanager or designt.:l:!. 

(9) :'laintenance of Building SC\\I:!L Building scwers shaH be free ofinfihration and be 
maintained by the owner of the property Sl:!r\ I:!d thereby. 

( I 0 j Public SC\\ cr Construction Permit Required. ~o pt.:rson shall construct extend or connect 
to any puhlic sc\\er \\lthout first ohtatning J written permit from the City and paying all fees and 
connection chargeS and furnishing bonds as required, The prm !sion of this section requiring 
pt.:rmits shall not be construed to apply to contractors' construction se\\crs and appurtenances 
under contracts a\\3rded and entered into by the City. 

164 



(11) Plans. Profiles and Specifications Required. The application for a pennil for public sc\\er 
construction sha!! he nccompanicd hy thn:c complete sets ofp!aJls. profiles and specifications. 
compJying v"ith an applicahle ordinances, rules and regulations oflhe City prepared hy a 
registered ci\ il engineer 5110\\ ing all details oftbc proposed \\ork ba-sed on an accurJte sun ey of 
the ground, The Gpp!ication. together \\ith tht: plans. profiles and specifil.:Jtions, shall be 
eXJmined by the City :-...tanager or desiJ:,rnee. \\110 shall \\ithin 20 days apprmc them as filed or 
require them to be modified as he deems necessary for propt:r installation. \\"hcn the City 
0.bnager or desib'11Ce is satisfied that the proposed \\ork is proper and the plans. profiles. and 
specifications are sufficient amI correct. be shall order the !.'isuJnce ora permit predicated upon 
tht: payment of all connection charges, fees and furnishing bonds as n.:quired by the City, The 
permit shan prescribe s:uch termS and conditions as the City 0.1anager or designee rim..!s necessar) 
in the puhlic interest 

(12) Subdi\ IS10ns, The requin:ments of this sedion shall be ful!y complied \\ ith hefore any r1nal 
suhdi\ ision map shall bc appro\cd oy the City Council. The finaJ suhdi\ is!on map shall pro\ ide 
for the dedication for puhlic usc of streets. easements or rights~of-\\ <1y ill \\ hich puhlic se\\ t:r 
lines are to he constructed. If a final subdi\ ision mup of a tract is recorded and the \\ork of 
constructing St.;\\t:fS to sent: the trJct is not completed \dthin the time limit a!!tmed in the 
pl!rmiL the City Council may extend the time limit Of may comp!eh: the \\ork and take 
appropriate step" to enforce the prm [sion."; of the bont.! furnished by tl1t" subJi\ idl!r. 

{!J j Easements or Rlght~of~Way, In the e\ent that an easement is required for the extension of 
the public st"\\er or the making of connections. the applicant shall procure and h,ne accepted by 
the City a proper easement or grant ofright-of-\\ay !1J\lng a minimum \\ioth of 10 fed sufficient 
in ),1\\ to \1110\\ t!1>: laying and maintenance of such extensinn or cormcction. 

( 1-l) Persons Aut!Wfl/cJ to Perform Work. Only properly liCf.:nscd contractors Jnd City forces 
shJ.il be authorized to perform the \\ork of pub he se\\cr construction \\ithlll the City, AU terms 
and Clmdltlon:-; of the permit issued b~ the City ttl the applicant sha!! be oinding on the 
contractor-

(15) Compliance \\ith Local Regubtions. An} person constructing J S1.:'\\t:f \\ilhill a street shaH 
comply \\itb al! SIJtt':. Count> or City ]a\\,>, orJin;:mces, rules and reguiJt!OJb pertaining to the 
cutting or [1;:1\ ement opt:ning. harricadmg, lighting, ilnd protecting of trenches, bJcld'!!!ing and 
repining thereof and shall obtain a!J permits and pay all fees reql!ired hr the department I1J\ing 
jurisdiction pnor tu the issuanco: ofa pt:rmit oflhe City, 

(161 Design and Construction Standards. Design Jnd construction of st:\\crs \\ ithin th\! City must 
he apprmed hy the City '\!:mager or de:-;ignet:_ Three complete sets ofas-budt JrJ\\ings .'ihu\\ 
the Jctm! location of an mains" structures, wyes. and lJt~rJls shall be filed \\ ith the Cit) Defore 
final JCC\!ptJllCe of the \\ork, 

(!7) Completiun ufSc\\t'r Required. Bdl1re In) acceptance of;m;.- se\\t:r line hy the Cit> Jnd 
pnor to tIlt: admission of any se\\age into the s;.-skm, the s(,,'\\er line shall h..' tested and shall he 
complete to the sa!js!~lctlon of the City :Vbnager or designee. [Ord. 2S6, 20! 2: On!. 19(} ~ 22. 
1087 1 

165 



AI1icl~ IlL Rat~s. Chargc:'! and Billmg 

13.10.230 Rates. charges and billings. 

t I) Rates. charges and billings arc established hy [l:~olution< All sc\\er hilling shall be monthly [0 

coincide with wat~r billing. sehcdukd for posting and deli\ cry on the first day of each month 
follo\\ing \\ater meter readings. Utilit) bills arc due and pa:abl~ from the tirst da: of each 
month at the Rio Deli City HarL 

{'tilit: bills not hen ing heen paid before th~ ncxt follO\\'ing hiiting shall be consid~red to he 
ddmquent and no further notke \\ ill he prm-ided other than on the said next follO\\ Ing hilling 
rdlecting that t\\ () months of Sef\ ice arc outstandmg. 

Slh!Uld \\J.kr payment in ful! not be rr.:cctH:d \\ itllin 10 ca\cmbr da)-s from the said second 
billmg, then shut-offnoti1.?es shaH be !...;stled and the \\atr.:r sen ice discontinued until paymclH of 
a!l outstanding billing..; is made in full (refer to RD:'IC l3. 10.250): prm ided further. that no such 
shUHlff\\ill occur on a Frida) unkss speciticall) dir~cted b~ the ('ity \1anager or designee. 

(2) Sc\\cr sen ict: billing shall be as.;essed agarn.;! tilt.' person or pt.'rsoJ1:-; \\ho reside til or 
othen\ i"t.' occupy t!w premises being scned and idt.'ntitied as the per,>on or persun" ha\ ing 
c:ompkted an app[lcation for sanitary :-;c\\ er sen ict.' as a non-owner n:sident of the premises. Jnd 
atter ha\ ing deposited S200.00 as sun:t) against an)- se\\a sen icc charge.; sustained during the 
said 110n·0\\ ncr occup.mey or control of'the said premises. \\ hereuron the depu:-;itor shall n..'cei \ e 
a numbered receipt \\ bieh shall he required to he pre.;entcJ at demand of all nr ,m)- part of a 
refund of any balance of deposit remaining aft~r an)- and aU ClIrrL'nt sanitar) se\\er sen i.:e 
(harges arc SJtisfkJ, 

IIm\t:\er. anJ not\\ith"tandlng tht.: abme, o\\llers of rca! prOrel1y rented. k'a.;ed. oc..:upied or in 
an) manner controlkd b) t10fHm ncrs Sholl! be tiJbk fix any unpaid SC\\ er sen ice not paid b: thc 
said nl1!H)\\"Ilt.:rs. \\ ith such unpaid amollnts due' and rayahk rrillr to an) continued u->t: of an~ 
said premises. and thc \\ atcr to such pre111tS6 shall therefor.:: also he discontinued in order tn 
cau~e the SC\\ cr sen tce to become inopt:rable pending se'ttlcmem of oUhtanding uti lit) bill ... ;\ 
[[:it of JL'lll1qucnl a.:counh \\ ill ht: fomJrded to thc I lumholdt ('oun!) AudItor to be addt:d to 
olher tJXC_"; imposed on the tklillLjuent parcel and collt:cted in the same manner and to the samt.: 
cxtent as such other ta\es. 

(_1) In any case \\herc customcrs are sened by tht: Rio Dell .;e\\er systcm.~~ 
efthe City lirruts, thl.! CllstO!TI\!r shall peI) rates as estahlished by rcsolution. ~~ 
City !irnits4all ray 159 per:~k_ Filt: established By resGluiim;, 

166 



(-ll AU se~\er hilhng is- due and payable at the Rio Dd! City Hal! and pJ..!ments not made before 
the nexl f{)liO\\ing billing shaH he deemed to be ddinquent and 10 calendar days- thereafter. 
\\ithout nendit of further notice. delinquent sen ices \\il! be discontinued (refer to subsection (2) 
of this section)< 

(5) Any consumer required to pay for se\\er sef\ices in accordance \\ith this section \\110 

commences- scn icc on or after the sixteenth of any month shall pay a rate for that month of only 
50 percent of the requi red rate for the fu!! month. 

Any consumer rcquired to pay for se\\er sen-ice in accordance \\ith this section \\ho 
ellscontinues ser\icc on or hefore the fifteenth day ofan)- month shal! pJ.y a rate f,-if that month of 
onl;. 50 percent of the required ratt! for tht: full month. [OnL 286, 2012: Oro. 2,fS ~ L 2003: Ort!. 
231 ~ 1. 1995: OnI, 210 ~~ L 2.1991; Ord. 207,1991; Oro. 190 ~ 23. 19S7.J 

13.1 (J.2.jO Discontinuancc of service for nonpayment. 

In tilt' c\ent that any customer shaH be delinquent in the paymcnt ofhi:-; SC\\er hi!], the 
DcpJnment shaH na\e the right forth\\ith and \\ithout further notice to tl!:-;continue \\atcr scr\ice 
to the premises of such delinquent customer and \\ater shaH not again ht' supplied to him or to 
the prcmi:-;es until all delinquent City utiiHy hills and charge:-; for rcconnection h~1\t' been pJi,l 
[OnL 2S(,. ZOI2; Ord. 190 ~ 24. I'IS7.1 

13.10.250 Procedure for restoring service after delinquency. 

!f\\Jtt'r st'nicc is cut ocrm discontinued for failun: to pa)- lklmquenl Cit) utdity hills, such 
SL'r\lcC may again bt' established only in the nent the CU:"1tomcr or the O\\I1.:r DrthL' premises 
ser\cd pays ai! delinquent bills and charges as may be n:yuired by this chaptt.'r, 

When an (J\\ nt:r Dr customer has he en ddinqw:nl in his sc\\cr bills t\\ict: in succession or thn:c 
tm1c:') in Jny Olle 12~mDnth period, he shall bc required to pay a late payment fee of510.00. SJid 
ble payment fee shall he illl::reased by S HU}O for each succceumg late payment up to a 
maximum fcc ofS]OO'{lO. TtH:rcupon and not othcr\\isc \\i!l \\J.tcr sen ice again be madL' or 
estahlished to the pn:mi:-;cs \\here the bl!1 has been ddinquent (thus ajhming se\\cr sen ice), 
rOn!. 2S6, ]012; Ord, 190 ~ 25. 19S7,] 

13.10.251 !'retreatment charges and fces. 

The Council may adopt reasonah!e charge .. and fees for reimbursement of costs of setting up and 
opcrJting the Cit)-'s pretreatment program \\hich ma:;, include 

( II Fces riff \\ a-;tt?\\ater discharge permit application,.; including the cost of prot:'cssmg ,such 
applICations, 

(2) Fecs for monitoring. mspcction, Jnd sur'..ci!1Jncc procedures including the co.:;t ofco!lcction 
and analyzing an industriJ] user's Ji:id1Jrgco iJnd rc\ it\.\ momtoring reports submitted by till' 
USee';. 

167 



(3) Fe:\!s for rc\ ic\\ ing and responding to accidcntal dischargc procedures and construction. 

H l Fees for filing appeals. 

(5) Other fees as the City may deem necessary to caIT} out the requirements contained in this 
section, These: fees re[ate solely to the matters covcred hy this chapter and arc separate from all 
other fees, fines, and pe:na!ties chargeable h: the City. lOrd, 286, 2012.] 

Article IV. Sen ices 

13.10.260 To remain City property - Repairs by City. 

All se\\er pipes in pUh!lC property an: the rropcrty or the City and the City \\ilJ maintain and 
repair them \\hen in it:-; judgment such re:pairs arc needed. [On..!. 2S6. 2012: Ord. 190 * 26, 1987. J 

13.10.27() One service to lot or parcel of land - Exception. 

There shall be at ka:-;I one SC'.l,'cr sen icc on each lot or parcel of rea! propert} which is imprO\ ed 
\\ It II a d\\elling or building thereon: except where one huilding ol2cllpies more than one lot, then 
only one scr\ icc for such huilding shall he required. [ant ]S6, 2012: Ord, 190 ~ 27. 19S7.] 

13.10.280 Connection service pipe to system - Premises to he left as originally 
found upon completion of tests -l\oticc to City - Liability of plumber and 
cllstomer. 

Any plumber or any other person connecting pri\ ate Se\\ er scr\icc pipe to the property side of a 
City se\\er must k:l\e the City system in as good condition a."; found. and shall notify the City at 
the time the connection is made. AnJ damage caused hy the negligence or care!essn6s of an) 
plumher or other person to any part of tile connection mu:-;t be pald by such plumher or person to 
the City on {km;:md. fOrd. 2S6, 2012: Ord. !liO * 2S, 19S7.J 

13.10.290 Bill to be rendered after connection. 

The se\\t'r Department of tile Cit} rna} connect to any City Se\\CT sen ice pipe at an) tIme it 
shall deem It expedient to do so, and render a corrected btl! from the date of installation of such 
connection. [Ord~ 2S6. 2012: Ord. 190 ~ 29, 19S7.I 

13.10.300 Liability of customer for damages to system. 

;\fter the se\\er service is so connected. any damage rr.:sldting from malice, carelessness or 
negligence oflhe clistomer or any member of hi:; family. or anyone employed oy him. and an} 
damage \\hich may result from hot \\ater or steam from a boiler. or othemise, shall he paid for 
hy such customer to the City on presentation of a hdl therefor; and in case such bilt is not paid, 
the \\ater shall he shut ofrtn the premises \\irhollt further notice. and the saine shan not be 
tumed on until a![ charges are paid. fOrd. 2Sb. 2012: Ord. I 90 ~ .30, 19S7.J 

168 



13.10.310 Cutting off or interfering with sewer service. 

It shall be unlJ.wfu! for any person to interfere \\ith or cuI ofT or remme a sc\\cr sen ice from 
\vhcre it has Deco installed \dthout first receh ing \\fltteD permission from the City t\fanager or 
designee. Such pennission shall be granted on!} for the purpose oftest:-i. replacements, repairs or 
sen ice pipes. readjustment of sen ice or similar emergency. fOrd. 21\(,. 2012: Onl. 1 90 ~ 31. 
19S7.J 

13.10.320 Application for stopping sewer service bill to be rendered. 

lipon the writlen notice of tile owner ofa building or premises to hJ\c the sc\\cr ser\!cc stopped. 
the City' shall ha\c the \\ater shu! off. and al the time record the reading of the meter and r:;:oo:;:r a 
hill in a sum \\hich shall be thc amount ;:1l.,:corJing: to the ri:H:;:s Jnd charges prO\!deJ for herein. 
[Ort!. 2R6, 2012: Oro. FlO ~ 32. !9S7.1 

13.10.330 :\uisance abatement. 

Any nuisallct:. contamination, pollution. or inf1ltLltlon as ddineu herein \.!\.]sting on any parcel of 
land til the City of Rio Ddl may he Joatcd as prm idcJ herdn. Thc prol..::;:durc for said abakmcnt 
pfmided hae!n shal! not he cxclusi\c, hut shall he cumulat!\c and in addition to any orher 
abah:mt:nl procedure pro\idcd by the I;.ms orthc State of Califomia or the onlmances nfthe Cit> 
of Rio Dell. [OnL 21'6.2012: On!. !GO ~ 3,), 19S7.j 

13.10.3 .. Hl Sewage not to be discharged so as to result in contamination, pollution 
or nuisance. 

:\0 p,",rson shaH thschargt: sC\\Q.ge or other \\Jste, or tht.: effluent oftn:ated se\\Jge or other 
\\Zhtc, in an~ manner \,hieh \\i]] resu!t in contJminJtion. ro!!u!ion or J nuisance_ [OnL 2S(" 
lOi2: Ord. I'lO J '.J. 19S7.1 

13. Hl.350 Abatement of eonlamination. 

Whenc\cr an;. local Health Offlc~r or cnron:~mem offici)] finds that J conlaminJtlOn e'\istc-;. tl11: 
officer or official sllJ1J order the contammatlOD JDatcd, as pnJ\ itbJ in this chapter. lOn!. 2S(). 
2012: OnL 190 ~ 35.1987,] 

13.10.360 Issuance of peremptory abatement order ~ Report to regional board ~. 
Prosecution of injunction proceedings. 

The locall-lea!th Offh.:er or en!orct.'mcnt orncial 11M)' issue J peremptory onh.'f requiring the 
abatemt:nl oL-I contamin:.mon and shJlll!mnediJtd) fumish to the proper reglO!la! board a repoft 
of inftxmJtion and daLl relating Ihert:to< Coincident \\ itll issuing such order, or if any onh:r or 
n:gulation b not campl ied \\ ith. the local Health Officer or enforcement offici]] mJY bring and 
rrosecuk aD action flx an injunction in the superior court oft!1\! County of Humbo!dt 

169 



1 he toea! Health Officer of Humho1dt County shall rt!nder to persons suhject to such order ali 
possihle assistance in complying \\lth the order including all possible assistance in securing an~ 
necessary funds for such purpose. [Ord. 2S6, 2011: Ord. 190 ~ 36, 19Si. J 

13.10.370 Discharge of sewage or other waste resulting in contamination a 
misdemeanor. 

Any person who discharges sL'\\age or other \\aste in allY manner \~hich results in contamination 
is guilt) of a misdemeanor. Any person, firm or corporation who \'iolal':s or refus.:s or fails to 
comply \~ith any of the prmisions of this chapter shall he guilty ora misdemeanor and shall he 
punished upon cOll\ictlon ora fin.: of not less than $25.00 nor more than S500.00 or b)
lmprisonmcnt in the County Jail for not more than six months or hy both such fin.: and 
imprisonment. fOrd, 286, 2011; Onll90 ~ 37. 1937.J 

13.10.380 Abatement procedures. 

Til!..' procedure for ahatement of a contaminatiDn, poll ution. nUfsanc~, or infiltratJOIl including hut 
not limited to notice of such ahatement, recordation of tis pendens, time and place of hearing. 
order of the Council. accounting of costs and rec.:ipts. hearing on account and proposed 
assessment. recordation oflicn, and collection \\ith ordinary l::rxes, shall folhm essentially the 
same procedure ;)s prm id.:d for in Ch:lpter S.l 0 RD\tC prO\ idmg for the estab!ishm.:nt of a 
procedure for the abatement ofnuisanc6 and making the cost of such abatement a specia! 
assessment upon a par.:d of land so imohcu fOrd, 1S6. 2012: Ord. 190 ~ 40,19;;:7,1 

13.10.390 Liability. 

This chapter shall no! be construeJ as imposing upon the City ofRil) Dd! any liahi!it,Y or 
responsihilny for (lJ.mage resulting from the defecti\e construction of any sanitar) disposal 
system as herein prO\ itled, nor shaH the City of Rio Dell or aoy official or cmploye!.! thereof or 
the Humhold! County Health Dfncer be hdd as as~uming any SUd1 !lahility or r.:sronsihihty h)

reason ofthl' inspection authorized thereunder. fOrd. 2S6, 2011; Ord, 190 ~ 42. 19S7.] 

I3.IOAOO Prohibited discharges of uncontaminated waters. 

Repealed hy Ord. 186. lOrd. 203. 1990: Ord. 190 ~ 46. 19S7: Ord. 3' ~ I. 1965.) 

Article \", Gencral Sc\\cr l'se Regulations 

I3.IO.410 Discharges - Criteria. 

It shall be un!J\~ fut for any person to dtscharge or cause to he discharged into an: puhlic sc\\er 
system \\hich directly or indirectl;. connects to the City of Rio Del! sanitary se\\er s)-stem any 
sc\\age if, in the determination of the Cll) :-"1anager or desibtnce, such se\\age may ha\e an 
ad\erse Dr harmful effect on sc\\crS, maimenance personnel. \\ash.'\uter tn:atmcnt plant 
personnel or equipment. treatment eft1u.:llt qual ity, puhllc or pri\. ak property, or may othcm ise 
endanger the publtc, loca! cmironmem, or create a public nuisance, The City ~tanager or 

170 



designee. in dctt:rminlog the accl!ptability of specific SCI,.\- age, shall consider the natur:;; of the 
sc\\agc and the adequacy and nature of the collection. tn:;:ltmt!nt and disposaJ system aDilahle to 
accept the se\\age. lOrd. 2S(,. 2012: Onl. 203, 1990: Onl !90 ~ 48.1%7 Formerly 13.10,420] 

13.1 (J.4W Prohibitions. 

(I) ~o user shall introduce or cause to hc introduced into the POTW any pollutant or \\-astc\ukr 
\\hich cm;;es pass through or interference. These genera! prohibitions apply to al! users of the 
POT\V \\hether or not they an: subject to categorical pretrt!Jtment stzmdards or any other 
~atlonilL State. or local pr:;;trt:atment standards or requiremenb. 

(2) ~o person shan dlSchJrgc any substanc:;;s dir.;ct!) into a mJ.nhnk or other opening in a 
community se\\er other than through an appn)\cd huilding scner unless. upon J. \\fitlcll 
application by the uscr and the payment of the Clpplicah!c user chJrges and fees, the Cit:: issues a 
permit for such dm~ct dlSchJrg6, 

(,)) Ii shall be llnLmfu] I~)f any person to discharge or cause to he discharged any surfJ.cc \\ater. 
Din \-\J.tCL stonTI\\alcr, ground \'valCL street drJinage, subsurface drainage. yard drainage, roof 
drainage, \\J1Cr from yard fountains, ponds or b\\n sprays. cooling \\ater. or any other 
uncontaminJtcd \~;lter lnto any Sc\\age facil1ty \\hlch directly or indirectly discharges to a 
somtary sc\\cr system O\\llCJ h) the City of Rio DdJ. 

(..J.) Spcciilc Prohihitions> 0:0 u~er shaH introduce or C;:lu .. e to he introduced intG the POTW the 
follo\\ ing po\!utanls, substJnces, or \\J'->tt':\\ateL 

(al Po!lUlJnlS \\hidl create a fin: or cx.plosl\c hazard in till: municipal \\ilS!C\\J.h:r co!kction and 
POT\\', including. hut not llmi!ea to, nL!sle,slrC<Jms \\ilh a c!osed"cllp tlashpoint ofh:;;s than 1..J.0 
degrees Falm:nhclt {hO uegrees Cebius} using the tt;st methods specdied in.tO ClR 261.21. 

to) Any \\ C\ste\\ ,Her h;:n a pI-! kss th::m 5<5 or more than 8,5, or othcmise cau.-;ing corrosi'.t:': 
stnJ(lUra! to lhe POIW or equip!l1t'!lt or endangering Cit:: personnel, 

(e) Solid or \lSCOUS substlnccs in amounts \\hich \\i!l c;wse obstruction of the nO\\ in the POT\\' 
resulting in inlt:rfcrcllcc. hut in no ca~e solids greater than on,; inl'h or 25A mi!Jllm:tl'r:.; in ,m) 
dimension. 

(d) .-\n~ \\J.~tC\\atcr containing poliutanr.-;. oxygen JemanJmg po!!utJnts (BOD. and 
the hb:). ft:!cJscd in Z! discharge at Z! thm rate ami or pnllutanl conccntr;:H!on \\hich. either sing!~ 
or hy intcfilction \\ith other pollutants, \\jl! cau:.;l' interference \\ltl1 either the POTW. or an} 
\~J.:'ile\\ata tn.'cHmen! or sludge proce~s: or \~hich \\iH constitute a hazard to humans or animals, 

(e) An> \\a'itC\\ Jtef ha\ ing J temperature gn::iJ.ltT than 150 dcgrees FJhrenhl'!t (()5 j degree." 
Cebius), or \\b:h \\ ill inhihi! hiologica! acti\ it) in the trc3tmcnt plant resulting 111 interference, 
hut in no (;;'bl' \\J.stC\\atcr \\hich causes the temperature at the introduction into till." tr~atmt:nt 
plant to c\ceed !O..J. l.kg:ree~ Fahrenheit (40 degrees Cdsius"i 

171 



(f) Petroleum oiL nonbiodegradahk cutting oil, or products of mineral at! origin. in amounts that 
\\ d! cause intertl:rence or pass through. 

{g) Any po[[utants \\hich result in the presence of toxic gases, \apors or fumes \\ithin the POTW 
in a quantity that may cause \\orker health and safety probkms. 

(h) Any trucked or hauled pollutants, except at discharge points designated hy the City in 
accordance \\ ith RD\lC ! 3,1 0,430. 

(i) Any noxious or malmlorous liquids, gases. solids, or other ,\aste\\;ltcr \\111ch. either singly or 
by interaction \\ith other \\a~·aes, arc sufticient to creale a public nuisance, a hazard to Efc, or to 
prevent entry into the sc\\ers for maintenance and repair_ 

(j) An) \\aslc\\atcr \\hich imparts color \\'hich cannot h..: remmed by the treatment proccss. such 
as, but not limited to, dye \\ast.:s and \cgetable tanning solutions. \\bich consequently impans 
color to the treatment plant'.s emuent therehy \ iolating the City's :\PDES penni!. Color (in 
comhination \\llh turhidity) shall not cause the treatment plant eft1uent to reduce the depth of the 
compensation point for photos)nthetic acridty by more than 10 percent from the seasonably 
estahlished nonn for aquatk life. 

(k) Any \\ 3.ste\\ Jter containing any radioactl\(: \\3stcs or isotopes. except as specifica!!)' 
apprmed in writing by the City ~hl!1ager or designee, in compliance \~ llh applicable State or 
Federal regulations. 

(I) Storrn\\3.ter, surface Hater, ground \\;:lter. artesian \\e!l \\3tCT. roofrunofr subsurlace 
drainage. s\\imming pool drainage, condensate, deionized \\alcr, noncontact cooling \\ater. and 
unrollut..:d industri3! \\;1S1C\\atcr. unless specifica.!!y authorized in writing by the Cil~ ;"-1anagcr 
or design~e. 

(m) Any ::;ludges, screenings, or other residues from th.: pretreatment of industrial \\,lstes. 

(n) Any medica! \\astes, exccpt as specitically authorized in writing by the Cit)- .\lzlI1ager or 
designee in a \"aste\\3tcr discharge penniL 

(0) Any \\astc\\ater causing the treatment plant's ef1luent to fail a toxicity h:st. 

(p) An) \\.astes containing detergents. surface actlvc agents. or other substances \\l1ich rna:
causc c\ccssi\t! tllaming in the POTW. 

(q) Any discharge of fats, oib. or greases of animal or \egetable origin is limited to 100 mg L 

(r) An)- discharge of petroleum mineral oil products IS hmited to 25 mg L 

(s) Gasotlne. benzene, naphtha. so!\ent, fue! od or any ljquid, solid or gas that \\Oldd cause or 
tend to cause flammable or e\plosi\c conditions to result in the sc\\eragc s)-stern_ 

172 



(1) Waste contaimng toxic or poisonous solids, liquids or gase!'l In such quantities that. alone or in 
combination \\ith other \\aste subst;:mces. may create a hazard for humans. animals or the !ocal 
cm ironment. interf~re detrimentally \\ ith \\ astt~\\atcr treatment processes, oust:" a public 
nuisance. or cause any hazaruous condition to occur In the se\\crage system. 

{5} Wastes prohihited by this section shall not he processed or stored in such a manner that the) 
could be discharged to the POTW. All floor drJ.ins located in process or materials storage areas 
must discharge to the industria! user's pretreatment facilJty before connecting \\!th the POTW. 
lOrd. 2R6. 2012; Ord. 203.1990; Ord. 190 ~ 47. 19R7. FormerJ, 13.10.4101 

13.10.421 Dilution. 

:\0 industrial user or \\ ilste\\alt:r hauler shaH c\ er incn:Jsc the use of process \\ater. or in In} 

nay attempt to dilute a di!'lcharge, as J partia! or compkte ;-;ubstitute for adcquate treatment to 
achic\e cmnpliam:e \\ith a discharge limitation. unless expressly Ju!horized by an applicahle 
pn:treatmeni standard or requiremenL "I he City r.lanager or designee may impose mass 
Ilmitations un industri ... d users \\hich are using dilution to mcct app!icahk pretreatment standards 
or requirements. or in other caseS \\hen the imposition of mass limitations is appropriate. [Ord. 
~S6> 2012,J 

13.10.-122 City's right of re,ision. 

The City re."icnes th<..' right to t:lltcr illto sp<..'cia! \\filtt:!l agret:ments \\iih industrial users settmg 
out special terms under \\hich they may di:;dnrgc to the POT\V. In no CClie \\ill il special 
agrcemt:nt \\ai\c compliance \\ith il pretreatment standard or requirement. I'[(mc\cr, tht: 
l!H.lu",trial user may n.:que:-it 3 nel gross adjustm..:nt to J CJtegorical st::mdanj in accordance \\ith 
-W CFR 40J, 15. 1']lt:y may also request a \:lriance from th..: categorical rn:tn:-;::Hmenl standard 
from LPA. Such a request \\lJ! he appro\ed only ift!w indu~tria! usn can prove that factors 
rdating to its discharge an: fundamcl1Ully different from the t':lctors consiJcn:d by EPA \\hCD 
cstah! ishing that prdrea1ment standard, An indu-;tria! user n:questing il fUlHbmcnla!!: di fTcn:nt 
factor \ariam:c mu'>t comp!) \\Ith Ihc rroo:uural and suhstanti\e rrNlsinn.'" in 40 CFR 40:;, 13 
lOrd. 2Slr. 20 I 2. 1 

Ar1Jcle VI. Pn:trcatmcnl OfWJ.",te\\JltT-, 

13.10..425 Pretreatment and screening. 

D .. }mestlc sc\\agt: (:onsisting essentially of human \\J::-;ic rna) be passed in10 the se\\crs \\ithout 
screening, Industria! \\<1s1e must ht: examined prior to discharg~ into th~ City sc\\er system h) 
the City )'bnagef or designee and. if he deems it necessary, such \\]sles must he g!\cn 
prelJminJry treatment and be scrcened prior to their discharge into the sc\\er s)-stcm. fhe 
type of treat men! and scrcening shall be subject to the Cit)- \.bnager's or designec\; soh: 
discretion, 

173 



::':0 person sha!l suffa or permit any premises belonging to or occupk:d by or under his control. 
an)-' ccllar, tault, cesspooL prJ\:Y, sewt:r or prh ;:lte drain thereon. to become foul or off\;.-nshc and 
detrimental to the health or puhlic comfO!1. [Ord. 2S(). 2012.J 

13.10.426 Pretreatment facilities. 

Industrial users shaH pn)\.idc necessary \\astewater treatment as required to comply \\ith this 
chapter and shall achit:vc compliance \\,1th all categorical prctreatment standards, local limits and 
the prohibitions set out in thIS chapter \\ ithin the time limitations specified by the EPA. the Stale, 
or the City ~!anagcr or design!.!e. \\hiche\er is more stringent Any facdities required to pretreat 
\\Jste\\'ater to a level acceptabk to the City shall be provided, opl.!rated. and maintained at the 
inullstrial ust:r's expense. Dctaih:d pbns shm\ ing the pretreatment facilities and operating 
procedure shall he suhmitteu to the City for rc\ic\\, anu must be apprmcd by the City hefore 
construction of the facility, The re\ie\\ of such plans and operating procedures \\[11 in no \\a)
relieve the industrb1 user from the responsibil ity of modifying the facility as necessary h) 

produce an acceptahle Jischarge to the Cit;. under the prmisions of this chapter. fOrd. 2S6. 
2012.J 

IJ.IO..l27 Additional pretreatment measures. 

{I) Whenc\crucemed necessarJ , the City ~lanJ.gcr or designee may require industrial users to 
restrict their di';cliargc during peak £10\\ periods, designate that certain \\'l'ite\\ater he di'ichargcd 
only into spec! fie sc\\ ers, rdncale and or consollllatc points of discharge. scparate st:\\ age \\ ast(: 
streams from industria! \\aste streams. and such other condition,> a'i may be necessary to prot(:ct 
th(: POTWand determine the industrial user's compliance \\ith the requirement..; of this chapter. 

(1) Each r(:rson discharging into the POT\\' greater than 100.000 gallons per (by shajJ instal! and 
maintain, on his property and at his expense, a suitahle storage and tlt.m control fuei!!ty to ensure 
equa!iz;1tJOn of flo\\ o\\:r a 1-J-hour p(:riod. 

(3) Industrial users \\ith the pl1tentlallO discharge !1arnmab!e suhstan(:cs may he rC4uired to 
ins!;1!] and maintain an approl,ed combustible gas detection mctcr. 

("J.) At no lime shall an~ reading on a properly ca!ihra[(:d combusttblc ga::; detector at the point of 
dlschargc into the POT\V, or at any point in the POT\r, be more than 20 percent ofthl.! 100\er 
exp!o::;i\'c limit (LEL) oCthe mcler. fOrd. 2S6. 2012,1 

13.10.428 Accidental discharge/slug control plans. 

Th(: crty ~1anJ.ger or designe(: may require Jny industrial user to de\L~!op Jnd implement an 
accidental dischJ.rgl' slug control plan. Atkast once e\er;. t\\O years the Cit) ;"'1anagef or 
deslgncc shaH e\ atuatc \\ hetber each signt ticant industrial user needs such a p!J.n. Any industria! 
user rcquired to dc\ eJop and irnpkment an accidenta! discharge slug control plan shaH submit J 

pbn \\hich prm!d(:s. at a minimum, the fo!!c)\\!ng: 

{I) Description of discharge practices including nonroutine batch dIscharges. 

174 



(2) Description ofstor.:d cJ1Cm!Ca!:" 

(3) Procedures for immediately notifying the POT\\- of any acddt:ntaJ or slug discharge, Such 
notification must also b~ gi\en for any discharge which \\[lU!d \ioiate any of the prohihited 
discharges in RD,\IC and L1.JiiA20, 

H) Pw(cdures to pre,ent ;:H,hcrse impact from any accidental or slug discharge, Such procedures 
include, but are not limitt'J to. inspection and maintenance of storage areas, iundling and transfer 
of m;:ltcrials. loading and unloading operations. control of plant site runoff. \\ orker truining, 
building of containment structures or equipment. measures for containing toxic organic 
pollutants (includmg soh· ems). and or measun:s and equipment for emergency response. 

(5) Procedures for immediately notifying the POT\\" of any cbngcs afl"":cting thl..' potential fnr a 
sludge d!schMgl'. lOrd. 2S6, 2012.l 

13.1 O..J29 Tenanl responsibility. 

Where an O\\ncr of prop crt} !eb premises to an} other person a" a tenant. ifeithn the O\\ner or 
the tenant is an industrial user, dtller or ooth may be held n:spnnsihle for compliance \\ lth the 
pn)\i'i!ons of this chJpter. Tlli", prmision is cnfon:eahlc againsl either the o\\I1eL tenant or hotlL 
\\ ithnut regard to an} contrJctual arrangcmenb as bet\\een thl: {)\\ner and tenant. [OnL 2:';6, 
20121 

13.IO..J30 Hauled wastewater. 

(1) SeptJc tank \\a:-i!e of residential origm may he accepted into the POTW at a designated 
rece!\ structure \\fthin the tn:Jtrnenl plant arc;:t and;]t such times ,1'> Me e:>tah!islwd the 
City \bnagcr or lksignel..!. pn"l\ idcd such \\3St:.:S do not \- iobtc the pro\ isions of this charter or 
an)- orh;;-f requirement) cstablisht:d or adortt:d b)- the \\'J:-ik\\ater discharge permits flJr 
mdi\ idua! \-chicks to u:-:c such faeilitic"i "ihal! be issueJ hy and at the discretion of the Cit}
\1anager or designee. hased on the interest:> and purposes to he sen cd under this chapkr. 

(2) rhe thsdurge of hauled industrial \\<!stt::-: is prohibitd \\ililOUl prior aprn_l\aJ and J 

\\ asten akr dlschargt: permit from the City. 

(3) Fees for dumping scpuge \\ ill be eSlab!]shcd as pan of rhc indu"itrial user fec system J:-i 

authorizcd in thb chapter. fOnt 2S6, 2012.] 

13.!()A31 federal categorical pretreatment standards. 

The natiDn;]l catcgorical pn:(fi:atm.:nt sLlnJJrds ftnmd at 40 eFR, Clnptcr L Suhch;'1ptcr:\, Part" 
405 through 47i art::: hereby incorporalt.:d. lOrd. 2S6, 2()12.j 

lJ.lOA32 llltereeptor requirements. 

175 



Grease. oj[ anrJ sand intercl'ptors shall be prO\ iderJ \\hen, in the opinion of the City ,\Lmagcr or 
lksignee. they arc necessary for the proper handling of 1.\ astc\\ ater containing excess!\'(: amounts 
of grease and oiL or sand: except that such interceptors shall not be required for residential users. 
All interception units shaH be of type and capacity approved by the City Manager or designee 
and shall be so located to be easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. All interception units 
shall be instaUcd in accordance \\lth the prO\!sions of this chapteL Such interceptors shall be 
inspected. cleaned. and n:paired regularly, as needed. by the owner at their sale expense, ~e\\ 
and existing u .. .;ers that arc determined by the City ~1anager or designee to hm'e a reasonable 
potential to adn;-rsdy impact the POT\\< shall instal! a grease interccptoL 

(I) L"sers that arc required to ha\'e a grease interceptor may be required to connect fixtures or 
drains that ha\c a reasonahle potentia! to 3110\\ fats, oils, and gn:a-"t' 10 be discharged 10 the 
POTW to an appropriately sized grease inten.:eptoL 

(2) l'ser", \\ ith g3rhage grindt!rs shall discharge the g~lfbage grinder to a grease interceptor \\ ith a 
minimum capacity of LOOO gallon", or remme the gJrbage grindeL 

(3) l'sers \\llh disll\\a",hers shall discharge the dis!masher directly' to the POTW or to a grease 
interceptor \\ith a minimum capacity of750 gallons, 

( .. lJ Accumulated grease and sediment shaH he remmed as required, At a minimum gravit) 
grease interceptors and grease traps shaH he cleaned \\hen the comhined depth of sediment and 
grea,,,c equJls or exceeds 25 percent orthe totdl depth orthe sedjmcnL \\atcr. and grt:Jse, For 
mUltiple chamben:d imen:eptors the measurement of sediment and grease is to he performed in 
the final interceptor chamber prior to dis~hargc. All other grea.:;t: interceptnrs shall he maintained 
in accordance \\Ith the manufacturer's srecifi~atjons. 

(5) Grca~e interceptors shall he kept free of nonfood \\aste lndudmg but not hmil':u to grit. 
rocks. gra\cL sand. eating uten~ils, cigarettes. trash. tcmels. and rags. 

(6) Thc addition of chemical:;, enzymes, emulsifiers, !i\e bacteria or other grease cuth:rs or 
Jddnl\cs used for purposes of grease reduction to a grease interceptor is specit1call:r prohibited. 

(7) If the Cit;, \tanager or deSIgnee determines that a grease interceptor is not being adequatel:;. 
cleaned or maintained, a correction nntice ma}- be issued requiring the deficiency he com:cted 
within se\en \\orking days. ~taintenance programs including B~lPs and defined cleaning 
fn:quencies may be mandated. l'sers that fail to adhere to a maintenance program may be 
reqUlred III in~tal! additional pretreatment de\ ice~. 

(S) The City \\il1 oe\c!np and implement J fats. oils. and grease policy. 

(9) Inspections and Sampling. Tile Cit;. ~lanJger or any person designated by the City '\,tanager 
may inspect the bcillties orany user of the City of Rio Del] sanitary' se\\er system, or an}
facilities tn any \\ay or manner connected to tbe City orRio Del! sanitary st!\\cr system, to 
ascertain \\hether the purpo~e of this chapta is being met and aU requirements are being 
complied \\ lth. Persons or occup:1l1ts of the premises \\ here se\\age or \\ astt!\\ ater is crcated or 

176 



discharged shall a!!ow th..: ;vbnager or his desib'Tlec ready access at a!l rcasonabk times and 
at all parts of the premises for the purposes of inspections or sampling, or in the performance of 
any of thdr duties. The City of Rio De!! shall have the right to set up on user's property sllch 
dc\ ices as are ne..:essary to conduct sampling Jnd metering operations, 1 he refusal of rt!ilsonable 
acc..:ss to the user's premises for inspection purposes or monitoring purposes of sanitary sc\\cr 
system-rdated matters shall be grounds for immediate suspension of the Rio Del! sanitary sc\\er 
system scnice to the person refusing reasonahle access to the user's premises, including 
immediate Sc\cmnce oft11e sewer connection as sd forth in RD:\lC J 3.! OA()0{7). 

(10) Interceptors \binkn;:mce, All grease. oil and sJnd interceptors shall he m;l!ntained by the 
mmer, at his expense. in continuously efficient operation at all times. fOrd. 2S6, 20 [2: OnL 203. 
1990; Oni. !90 ~~ ~0. 50. 5L 19S7. Formcrly 13.1O.-l30 1:U0".150.1 

13.10..133 Time of compliance. 

All commercial facili!it:s and food establishmcnts that arc required to !l;:ne a sand and or grease 
inten.:eplor or grease trap according to RD)'lC LlJ OAT2 shall he n:quircd to install a sand and or 
grea-;e interCl:pior or grease trap \\ithin the hO-day period afkr the first occurrence ofJny of the 
fo!](ming e\en!): 

(I) Transfer orany o\\Dcrship or intert:~t in the commercia! facility: 

en The is.,,uJnce b;.- the Count} of any building penmt for the construction, reCOrlstrUCllOn or 
rdilled \\ork to he pnfDrmcd on tht: rn:mlscs costing mort: than S5.000; 

(3) The hackup or dischargt: of fa\\ SC\\:lgC on or from the pn:miscs due to grea:.;,: buildup in 
tht:ir scn ict' lat.:ral: or 

(,J) :\mety days atkr n.:-cei\ing \HiUt:n nutice fmm the Ciiy \IJnag.:r or dC:-iignct' oftl1e nClessitj 
f()r Installation of such Llc!!ilies. [On12Sh, 20i2,) 

13.lOAJ.4 ~Ionitoring and reporting, 

Ali esub!lshments h,1\ ing a grease trar or interceptor shaH maintain and cle~U1 this unll as 
n:comm.:nded by tll.: manufacturer. Each grease IrC1p or interceptor shall be regularly mainlJin::d 
by tht: proprietor or property O\\DCr anJ records kept al the silt' for inspection hy the Cit), 
~fainlcnam;t: \\i!! \o.r) dept:lldmg upon the size of the unit and gJt.'ase IOJ.ding< The propc!"t: 
o\\l1Cf or propridor shall senJ J. copy orlhe maintenance record:-=. to the Cjty annually from the 
time ofl!1~tJ!!atlOn or some other agreed upon date b) the Cjt>, At no time shall th~ unit he 
alkmcd to hecome dogged nith grea'ie.:;o as to create damage to the City coHection or treatment 
faciJllies, The propriewr must Je\dop J. ckcming schedule suftlclent io keep the unit functioning 
properly, RecnnJs of grease dIsposal to a collection ]gent must be made <J\ ailah!c 10 Cit> 
personnd upon request fOrd. 2%, 201 

Arti...:!\.! \'IL Waste DIscharge Permit 

177 



13.10,435 Wastewater survey. 

\Vhcn requested by the City ~lanJger or desib'TlCe. all industria! users must submit information 
on the nature and characteristics of their \\JstC\\3tef by com pI ding a \\f1stt!\\atef survey prior to 
commencing their dIscharge. Tht.! City i>.bnaga or d6ignce is authorized to prepare a form for 
this purpose and ma} periodical!,:. require industrial users to update the survey. Failure to 
complete this stine,:. shall he reasonable grounds for terminating service to the industrial user 
and shall be considered a violation oflhi:; chapter. or for imposing p.:-nalties as set oul in RD~IC 
13.10.457 through 13.10.466. lOrd. 236. 201L] 

13.10.436 Wastewater discharge permit requirements. 

t I) Requirement. 

(a) It shJ!! hI.! unIJ\\fu! for an: significant industria! user to discharge \\3.s:tt."\\ater into tht.! Cit)'s 
PO T\\, \\ itbout first ohtaining a \\ astt.!\\ ata discharge pamit from tht.! Cit.: \1anager or designee. 
Any \ !o!Jtion of th.: terms Jnd comiitions of a \\a"te\\ater u!scharge permit shalt be deemed a 
\ 10[at1011 of this chapter and subjects the \\ asic\\ atL'r I.bchJrge permittee to the enforcement 
actions set out in this chapter. Obtaining a \\;lste\\akr discharge permit docs not relic\e a 
permittec of its obligation to comp!: \\ ith all Fedaal anu State prt.!treatment sland"mb or 
requirement:' or \\Ith any other requirements ofFedaJL SUtc. anJ local b\\, 

tb) The Cit} )..!anager or designee ma: require other industr!Jt lLscrs, In.:lud!!lg liquiJ \\aste 
haulers. 10 obtJln \\,b\l:\\ater dischargt.! permits a" nece%ar) k) carr:. out th~ purposes ofthi;.; 
charteL 

(2) l'xhting CO!ll1l.!ctions_ An:- significant industria! tber \\hich discharges industrial \\J2'ik intll 

thc ponr prior to thc dTect!\c date of the ordl!lallcc codified in this chaptcr and \\110 \\lshe'i to 
Cl1ntrnue such dIscharges in the future slu!!. \\ithin 45 dJ.':-s after said d]te. apply to the Cn:- fix a 
\\aste\\ah:r discharge permit in a..:cordancc \\ith RD\IC 13.10.437, and shaH not cause or allm\ 
discharges tI) the POT\\" h) continu.: atr..:r 90 d.lys of the effect\\c (LIte or the ordl!1Jllce codificd 
in this: chapter cxcept tn accordance \\ ith a \\]stt,.'\\ater dhchargc permit issued b~ the Cit), 

(3) :\c\\ ConnectIon..,. An:: Significant industrial user proposing tL) begin or recommence 
discharging industrial \\Jste2'i into the POT\\" must obtain j} \\aste\\ater dbcharge permit prior tn 
disdlJrging, An app!iczltinn for this \\ aste\\ah.'r discharge permit must he fild at least 45 da~s 
prior In the date upon \\ !lith In} disdurgL' \\ ill begin, 

(-t I A Zero dlSdurge permit ma,:- be issued to industrial lht.!fS generattng process \\ aste\\ n.tL'rs 
\\ho \\ould normally be subjt:ct to either this section or subject ttl cakgorical pretn:atmenl 
stand:mls under ..to CF R -t{n.6 and ..J-O C1- R. Chapter L Subpart i\. but arc not dbcharglng said 
\\aste strL'amts) to tht.! system, Zero discharge permit holders are :-;ubject to all applicahle 
regulations under IncaL State. or Fedaa! !ans. PurSuclnt to this chapter. a statement of/ern 
discharge must hI:! submitted to the Cit:. annually.IOnL lS6, 2012.] 

13.10..137 \Vastewater discharge permit application. 

178 



1.! ) Content:-;, All industria! users required to ha\c a \\a:;t\!\~ater discharge permit must submit a 
completed \\HstC\\,ater discharge permil applicution. The City 0.1anaga or ues!f,.,tnt;:e shal! apprO\c 
J form to be useu as a permit application. Incomp!d\! or inaccurate applications \\ ill not he 
proc\!ssed and \\ ill be rctumed to the Imlustr!aJ user for fe\ is!on, 

(2) Application Signatories and Ccrtifi.cation, AI! \\:lstc\\akr discharge permit applications and 
industrial u.-;er repnfts must contain the foHo\\ing certification statement Jnd he signed by an 
authorized represcntati \ e of t!lt: industria! user: 

! certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachm~nts \\cre pn:pared under my 
direction or supt:r\ Ision in acconJanct: \\I!h a system designed to assun: that qualified personnel 
rroperly gJther and euluatt: th~ int1:Xmalion suhmittd, Ba:->cd on my inquiry of the person or 
per,:;ons \\ 110 manage the system. Of tho:->c persons directly responsihle for gJthering the 
information. the information submitted j:-> to the hest of mJ knO\\ It:dge and hdle!: true. accurak. 
and complete. I am J\\J.re thaI there an: significant penalties for submitting false infonnatioM. 
including the posslbilJty of tine and imprisonment for I.:no\\ Ing \ iobtions. 

OJ \iJslcadmg. lncompktc or Fabt.: Information. Any application suhmlited \\ith intlmnation 
that is at Jny time determined to be matcna!ly mi"kadmg. i!lcomp!dt.: or false may result in 
termination of the permit. disconncction of st.:r\ i-=e, penalties under this chapter. as \\ ell as an) 
other rcm-=dlcs prll\ided hy Im\< [Ont 2S(), 2012.J 

13.10.438 Waste"ater discharge permit decisions. 

The Cit} ~lanager or designee \\!JJ e\aluale the data furnished by the industrial user and may 
n:quire addit!Ollal information. Within '-15 Ja).s of receipt of J complete \\astc\\ ater dbcharge 
permit arplJcation, the Cit> \bnager or designee \\ ill determine \\ hether or not to issue a 
\\J.ste\\;,ltcr dIscharge permit Ifno dekrmination is made \\ithin thi,:; time period, the applicat!Of1 
\\iH De decmeu denied. The City or designee mal den> any arrlJcation flJr a 
\\ astc\\ 3ter discharge permit [Onl 2S6. 2012.] 

13.10.439 Duration of permit ~o Reissu.ncc. 

(!) \\'JSie'.\]lI:r dlschargt: permits shan he bsued for a specified tim.: pt:riod. not tll ('>;;ceed five 
years. at the discretion of the City ~lJnJ.gn or Lach \\ 3ste\\;]tcr discnJrgt: permit \\ ill 
indicate a specific dale upon \\hich it nil! expire. 

(2) A significant industrial u"er shaH apply for \\;lstC\\;,l!cr dlscharge permit reissuance ol' 
suh!Tl!tting J compkle \\].-;!c\\ah:r d1scharge permit application in accordance \\ith RD;"{C 
LOo',,",'CCLo:J minimum 01'-1.5 days prior to the expiration ofthc industrialll:icr's \!\blmg 
\I,asi::\\alcr dlschJ.rge permit, [OnL 2:)6, 2012,1 

!3.IOA~O I'ermit contcn!s. 

WJste\\ ah:r discharge penn its shal! include such condltions JS are rCJsnn;'lhly deemed necessary 
by the Ciry· ;"la!1ager Of desi!:,rnee to prc\ent pass through or interference. protect the qu:llit~ of 

179 



the water body receidng rhe treatment plant's cffluent. protect \~orker hcaith and safety. 
flcilitate sludge management and disposal. protect ambient air quality. and protect against 
damage to the POT\\', 

( I ) Waste\\ ater discharge permits shall contain the fo!iO\\ ing conditions: 

(a) A statement that indicate:-; waste\\ater discharge permit duration, v,hich in no e\cnt shall 
exceed fi\e years, 

(b) A statement that the \\ ;15te\\ ater dl5charge permit is nontranskrable, 

(c) Effluent limits applicahle to the user ha,sed on app!icahtc standards in Fedt.:raL Stale. and 
loca! !a\\ 

(d) Sdf·monltoring. sampling, reporting. notification. and record keeping requirements, These 
requirements shall include an identification ofpo!!utants to be monitored. sampUng locat!on, 
sampling frequency, and sample type based on FederaL State, or localla\\. 

(e) Statement of appl!cab!e cl\i!. criminaL and administrati\e penafttes for \iolalion of 
pretreatment standards and requirements. and any appllcah!e complinl1ce schedule, Such 
schedule may not extend the time for COl11pllanCe beyond that reljuirt!u by applicable Federal, 
State. or locn! b\\, 

(0 Requirements tn control stug discharges, if detcrmim:d hy the POT\\' to he necessary, 

(2) \rastC\\akr lhsl..'harge penni!...; may c!,)Otain, hut need no! be limitcd to, the fo!kming: 

(J) Limit:; on the u\cragc and or maximum ratl! ofdischargl!. time of d!sci1Jrgl!, and or 
requirements for 110\\ regulation and cqu;1lJzalio[l, 

(h) Limits on in'itantaneolls, daily and montbly mcrage and or maximum concentration. mass, or 
other measure of i(knti fled \\ aste\\ ater pollutants or properties. 

(e) RCljulrements for the instal!ation of pretreatment techno!ogy_ pollution control. or 
construction of appropriate containment dc\ices, designed to reduce. eliminate. or pre\cnt tht.:: 
introduction of pollutants into tht.:: treatment \\orks. 

(J) Dc\ dopmcnt and implcmentation of spill control plans or other special conditions including 
management practices necessar;.- to Jdequatd: pre\cnt accidental, unanticipated, or routine 
discharges. 

Ie) Dc\clopment and implementatIon oC\\;:Isrc minimizalion pL:lns to reduce the amount of 
po!lutants discharged to the POTW, 

(n The unit charge or schedule 01' industria! U'icr charges Jnd fees for the management or the 
\\a.;tc\\atcr discharged to the POT\\', 

180 



(g) Requiremt'nts for instalbtion and maintenance of inspection and sampling facilities and 
eqwpmen!. 

(h) A statement that comphance \\lth the \\Jstc\\::Her dlscharge pt:rmit uoes not re!ic\c the 
permittee ofn:sponsihi!ity for compllancc \\ith aU applicah!e Federal and State pretreatment 
standards. including those \\hich become effccti\e during the term orlhe \\asic\\J.ter discharge 
pennit. 

(i) Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the City 0.iaoaga or designee to ensure 
compli:1nce \\ltl1 this dB.pter. and State and Federal I<ms. ruk:;. and regulations. fOrd. 2R6. 
2012 J 

13.1O.4~ I Appeals. 

Any perstHl, incluJmg the indu;.;tria! user. may petltion the City to reconsider the tt:rms of a 
\\J-itc\\;Her discharge permit \\ithin 10 days of its issliance, 

{I) Failure to suhmit J. timely petition f~)r re\ie\\ shall bc tkemed to hI.': J \\ai\cr orIhe 
administrati\c appeal. 

(2) In its petition. the appea!ing part) must indio:ate the \\aste\\ater di.;cbargt.: pennit pr()\i;.;ion:-; 
ohjt:cteo to, the reJ-;on for this objection. and the nltematiH~ condition. irany, it seeks to place in 
the \\:\stt:\\a!cr di;.;dnrgc permit. 

(3) Tht.: cfft:cti\ctH':SS oftlle \\J-;te\\ater discharge pcrmit shall not he stJ)ed pending tht.: 3ppcal 
process. 

H) Ifth.: City faib to act \\ithin 10 days. n request for reconsid":rJ!ion slw.!] be deemed 10 be 
denic(L 

(5) If the rulmg !nJde by the City i\Lmag;;r or desIgnet.: i~ unsatislJctOf) to the person rcqut:stmg 
rL'consideratiun. they may. \\!thin 10 after notification of such City action, fik a \\fiItcn 
appeal to the COllnciL The \\finen appeJl shall be h":Jrd hy the Council \\ithin 30 U;)ys after the 
date of fi.lmg. The Council shaH make a t1!1al ruling on the appeal \\ ithin to d,rys after the c!o;.;c 
of tile meeting. lOrd. 2S6. 2012.] 

13.10.4~2 Pcrmit modification. 

(ll The City :"1anager or designee may moaH"; the \\a-;te\\akT discharge pl.'rmit \\ Ith good CJuse 
including. hut not nmit~d to, the folkming: 

(,1110 incorporate any nc\\ or f!!\iscu FctkraL Stale. or local pretreatment standJ.ru" or 
requlrements: 

(h) To address signific:mt a!terJ!ions or adJltions to the industrial user's operation. proces.-;es. or 
\\JstC\\;ltcr \olume or character since the time Of\\aSlC\\akr discharge penTI!t issuanc..:: 

181 



(c) To address change in the POTW that n:quires either a temporary or pernnnent reduction or 
climination of the authorized discharge; 

(d) To address information indicating that permitted discharge poses a threat to the City's 
POT\\" City personnel. or the receiving \\atcrs; 

(c) For J violation of any tenns or conditions of the \\astC\\Jter discharge permit: 

Ul For misrepresentJtion~ or failure!O fully disdosc all re!c\ant facts in the \\astc\\ater 
discharge permit applrcation nor in any requircd reporting; 

(g) To adJre~s re\ ision of or a grant of \ ariance from categorical pretreatment standards pursuant 
to ~o eFR ~03.13: 

(h) To con'ee! typographica! or other CrTor:-i in the \\;:btC\\ater discharge permit: and 

(2) The filing of a request hy the permittee for a \\a:-ite\\ ater ol:-ichargc permit moddication does 
not stay any \~aste\\ata discharge prrmit condition. [Or(L 2S6. 2012.] 

13.10.443 Transfer of permit. 

Wastc\\atcr discharge permits may not he rea.%lgned or transferred to a nc\\ owner. [Ord. 2R6, 
2012.J 

13.10A·H Revocation of permit. 

(1) Wastc\\ater dL->ch:irgc pennih may he n:\ol\ed for thc fol!O\\ing rca:-ions; 

(a) Failure to nOlify the City ofsignificatH changes to the \\astc\\atcr prior to the changed 
discharge; 

(b) Failure to pr()\ ide noti ticatlon to the City of changed conditions pursuant to RO\-lC 
FI0.~~9: 

tcl ).tr:-ireprescnti.ltion or tliture to fully di:-;close all rele\ant facts in the \\ash!\\ater dl:-icharge 
penni! application: 

(0) FaLsifying :-idf-monitoring reports: 

(e) Tampering \\ith monitoring equipment: 

(I) Refusing to aHo\\ the City time!:- access to the facility premisc:-i and records: 

(g:) Failure to meet effluent Itmitatlon-;; 

(h) Fai tun! to PJY tine~: 

182 



(i) Failure to pilr S!.':\\er cbarges; 

U) Fadure to meet complL:mce schedules; 

(k) Fai!ure to complete a \\ib!l.'\\ater :'iuney or tnt' \\astc\\ater discharge pr:rmit application: 

(1) Failure to prmide ad\ance notice ofthc transft:r ofa permitled faci!it:: or 

(m) Violation of any pn:tn::atmcni standard or requirement. or In} terms of lhe \\ ash.'\\,J.ter 
discharge permit or this chapter. 

(2) Waste\\ aler discbarge permits shall he \ oidahle upon nonuSe, cessation of operation;-;, or 
transfer ofbu'ilness O\\ne1"ship. All \~aste\\ater discharge permits are \-oid ilron the i:'iSllal1Ce ora 
ne,\ \\;:bk\\ater discharge permit, [Ord. 2S6. 2012:,] 

Article \'HL Reportmg Requin::mt"ni...; 

13.1O.4~5 Baseline monitoring reports. 

( 1 ) Within either J:SO days after the efrcdi \ e datt" of a categorical pretreatment standard. or the 
fin~i! administratl\e decision on a category determined under 40 eFR .J.O:;.6(a)(,.J.). \\bichc\t:r is 
Jatt:L existing significant industrial users subject to such categorical pretreatment standards, and 
current!: discharging 10 or scheduled to discharge to the POTW, shaH he required to suhmit to 
the City <1 report \\-hid; contains the information h;-;ted in subsection (2) of this section. At lea,..;t 
90 prior to commencement oftht;ir discharge, n('\\ sources, and soun.;e:-; tInt hecome 
industrial users suhsequent to thc promulgation of;m appiiclOlc catl'gnricai standard, shaH he 
required to ;iuhmit to the City a report \\hich conlains the inforrnaiJon llsled in 5uhst:ctlOf1 (2j of 
thb section. A ne\\ source sin!! also be reljuin:d to report the me!llOd of pretn:atment it intend') 
to tbe hi meet applicable pretreatment standards, r\ nt:\\ source "hajj also c estimates of its 
anticipated O()\\ and qUiJntity of pollutants di;-;chargeo, 

(2) The industria! ust:r shan submit tht.: infurmation required hy thb section indudmg: 

{a) Identifying InflJrmation. The name Jnd ;:uldrcss oflhc faciJ1ty inciuding the name oethe 
operator ;:100 0\\ ners, 

(0) WaSie\~atl'r Dl:'idnrge PL'rmits, A hst of any emironmcntal control \\Jste\\:J.ter obcharge 
permits held by or for lhe facility. 

(c) Description of Operations. A oriel' description of the nature, J\erage rate of production, unJ 
standard industrial dbSificJl!OD:'i of the operation(s) carrit:J out by. such industrial user, This 
description should include a schematic proce;-;s diagram \\ hich indicates point;.; of discharge 10 

tht: POTW from the rcgu!31ed proccSi>ieS, 

183 



(u) Flo\\ !\'lea~uremeIlL Information sh(ming the measured a\erage daily and maximum Jail) 
nO\\. in gJlIons per day, to the POT\\' from regulated process .'I1ream.'i and other streams. a~ 
necessar). to allO\\ u~e of the combined \\as[e stream formula set OUl in 40 eFR 403.6(e}. 

(e) i\ka'iun.:ment of PoIJut:1nts< 

(i) IdentifY the categonca! pretreatment standards applicahle In each regulated process. 

(ii) Suhmit the results of sampling and analysi ... identil).-ing the nature and concentration (and or 
mass. \\here n:quired by the standard or b;.- the Cit)) of regulated pollutants in the discharge 
from each n:gulated process. Instantaneous. dail:;. maximum and long-term a\erage 
con.:entrations (or mass. \\'here requin:d) shaH be reported. The sample shal! be reprcsentati\e of 
daily operation and shall be analyzed in accordance \\ltl1 procedures sct oul in RD:'-lC 13.10.454. 

(iiil S:lInpllf1g mtL->t be performed in accordance \\itb prol:edures set out in RD\lC 13.10.455. 

({) CertificatIOn. r\ statement re\ie\\ed b:;. the industrial user's authorrzed represent3tin.' and 
certJllcd b} a qualified professional. imilcating \\ht:ther pretreatment standards arc being Illt:! on 
J consistent ba:.;is and. ifnoL \\hethcr additional operation and !ll3intL'!laIlCe {O&.\1} and or 
Jddltlona! pretreatment is required h} meet the pretrc:uml"nt standards and requirement. 

(gl Comp!bnce Schedule. rradditiona! pretreatment and or O&\f \\i!! be required to meet the 
pl'l:treatlllcnt stmdar&.;; the shnrtest schedule by \\hich tbe indumial user \\ilt rrmide slich 
add!tional pretreatment and or O&\L 1 he completion d.lte in this schedule shal! not he bter than 
tht: compl!ance ddte e:'\tab!i-,hed for th..: applicable prdrcdt!1lent standclfil A ClJmpJiance .'ichedule 
pursuant to th!s :iection ITIlI:">t meet the requirement", sd oul in RD:'fC 13.ID.446, and signed by 
an authorized representati\c a.'i defined b:;. RD\lC 13.10.010. 

(h) Signature and Certilicarillll. All basclrnc monitoring: reports mu:;! be signed and certified in 
accordance \dth RD\lC 13.10.437(2). lOrd. 2S6, 2012.J 

13.lOA.t6 Compliance schedule progress report. 

The follO\\ ing conditions shaH app!} to the schedule reqtmed hy RD:-'fC 13.10.445. The 
schedule ..;Iul! contain progress incrernell!s in the form of dates for the commencement and 
completion of major e\ em:; leading to the cO!l:;truction Jnd operation of additional pretreatment 
required for the user to meet the applicable pretreatment standard~ I such e\ ellts inclmk hiring an 
eng.ineer, completing preliminary and final plans. executing cL1ntr<1ch for major components. 
commencing and compkting construction, beginning and conducting routine operation}. 1\'0 
increment referred to above shall e\ceed nine months, The tndu'>trial user shal! submit a progress 
report hl the City ~lanager or designee nll later than 14 days 1'0110\\ ing each date in the schedule 
and the final date or compliance. 1 he report shall Include at a minimum. \\.hether or not it 
complied \\.!th the increment of progress. tile reason for an} delay. and, ifJppropriatt:. the steps 
being takcn b~ the industrial user to return to the established schedule. In no e\ent shall more 
than nine month:; clap.'ie het\\cen such progress reports to the City Manager or designee. [Ord. 
2R6,2012.) 

184 



13.10.4-17 Report on compliance with categorical pretreatment standard 
deadlines. 

Within 90 days fo!h)\\ing the dute for fin]l compli;.mcc \\ilh applicable categorical prctn:atmen! 
standards. or in the case of a ne\\ sour;;e fO!!O\\lng commencement of the introduction of 
\\J'itc\\akr into tbe POTW. nn> indu~trii.l! user subject to such pretreatment standards and 
n:quirement..; shall submit h) the City a report containing the infonnation described in RD~lC 
13.l0 . .445(1)(d) through (f), For industri:tI users subject to cquhalent mass Of cnncentration 
limits establishcu in accordance \\ ith the procedurt.:s in 40 eFR 403.6( c). this report shall contain 
a reasonah!e mca"iun: of the industrial user's hmg-term production rate. For all other industrial 
users suhject to categorical pretreatment standards expressed in tt:rms of alhmablt: pollutant 
discharge rer unit of production (or other measure of operation I. this report shal! include the 
indu .. trial user's actual production during tilL' appropriate sampling period. AI! compliance 
report.; must he signed and ccrtifi~d in acomLmcc \\ith RD\lC 13.1O.437(2L [On!. 2K6. 2012.] 

13.IOA-I8 Periodic compliance reports. 

(I) Any significant indu:-;trial u:-;er subjt:ct to a pn:tre;:ltment .;tandard shall. at a fn:quency 
ddermined bJ the Cit: ;"{anagcr or designee. hut In no ca..,e les.; than om:!..' pt!r )-ear (in 
December). submit a rCpt)!'t indicating the nJ[Ure and concen!ratin!l of pollutants in the discharge 
\\hich an.: limited b)- such pretreatment sundan.1:-; and the mt!,lsured or estimated ;:ncrJ.ge and 
111a\jmum dad) tltms for the fl..'porting pt:riod" All pt:riodic complJanct: n:porb mU'it hI.! signed 
and ct:rtified in acconbnce \dth RD,:\f(' 13.10.437(~L 

t2) All \\,p;;tt:\\akr sampks mu:;t hI..' rl..'prl..'Sl..'ntatiH~ oftht.': industna! lhcr's disdurge. \\-astl.!\\Ukr 
monitt)ring and tlo\\ lnt:a.'iurement facilities sl1;'111 be properly opl.!ratt'd. kept dean. and 
maintained in gnod \\orh.ing ordl'r at an times" The tJllun: of an indthtria! user to h.t'l'j! ib 
monitoring: facillt:: in good \\orking on_kr shaH not be ground ... for tilt.': industria! user to claim 
!!1J.t sampk rc::;u!t" are unreprt.:sentat!\ e of its dlscharge, 

C-;) Iran industria! lb(T subject to ilK' r..:purting requirement (n and nfthis section monitors an:: 
rnl!utant more frequently than r-:quired b)- the POTW~ using the procedure prescribed in RD,\lC 
""""'-"""£Land the re:-iulh of this !11~i!1itormg sha!! be mduded in the report. lOrd. 2Sh. 
20!2,] 

13.10..1-19 Repor!s of changed conditions. 

Fach indu~tria! ust.:r is required to lwtil:, the Cit} \JJ1Elger or designee of an: planned slgni!1cant 
change:-i h) the industria! user's operatinn:-; or system \\il1ch might alter the nJ.ture. qm.lit) or 
\o!ume of its \\l.lsh.'\\aler J.t kJ:-it..J5 da)-s he fore the change, 

11) 1 he City :VIanagcr or designee may require tb: indu~tria! user to suhmit ~uch Information a'i 
may he deemed neees'!;]!} tn c\ a!uate the changed condition. including the submission of a 
\\ aste\\Zlter discharge permit application, 

185 



(1) 0:0 industrial user shal! implement the planned changed condllions until and unless the Cit) 
:'-.la!1agcr or desi1:,TJ1cc ha:i responded to the indu~tria! user's notice_ 

(3) For purposes of this requirement. flo\\ increases of 10 percent or greater, and the discharge of 
Jny previously unreported pollutants. shan be deemed significant [Ord. 286. 2012. J 

13.10.450 Reports of potential problems. 

(1) In th!.! case of any discharge including. but not limited to, accidental discharge of nonroutine, 
episodic nature, a noncustomary batch discharge. or a slug load \\hich may cause potential 
problems for the POT\\' (including a \lolation of the prohibited discharge standards of this 
chapter). it is the responsibl1ity orthe industrial user to immediately telephone and notify the 
City of the incident. This not! fication shall include the location of dischargl!. Iype of \\ asle. 
concentration and \olume. ifknO\\n. and corrccti\'e action tab:n by the industrial user. 

(2) Within fi\e dJys fol!mdng such discharge. the industrial user shall. unless \\JJ\cd by the 
City Manager or design!.!t'. submit a dctJill!d written report descrihing the causes of the I..hschargl! 
and the measures to bt: taken hy the industrial u..,er to prevent simibr future occurrences< Such 
noti tication shall not relic\ e the industrial user of any expense. joss, damage. or other liability 
\\hlch may hI! incurred as a result of damage tn thl! POTW. natura! resources, or any other 
damage to person or property: nor shan such notification rel1e\e the industrial user of any fines, 
Cl\ i! penalties, or other habdity \\hich lTlay he imposl!d by this chapter. 

(3) Failure to nlHify tht.' City ofpott.'ntia! problem discharges shall be deemed a separate \iobtion 
of this chapter. 

(4) A notice shall he pennanemly posted on the industrial u:-;er's hui!etln board or other 
prnmincnt place ad\ising employe!.:s \\ho [0 ca!! in the c\cnt ofa discharge described in 
sub:-;ection (I) of this section" Emp!oyers shalt ensure that all employees, \\ ho lTlay cause or 
suffer such a discharge to occur. arc ad\ised of the emergency notification procedure. [Ord, 2S(), 
2012] 

13.10,451 Reports from nonsignificant industrial users. 

AI! industrial users nO! suhject to c3tl!gorical pretreatment standards and not required to ohtlin a 
\\as!e\\atl!r discharge permit shan provide appropriate repons to the Cit;.- as the CIt;.- 0.bnagcr or 
designee ma) require. [Ord. 2S6, 2011,1 

13.10,452 :\'otice of violation - Repeat sampling and reporting. 

I f sampling performed 0; an industria! user indlcatcs a \ iolation, the industrial user must notify 
the Cit) \\ithin 24 hours of becoming a\\3re orthe viobtion. The industrial user shall also repeat 
the sampling and analysis and submit the results ortlle rep!.!a! analysis to the City \\ithin 30 days 
aftt.:r becoming 3\\are orthe \iolation. The industrial user is not required to resamp!e if the 
POTW performs monitoring at the industria! user's location at least once a month, or if the 

186 



POT\\" rcrft)rm~ sampling hct\\ccn the industria! uscr·s initial sampling Jnd \\hen the industrial 
llser rece!\ e~ the results of this samp] !ng. [OnL 2':';6, 2012,] 

13.10..453 ]\;otilication of the discharge of hazardous "aste. 

(1) Any industria! user \\bo commences the discharge of hJ.LiJrdoll~ \\<lste sIB!! notify the 
POT\\'. the EPA Regional Waste ;...tmagement Didsion Director, and SUle hazardou:-i \\a~tt: 
authorities In \\ riting of any discharge into the POT\\- oCa substance \\ hich. ifothem 1St: 
disposed of: \\otdd he n hazardous \\aste under 40 CfR Pan 261. Such notification must include 
the names of the hazardous \\ aste a:-i set forth In ..!-O eFR Part 261. the EPA hJlanJoLls \\ ;:iste 
numher. and the typt: of discharge (continuous. belich, or other), If the industrial user dlscharg~s 
more than 1 () kilogram:-; of sllch \\<lstc per cak:ndar month to the POTW. tht: nOlitication shull 
abo contJin the folio\\ing inform:ltion to the c\knt infonnation is knlmn and rC;:j(JiI::. aui!Jhle 
to the industrb! users an identification of the hazardous constituents contained in thc \\ J'ites, an 
c..;timation of the !nebS 'Of constituents in tht: \\.astc stream c.xpe;;:ted to be dischargcd during the 
f()Jhm ing !.2 !11nntih All notifi;;:ation.:; must take place no jakr thJn ::;0 days after the dischargc 
C0111mC1KCS, An} notification under this subsection (j) need he submitted only once t'tx each 
luzardou:-i \\astt.: discharged. lfO\\e\~L notification" of changed discharges must be submitted 
under RD~IC 13.10,449. The notitication requin:ment in this section docs no! app!) to pollutant:'> 
already rt'ported under the self"monitoring requirements of RD~I(' 13.10.445. 13,10.447 and 
13.lD.44S. 

(2) In the L~bC of In} nc\\ regulation.; umkr Section 3001 of RCFL\ !{kmd';,illg addltiona! 
cJuractcri'itics ufkll<lrJous \\,1"it: or listing an} add1twn:ll SUb'iLm..:e a" a hanrdous \\ClStc. the 
indu-itrial u:-cr lllust notify tilt: PO r\\-, the FP:\ Regional Wa"tc \.LmagcHH::nt Wast.: Di\lsioll 
Din:ctor. and Stalc ha/ardous \u..;t.: authnritics of Ihl' discharge of such su!t:-;tJncc \\ ithin 90 del:- s 
of the effccti\\.,' dati: of .. .;uth n:gulatinn.." 

(3J In the Gl:>C Ofall\ nU1it1catiol1 m,ldl' undcr thL-; section, the indlbtrial u..;e!' shi-tll ceftit:, tliat it 
has a prngr.Hl1 in place h) reduce the \o!ume and ofhanrdous \\astcs gC!1erJtd h) thc 
dcgrec it !n..; determined 10 he C(OnOlTllCCl!!::' practical. 

{..4) fhi" pnn i;..;iQl1 doe:; not creat\: J right to d!schargc an) substan.:c not othcn\ ise pcrmittcu to 
be di:.;('harg~d hy ihis chapter. J permit is'iUl'd thcn:undcL or an) applicable h:dcra! Dr State L1\\, 
fOnL 2-"16, 201 ~ 

13.10.454 Analytical requirements. 

All poHuUllt anJ!~ses. including samplmg kdm!ques. to be suhmittcd d" tUft ora \\clstc\\akr 
dIScharge permit arrllcJlion or report sha!l ne pcrt{)f!ncd In ,H;:cordance \\ jtb the techniqucs 
prcsCfib~d in -1.0 erR Part 136. unless othem!se specified in an ilpplicahlc ..:akgoriCJ! 
pretH.'<1tml'!l! sL.mdanJ [f .oW eFR Part 136 Jocs not contain sampling Of analytica! techniques for 
the poliutant in question. sampljng Zlnd analyses mU'it b.; performed in accordance \\ith 
procedures apprl)\ cd by the EPA. t Ort!. 2~6. 2() 12.j 

13.10..155 Sample collection ~ Determination of noncompliance. 

187 



( !) Sampk Collection. 

(a) L\ct"!pt as indicated in subsections (I )(b) and (c) of this section. the industrial user must 
collect \\astc\\atcr samp1es using 2-1.~hour tlow~proportional composite sampling techniques. 
unkss time~proportiona! composite sampling or grah sampling is authorized by the City ~lanager 
or des!b1J1Ce, \V1Kre timc~proportional composite sampling or grah sampling IS authorized by the 
City. the samples must he representative of the dIscharge. l'sing protocols (including appropriate 
preservation) specified in 40 CrR Part 136 and appropriate EPA guidance, multip[e grah sampks 
collected during a 2-1.~hour period may be composired prior to the analysis as fol]O\\s: for 
cyanide. total phenols. amI sulfides thl.! samples may he composlted in the Iahoratory or in the 
field: for \ obtl!c organics and oil and grease, the samples may be composited in the laboratory. 
Composite sampll's for other parameters unafTected hy the cornpositing procedures as 
documented in appro\'cd EPA methodologies may be authorized by the City, as appropriate, In 
addltlon, grab samples may be requin:d to sl1O\\ compliance \\ith instantaneous limits, 

(0) Samples for otl and grease, Il:mperature, pH, cyalllde. phenols, toxici!y_ sulfides, and \olaUle 
organic chemIcals must be oht::dncd using grab collection techniques. 

(cl For sampling required in support ofluscline monitoring and l)O~day compliance rl.!pOJ1s 
requin:J in RD~lC 13.10.4-1.5 and 13.lO.4-J.(1 J minimum of {(Hlr grab samples must be used for 
plL cyanide, total phenols. oil and grease, sulfide and \olatjle organic compounds for f:ICiltries 
for \\hich historical sJmp!ing dJta do not exist; for facilities f(}r v .. hich historical sampling data 
are a\ ailabk the City ~lanager or designee may authorize a !()\\er minimum. For the reports 
required bJ RDylC V, 10.44S the indu:,rrial user IS required to collect the number of grab 
sampks necessary to assess and a:-;sure compliJnce v.ith applicahh: pretreaunent standards and 
requirements. 

(2) Determination of:\oncomp!iance. The Cny ~lanager or designee nB) U:,C J grab sarnph: to 
detennine noncompl iance \\ ith pretreatment standards. [Ord. 2S6. 2012.] 

13.10.456 Record keeping. 

Industriallisers shall rdain, and mnke a\ adahle for inspection and copying. all records and 
intiJrmatlon requin:d to hI.! retained under this chapter. These records shaH remain J\aibbk for a 
period of at least thrl.!e years. This period shall he automatically extended for the duration of any 
iitiption concerning compliance \\ ith this chapler. or \\ hl.!re the industrial user has been 
specifically notified of a longer retention period by the City i-.lanager or designee. [Ord. 2,'16, 

2012·1 

Article IX. Administration and Enforcement 

13.IOA57 Duties of City ;\Ianager. 

Except as othef\\ ise provided in this chapter, the City ~lanager shaH admmlstl.!r. implement and 
enforce the prmisions of this chapter. Any pO\\crs granted to or dutles imposed upon the Cit) 
~lanager may be delegated by. the City ~bnager to other City personnel. [Ord. 2Sfl, 2012,1 

188 



13.10.458 Compliance monitoring. 

(1) Inspection and Sampling, The City :'bnager or deslgnee shall han: the right in enter the 
facilities of an) industria! us!!r to ascertain \\hethcr the purpose of this chapkr. and any permit or 
orJt:r issued hereunder, is bt:ing met and \\hether the industrial user is complying \\ith all 
requirements thereoL fndustrial users shall allo\\ the City ~lanager or his representatives ready 
3CCt.:';-;S to all parts of the premises for the purposes of inspection. sampling, records examination 
and !.;opying. Jnd the pafonnancc oLmy additional dutie:;. 

(a) \\11cr:: an industria! user has security measures in force \\hich require proper identification 
and ckarance hefore entry into it:-; premises, the industria! user shall make n~ceSsar} arrangement 
\\ith its security gU;:lf(js so that. upon prt.'scnt<ltion ofsuitab!e identification. persDnnel for the 
City. Stale. and EPA ::ihJll OJ.! permitted to enter \\ ithoUl dday, for the purpost!::i of performing 
their specific re:-;ponsibi!itics 

(b) The Cit;" SUle. and EPA shal! 0;:1\(.; the right to set up on the indu ... tnal user's property. or 
require install:1tion of. such dL'\ ices as ;:m: necessar} to conduct sampling and or metering of the 
user's operations. 

(c) The Cay may require the industrial user to install monitoring equipment iJS m:cessary. ThL' 
facility's sampling. and monitoring equipment shall h: maintained at all times in a saft: and 
prnpl'r opcri.lting conJit!on hy the industrial user al its own expense. The monitoring equipment 
should normally he situated all the user's premises, hut the Cit~ may, \\hen sllch a locatiun 
\\ould b!.' impractical or caust: undue hardship on the user. al!£m the fadlity tl1 he constructed in 
the puh!ic street or ::iiJt!\\alk arl:i.l and locateJ so that the facilJty \\ ill not be obstructl'd hy 
bmbcapmg or parked \ehic!es. All Jc\ices u-;ed to measure \\;Jste\\aler nU\\ and qUJ.!ity s!1Jl! he 
cJlihratcd yearly to ensure their accuracy. 

{d) Any temporary or rermanent obstruction to safe Jnd ea.;y Jt:cess to ihe industria! fidlit) to 
he inSpCCll'd and or s,l[npkd shall he promptly renHHcd b) the industrial us!.:r at the \Hitteo or 
\erhal n:qut:st of the Cny 0.1an:lgcr or designee and shall ntH he n:rbced. rht: cosh of clearing 
such access sh::dl he home by the industria! user. 

(e) l"nreasonablc ddJ.\s in allo\\in:z - - personnd ac(t'ss to the industrial u-icr's premises shaH 
be a \ iobtion of thi::; chapter 

(0 Whether construckd on puhhc or pri\Jtc property, the samplmg and monitoring facilities 
shaH he prm Hied tn accordance \\ ith the City's requiremt:nb and all applIcahle local Jgenc: 
construction sLmdanJs and specJficat!on'>, Construction shal! be completed \\ithin qo days 
folhming \\fitten no!incation by the Cit;. unk;;." a time nte!1sion is othendst' granted by the 

\ 2) Search WJITanh. If the 0-LmJger or desigl1t:t' has been refu;.;ed access 10 J budding. 
structure, or property or any part thereof, and if the en), 0.ianager or (.ksignec has demonstrated 
probahle cau:o>c io hdic\c that there may he a \iolation of this chapter or that there is J nl:!ed to 
inspect as part ora routine inspection program of the City designed to \crify compliance \\ith 

189 



this chapter or any permit or order issueJ hereunder, or to protect [he overall public health, 
safdy, and \\eJfare of the community, then the City Attorney may apply to the appropriate court 
for a search and or seizure \\arrant Jescrihing therein the specific location suhject to the \\arr~1nL 
The \\arranl shal! specify what. ifanj1hing. may be searched and_or seized on the propert~ 
tkscribed. In the e\ent of an emergency affecting puhlic health and safety_ inspections shall be 
made \dthout the issuance ora \\arranL LOrd, 186, 2012.J 

13.10.459 Publication of industrial users in significant noncompliance. 

The City shall puhlish annuaHy, in the largest daily llC\\ spaper puhlished in the municipallty 
\\ here the POT\V is located. a !ist of the significant industrial users and categorical industrial 
u'>ers \\hich. during the prc\ious 12 months. \\cre in significant noncompliance with applicahle 
pretn:atment stJndards and requirements, The tenn "significant noncompliance" shall mean: 

(J) Chronic \iolations of \\<lS((;\\ater dlschJrge limits, definl.:d bere as those in \\hich 66 percent 
or more of all of the measurement~ taken for the same pofJut<lJ1! parameter during a six-month 
period exceed (by any magnitude) a numeric pretreatment stJndard or requirement. including 
instantaneous limits. as ddined by ~O CFR .../03,3{l); 

(2) Technical re\'lc\\ criteriJ (TRe) violations, ddined here as those in which 33 pcrcent or more 
of all ufthe measurements tJKen forthe same pollutant parameter during a six~month period 
equal or exceed the pr00uct orlhl.! numeric pretrl.!atmcnt standard or rl.!quirement including 
instantaneous limits. as defined hy .to CFR .t03.3(1) multiplied hy the applIcable TRe (TRC 1A 
for BOD, TSS, fats, oiL and grease, and 1,2 for all other poButants e,xcept pH): 

(3) Any other \'io[atl0n of a prctn:atmellt stanJ~lfd or requin:ment as defined by 40 erR .. W3J(lJ 
(J3i1y maximum, long~term a\crage, instantaneous limit or narrati\e standard) that the POTW 
determines has cau"icd. alone or in combination \dth other discharges, interfen:nce or pass 
through (inctuding endangl.!ring thL' health ofPCH\\" pcrsonnel or the genera! public); 

(4) An)- discharge of pollutants thJt has caused imm!l1L'nt endangerment to the publtc or to the 
e!nironmcnt or has resulted ill the City·s exercise of its emergency authority to !ult or pre\cnt 
:-iuch a discharge: 

(5) Failure to mect \\-itbin 90 days of the schL'dukd datL', a compliance schedule milestone 
contained tn a \\a.,te\\aler discharge permit or enforcL'l11L'nt order for starting construction. 
completing construction. or attaining final compliance; 

(6) failure to prO\ ide. \\ ithin 30 days aller the due date, an). requlred rL'ports, includmg basdine 
monitoring reports, 90-d3.y compliance reports, periodic self-monitoring repurt:-i. and reports on 
compltancc \\.-ith compllJ.J1ce schL'du!es; 

(71 Failure to accurately report noncompiiance: 

tS I An)- other \ ioL:Hion \\l1icll the City determines \\ iii adversely affect thl! operation or 
implementalion of the local prcrreJtmellt program, [On!. 2S6, 2012.1 

190 



1J.10.460 Administrative enforcement remedies. 

(1) :\otiI1cat)011 of Violation, WhenL'\er the City :-Vlanager or dC'iigncc finds that any person h3~ 
violated or is \iobting this chapter. a \\3.ste\\ater discharge permit or order issued hereunder, or 
any other pretreatment requirement. the City ~IanJger or his agent may sen e upon said person ;;J 

\\ftHt:n notice of\iolation, Within "c\cn days of the receipt of this notice, an explanation orlhe 
\iobtion and a plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention thereof. to include sped tic 
required actions. shall be sllhmitted OJ the person to the City Manager or dcsibTfH:C. Submission 
of this plan in no \\ay rdines the person ofljaoility for any \iolations occurring heron: or after 
receipt of the notice of \lolation. :\othing in this section shaH limit the authority orIhe City to 
take any action, including emergency actions or any other enforcement action, \\ithout first 
issuing a notice of \ iobtiol1. The City i\bnager or designee hi1:-i the option of prO\ iding a 
\\arning notice ofdobtion (naming :-\OV), A \\arnlng :\OV IS a verbal or \\ritten 
communication oct\\ecn the CIty ~tanager or designee and the industri;'ll user regarJing possihk 
enforcement action for potential or actual noncompliance hy the industria! user. The Cit} 
~l;:mager or des!b'Tlee must document the \\arning in writing and place a cory of the 
documentation in the user's file. 

(2) Consent OnJers, The City ;vlanagt:r or Je:->ignt:t: may cnh.:r into con~cnt orders, J:'i;iUmnCes of 
compliance. or otha slmibr documents cstahl ishing an Zlgreement \\ iIh any person responsihk 
for noncompliance" Such documents shall include specific action to he taken hy the person 10 

correct the not1!.'mnp!ian!.'c \\ithin a time period specified b} the document Such documents shall 
h:ne the same fOf!.'C and effect J'i the administrali\l;~ orders issw:d pursuant to suhsections (-l) and 
(5) of this section Jnd shan he judicially enforceahle~ 

0) 5hO\\ Cause Hearing. The City \1anager or designee may order a person \\hich ha:-; \lOlarcd. 
or continues to \ iolale, any prodsion of this Ch:1ptcL an indi\ ioua1 \\ a:-;Ic\\ ah.:r discharge permit 
Of order issued hereundcr. or any other pretrc3.tment standard or n:quiremt:nt io appear he fore 
the City \Ianagt:r or designee and shm\ cau-.;c \\hy the propo:->ed enforcement act ton should no! 
he taken, :';o!lce shall be served on the person speutY!ng the time and place for the mcetmg, the 
proposed cnforct:ment action, the reasons for such action, and a request that the pn..;on sho\\ 
causc \\hy the prorosed enforcement action should nOl be taken, The notice ofihe me!.:ting ..;hal! 
be ..;cned personal!: or hy registcred or certified mail (rdum receipt requested) al kast sc\en 
days prior to the bearing, Such notice may he sen ed on any authorized reprcsenLltive of the 
pt:rson as de!ined m RD:\fC 13.10'()10 and n:qUlred by RD.\lC r\ sho\\ cause 
h.:aring sha!! nol hL: a bar or prerequisite for. w.king an: other action agJlnst the pCTson, 

(-l) Comphance Ordcrs_ \rhen the Cit: flnds that a person has \iobtl'd or continue:, to \\olate 
this chapkr. \\J.ste\\3ter discharge permits or order i:-;sucd hereunder. or an;. other pretreatment 
s!Jndard or requirement, he may issue an order!o the person n:sponsihJc for the u!schJ.rge 
directing that the person come into cnmplJ:mce \\ ithin 30 days, If the person dot;;'s not come miD 

complJance \\ ithin 30 days. se\\er sen ice shal! be discontinued unkss adequate treatment 
Elci!it!es, dC\Jces< or other related uppurtenances are insta!kd and properly operated. Compliance 
ordt'r~ may not c:'\tc;nd the deadline for compliance e:-iublished f"tx a Feth:ra! prdreatmenl 
standard or rcquirement. nor dot'~ J cmnplial1ct' order release the person of liability for In} 

191 



\ {olation. including any continuing \ io/ation. Issuance of a comp!ianc~ order shall not be a 
prerequisite to taking any otha action against the person. 

(5) Ceast: and Desist Orliers. 

(a) When the City )'lanager or des1b'11ee finds that a person is violating this chapter. the person's 
\,,3stt~\\ater discharge permit. any order issued hert:undcr, or any other pretreatment standard or 
requirement or that the person's past \'!olations arc likely to recur, the City Manager or dt:signee 
may issue an order to the person directIng it to cease and desist al! such \ iobtions and directing 
Ihe person to: 

(i) Immediately comply \\ ith al! requirements: 

Uj) Take such appropriate remedial or pn.~\enti\'e action as may be net:ded to properly address a 
continuing or threatened \ iolation. includmg halting operations and or terminating the discharge. 

(h) Issuance ora ct.:'ast.:' and desist order shali not be a prt:requisite to taking any other action 
against the pason. 

(6) Adminlstrati\'e Fine. 

(a) ~ot\\ithstanding any other section orlllis chapter. any person tba! is found !o ha\'c \iolated 
any pro\ision of this chapter, its \\a.,te\\ater discharge permit. and orders issued hereunder. or 
any other pretreatment standard or requirement may he fined in an amount not to exceed S 1,000. 
Such tines shaH hc assessed on a per \ io!ation, per day basis. [/1 the case of monthly or other 
long-term J\ efJ.ge discharge limits. fines may be assessed for each day during the period of 
\iolation. 

(b) Assessments may he added to thc person's next scheduled se\~er sen icc charge and the City 
\.lanager or designee shall hzn.e such other co!kction remedies as mJ.Y be ;:l\aibble for other 
.,en icc charges and fees, 

(c) l'npaid charges. fines. and pena!ties shall. af't.:r 60 calendar days, be assessed an additional 
penalty of [0 percent of the unpaid babm:e and inlaeS! shall accrue th.:reafter at a rate of 0.5 
percent pa month, A lien against the ind!\ idual person's prop.:rty \~ ill be sought for unpaid 
charges, tines. and penalties. 

(d) Persons d.:siring to dispUlt: such fines must file a \\fitten request for the City }'1anager or 
designee to reconsider the fine along with fun payment of the fine amount \\ ithill 30 days of 
being notJtied or the nnC'. Wher.: a reLjuest bas merit, the City ~tanager or desibTJ1Ce shall comene 
a hearing 011 the matter \I,:ithin 30 Jays ofrecei\ing the request from the industrialuscr. In the 
e,'enl the person's appeal is sllccessful. the payment together \\lth any interest accruing thereto 
shall be returned to the industria! U.,eL The CilY may add the costs of preparing administrati\e 
enforcement actions such as notic.:s and orders to the fine, 

192 



(el Issuance oran administrati\t? fine shall not be a prerequisite for taking any other action 
against the person. 

(7) Emergency Suspension,"" 

(a) The City :-..tanager or deSlb'TIee may immeJulely suspend a person's discharge (utter informal 
notice to the person) whenc\ er such suspension is nt!cessary in order to stop an actual or 
threatened discharge \\ hieh reasonably appears!o present or cause an imminent or substantial 
endangerment to the health or \\dfarc of persons, The City ~1:l!1ager or designee mJY abo 
immt:di3!dy suspend a person's dlscharge (after notice and opportunity to respond) that threaten", 
t(l interfere \\ ith the operation of the POTW or which presents or may pre",t:nt an endangerment 
to the em ironment. 

(i) Any person noti fled of II suspensIon of its d!schargt: shall immediately stop or cllmillate its 
contribution, [n the c\cnt of a per",on's fallure 10 immcdiJtd) comply \ o!untari!y \\ ith the 
susrt:nslon order, the City 0,-ianagcr or designee sha!! take such sleps a.:; deelllt:d ncccssJry. 
including immediate sc\erance of the se\\er connection. to pre\cnt or minimize damage to the 
POT\\'. Ih reeei\ ing stream, or endangerment to Jll:;- inJiddu~ds, The City ~bn;]ger or designec 
shall allcm the person 10 recommence its discharge \\ hen the per;;on ha-; demon",tratcd to the 
sJtisLlction or the City that the period of end;.mgcrment has pa,>sed. unless the tennination 
proceeding;; set forth in this Ch~lp!er an: initiated again",t the person. 

(ii);-\ person that i", responsible, in \,>holl" or in part. for any di",charge pre:)enting imminent 
emLmgerment shaH submit;:J. ddaikd \\finen statement descrihing the causes orthe hilrmful 
contrihution and the mcasures taken to pr",;\ent Jill' future OCCUlTt:m:e to the City ;\1anager or 
... !t:signee. prim to the date of any sho\\ cau'iC or termination heJring':1:-> set rixth in this chaph.':L 

(b) ;"'orhing in thL-; suhsection shall be mkrprctd as requiring a 
",uspension umkr this section. 

(s) r crmination of Discharge. The \bnager or de"ignee may immcdiJtdy su",pend the 
St:\\er and \~Jtcr st:ni;:e \\hen ",uch su..;pension is nece.%ary, in the opinJOn ofilw City '-tanager 
or dcsibTJl(:e. to stop an actual or thn:att:ned dIScharge of \\ ash.'\\ aIeL se\\ age or any sub",tancc 
inio the sanitary S~\\cr sJstern \\hidl pn:sents or may present an imminent or substantial 
el1lLmgerment 10 the health or \\ cHan: of persons, to the em ironment, or causes inkrfcrence or 
damage to the treatment \\orb or San!lilry se\'>er s}skm, 

\ al In addition to those pnn isiolb of RD\lC 1\ lOA..t-L Jny person that \ iolatcs the rollo\\, ing 
condition", of this duplcL \\a.ste\\Jtt:r discharge permit'i, or orJeb i:-isued hereunder, is suhjt:ct to 
discharge terminGtion, 

(i) Violation of \\ask\\;:Her dbcharge penni! condi!ion",; 

(!!) Fal1un.' to accuntdy report thr.: wbte\\ater constituent:-; ,md char;lctenstic-; of it:-i discharge: 

193 



(il!) Failure to report si,6rnificam changes in operations or \\3ste\\ater \olume. constituents and 
characteristics prior to discharge: 

(i\ ) Refusal of n~a:ionab!e access to the person's premises for the purpose of inspection. 
monitoring. or sampling: 

(\,) Violation ofthc pretreatment standard" in RD\lC l~"-LQd.LQ through U.l OA~l and RD\IC 
1l)OA31· 

(h) An) person notified of the suspension of tile sewer and water service shu!! immediately stop 
or eliminate the contrihution, Such person \\i!! be notified of the proposed termination of its 
discharge and be ofTered an opportunity to sho\\' cause under sub"cction (3) of this section why 
the proposed action should not be taken. in the c\ent of the failure oftlle person to comply 
\,o!unrarily \\ltb the sllspension orda, th~ Cit;.- ~bnager or designee sha!! take steps as deemed 
necessary, Including immediatl.! se\crancc ofth.: se\\er connectlon. to pre\ent or minimize 
da!11Jg.: or endangerment to any IndIviduals or to the sanitary se\\age system. The City i\iJnager 
or d.:signce shall r.:instate the sewer and \\ah:r ser\Ice upon proof of the dimination orthe 
noncomp[ying dtsc!large. fOrd. 2.'16, lOll: Ord. 203,1990; Ord. 190 ~ 52. 5.:·L 55, 19S7.J 
Formerly 13.IOASO and i3.IOA90.j 

13.10..t61 Judicial enforcement remedies. 

(!) Injunctive ReJ!eL Whene\er the person has \Iolated a pr~tr~atment standard or requirement 
or continues to do!ate the pro\isions of this chapter. \\aste\\akr discharg.: permits or ord.:rs 
issued hl.'rcunder, or any other pretreatlTIl.!nt requirement, the City may petition tbe Superior 
Court for the issu:mce of a temporary or pL'onanl.'nt injunction, as may he appropriate in 
restraining the continuance of such violJtion, 

(2) Civil Pena!tk'~, 

(3.) Any person \\'bich bas \ idall:d or cnntinues 10 \ lolate this chapter. any ordl'r. or \\3s1e\\aler 
dischargl' permit hereunder, or an) other pretrl'atment standard or n:quin.:ml'nt shall hI! liable to 
the City for a maximum cid! penJlty ofS6,000 per \Iolation per day, In thl: case ora month!) or 
other long~term aH:rage dIscharge limiL penalties shall accrue for each day during the period of 
the \ iolatiol1. 

(b) The City may rl.!cmcr reasonable attonlt!) 's fel:s. coun costs. Jnd other expenses associated 
\\ ith enforcement actidties, including sampling and monitoring expensi.:S, and the cost of an} 
actual damages incurred by the City. 

(c) When a discharge of \\ <.tstes causes an obstrw.::tion. damage, or other impainnent to the 
POT\\" the City nn.y assess a charge against the pason for the Cl)st of the \\ork required to clean 
or repair the POTW and add slIch charge to the person's sef\ice charge, 

ld) Fiilng a suit for ci\i1 penalt!L's shaH not be a prereqUisite for taking an~ other action against a 
person. fOrd. 2R6. 2012,J 

194 



13.10.462 Supplemental enforcement actions. 

(!) Water Surply SCH:rancc. \\'hcncvcr a person has \ tObled or continues to \iolate the 
pnnisio!1:; of this chJ.pter. oroers, or \\;:J.stc\\ater discharge pennit5 issued in this chJpter. \\aler 
Sl..'n ice to the person may he sc\ ered. Sen ICC \\ ill only recommence. at the person' 5 expense. 
after it has satisfactorily dcmon"tratcd its ability to comp!y_ 

(2) Pub! ie \'uis;:mccs, Any \ iolution of this chapter, \\<l:-iic\\ aier discharge permits, or orders 
issued hereunder. is hereby dedard J public nuisance and sha!! hi: corrected or abated as 
directed oy the City Manager or hi:; designee. Any person(s) creating iJ public nuisance shal! be 
subject to the prm !sinns of appJicahk Slate and City codes. ordinancc:-;. rules and or regulatioJJs 
go\t:ming such nuis~.mce...;. including rccoupment hy the City of an} costs incurred in rem{J\ ing, 
ahating or r~medying said nuisance. lOrd. 2S6. 2012.] 

13.IOA63 Remedies nonexclusive. 

The prO\ bians !n RD~IC through 13.1 OA6~ Jrl' 110t cxdusi\ e relnedies. The Clty 
re...;cn es the right to tilke any. al! or any comhination of these cH:tinns Jgainst a noncompliant 
user, Enforcement of pretreatment \in!ations \\i!l generally he in accordance \\ltl1 the City's 
enforcemt.'llt response plan. Ho\\c\er. the City resenes the right to tab: other action agaln'a any 
lher \\hen the circumstances \\3rr:1Ot, FurthcL thl.! City is cmpO\\cn:d to take more than one 
enforcement action again,a an} noncompliant user, The~e actions may he taken concurn:nt!y, 
lOrd, 2S(" 2012 , 

13.1OAM .UnrmatiYe defenses to discharge ,-iulations. 

{!) t'pseL 

(J) For the purposc;; of this se;;tl011. "upset"' means an exception;]1 incident in \\hich there b 
unintentional and h:mpofary noncomp!ianc;.' \\I(h c3tcgorical prdn:atmcnt standards because of 
f3cturs beyond the rcasonahk control of the industria! USt:L An upset docs not include 
noncompliance to the cxtt'nt caust.:d 0; operational error. improperly designed treatment 
Llcilities, in;ll!cquatc trcatmem fJt:iJitil's_ Lick orrf;:\L'nti\t.~ fTElinteruncl', or careless or improper 
operation 

tb) An upset shall con;-;titute an 3ft1rmal1\C defense to an action hrought for nont::ll!npjiance \\lth 
cat<:goricu! prt.:!n;atment stJnJarlb if the requirt.:!TIcnts of suhsection ( ll{ c) of lhis section are mel. 

(el r\n industria! user v.hn \\lsht.'s to t:~tah!i",h the artinnatj\t,: defense of upset shall demonstrate, 
through rropl?rl~ signed, contt.'mpliraneous operating logs. or other rdc\Jnt e\ iJenet: that: 

(l) An up",ct (1ccuncd and the uluustrial user can iden!Jl~ the Ci.lUse(s) of the upset 

ill 1 The \\;"\s at the tim\.' ot:ing operated in a prudent and \\orkmanl!ke mannt:r and in 
compliance \\ilh arrlicahk operation anu maintenance procedures, 

195 



(iii) The industrial user has submitted the fo[!O\ving information to the POT\\' and tn.:atment 
plant operator \dthin.24 hours of becoming a\\are of the upset (ifrhis information is pro\ided 
orally, a written suhmission must be pro\ided \\ithin fi\(! days): 

tA) A description ofrhe indirect discharge and cause ofnoncompJiance, 

(8) The period of noncompliance. including exact dales and times or, ifoot corrected. the 
anticipated time the noncompliance is expected to continue. 

(C) Step:; being taken and, or pLmned to reduce. eliminate. and prc\ent recurrence of the 
noncomplIance, 

(i \ ) In any enforcement procct::ding, the industrta! user seeking to establ Ish the occurrence of an 
upset shan ha\ e the hurden or proof 

(\,) Industrial users \\ it! h,n e the opportunity for a judicial determination on any claim of upset 
only tn an enforccm\!nt action brought for noncompliance \\ith cJh:gorica! pretreatment 
standards. 

(\1) The tndustria! user shan control production of all discharg\!s [0 the cxtt:nt necessary to 
maintain compliance \\itl! categorical pn:treJ,tment standards upon reduction. loss, or failure of 
ils tn:atmen! facility unlir the facility!:; restored or an a1tt:mati\e method of treatment is 
prmided. This rt:qulrement applies til the situation \~here. among other things, the primary 
source ofpO\\cr of the treatment El!:ility is reduccd, lost. or fails. 

(2) Bypass. 

(a) For the purposl's of this section: 

(i) "Bypass" shall mean the intentional dl\Crsion of\\aste streams from any portion oran 
industrial user's treatment facili!y~ 

(ii) "Sc\erc property damage" slu!l mean substantial ph)sical tLimagl..! to property. damage to thl.! 
treatment facilities \\l1icll caust..'s thcm to become inoperahle, or substantial and permanent loss 
of natufJ! resuun:es \\ !lich can reasonably he expected to occur in thc absence of a hypass. 
Se\ere propt::rty damage does not mean economic loss caused hy delays in production, 

(0) An industrial u~er may aHem any bypass to occur \\hich does not cause pretreatment 
standards or requirements to he \!lJlakd, but only ifit also is for essential maintcnance to J:-isure 
efficient operation, These hypasses are not suhject to the prO\ ision of subsections (2)(c) and (tI) 

of this sectl011, 

1-:) Bypass !\otification, 

(i) Ifan industrial user kno\\s in ad\ance orthe need for a hypass. it shall suhmit prior notice to 
the POTW, at lea:-;t to days before the date of the bY113sS if possible. 

196 



(il) An industrial user shal! submit ora! notice oLm unantlclpateu bypass that exceeds arrl!cah!e 
pretreatment .standards to the POTW \\ ithin 2-1. hours from the time it hecomes aware of the 
hypass. A written submission shall also he prodded \~ ithin five days of the time the industrial 
user becomes ;:m are of the hypass. The \\fith:n suhmission sh;;d! conlain a description of the 
oypass and its cause; the Juration of the hypass. including exact dates and times, and. if the 
bypass has not been corrected. the anticipated time it is expected to continue: and steps taken or 
planned to reJuce, eliminate. and pre\i.~nt recurrence of the bypass, The POTW may \\ ai\(~ tilt: 
written report on J cas;(.>hY<J.st: hasis if the ora! report has been recell,cd \\ithin 24 hours. 

(d) Bypa'is. 

0) Bypa:-is is prohibited, and the POTW ma~ take enforcement action against an industria! user 
for J. hypass, unless: 

fA) Bypas:-> \\J.S u!1;'Hoidabk to prevent loss of nfe. persOflJi injury, or sc\ en: property damage; 

(B) There \\cre no f"':asihk altemati\es tu the h)pa,'is. such as the llSC ofau\i!iar) treatmcnt 
t:1CJJ it!t;'s. n:!Cntion of untn:atcd \\ astes. or maintenance during nonna] periods of equipmcnt 
do\\ntime. This conJit!on is not satisfied ifadequate back~up equipment should h,1\e heen 
inst;:!lkd in the excrcise ofreasol1ahle cngineeringjudgmenl \0 pre\cnt a hypass \\hich occurrt:d 
during norma! penod'i of equipment dO\\ nt!me or pre\cntj\e maintenance: and 

tel The industrial u<;cr suhmitted notices (1S required unJer subsection (2)(c) of this section. 

Iii) The POTW may apprO\c un anticirJtcd bypass. after considering it-; J{l\crst.' cftt:cts, if the 
POTW determine..; that it \\i!! nled the thrcc condition:-i listed tn suh:-icctioD (2)(d)(i) of this 
sectHm. LOrd. 2S6. 2012.] 

U.IOA65 Penalty. 

(1) Any person that \',dlflJl!y or ncgligent!y \!l)blCS any pro\isio!1 of this chapter. any orders. or 
\\]sk\\::lter discharge permit:; issued hercundcr. or any other prdreatmcnt requiremcnt shail. 
upon conviction. be of d misdl'meJ.!1or. punishahle OJ a fint' of not more than 5500,00 pcr 
"iolation p;:r da~ or impnsonrncnt for not more than onc lear or hoth. 

{.2) Any person that \\ illfuHy or negligently introduces all} substance into the POT\\' \\ hich 
causes persona! injury Qf propt:rty damage shall, upon com iction. bt: guIlty of a misdemt:anor 
and be suhject to a penalty of at ka:>t 5500.00 pCI' \ iobtion per day or imprisonment for not more 
than one yeJ.f- Tl-1LS penalty shaH he in addition to any other cause of action for personal injury or 
property damage ;:nJi!ahk under Statt: la\\. 

\J) Any persnn that knov. ingly mah.t:s an) false st3kments, repn:scntal!ons, or cer1li!catiu!1s in 
an} application. rccord. rcport. plan or other documt:ntatiol1 filed, or n:quired to bc maintJincd, 
pursuant to this dupieL \\as!c\\alt:r discharge permit or order. or \\ho f.llsilks. tampers \\Jth. or 
knO\\ mg!} renders Inaccurate any monitoring de\ ice or method required under this chartcr shal L 

197 



upon con\iction. be punished hy a fint: of not more than S500,OO per \lolatlon per day or 
imprisonment for not more than one year or both. 

(4) In thc c\cnl ora sccond com-jctlon, a person shaH be punished by a fine of not more than 
SLOOO per \[olation per day or Imprisonment for not mon.; than t\\O years or both, (Ord. 1.'16. 
2012; Ord. 203,1990: Ord. 190 ~ 57, 19S7; Ord, 3S * 2,1965, Formerly 13.\0,510.J 

13.10.466 Appeals. 

;\ny useL permil applicant or rermlt ho!Jer afkcted by any decision. action or dt"tt:rminatlon. 
mduding cease or desist orders m:Hle hy the City ~ranager or designee in interpreting or 
Implementing the pro\isions of this chapter, or any pennit issued pursuant to the pnntsiol1s of 
this duptt"L mJY file \\ jlh the City ~Ianager or designee a \Hitten request for reconsiderat'ton 
\\'ithln 10 days of such dt.!c!sion, action or determination, setting forth in liet:!i! the filcts 
suppol1ing the user's n:qu6t for reconsideration. 

Ifth~ ruling made by the Cny )'lanager or designee is unsatisfactor;.- to the person requc:-iling 
reconsideration. the person Inay. \\ ithil1 10 days after notification or such City action, file a 
\Hitten appeal to the City CounciL The written appeal shan be heard by the City Councl! \\ ithin 
30 (bys after the d:Hc of tiilng, The Council sh;:l1l make a fillal ruling on the appeal \\ llhil1 10 
Jays after the close oCtile meeting, The ~fanager's dc-elstDn, action or detenninatlon shall remain 
in efll:ct during the period ofn:consioer::HiorL [Oro. 2S(), 2012; Oni. 20.1, 1990; Orli, 190 ~ 56, 
19S7. Formerly 13.10.500.J 

Article X. SC\\ er Later .11 Inspection at 'r ime of Sale 

13.10.467 Transfer of properly and tesling. 

Whcne\er any property i~ to be sold or tr::lIlsfL-rred to or \ ('sted In an) other entity, the se\~er 
lateral(s) to the property shJ1J he tt:sted fnr intillration and all necessary rep3irs or replacements 
performed to pre\ent all infiltrJtiofL 

This lest \\ III be set up hy a licensed cont!'3c::lor. paid for hy the property sdler or buyer. Jnd 
Signed afroy the Clty ;"1Jnager or authorized n:presentathc Test requirements are a\ailabte at 
City H311. 

An inspection card signed bJ an authorized City inspector must acclJInpa!1Y title trao.,fer 
proceedings. It is the responsibi!ity of the property buyer or seller to repair, replace and conform 
to all in!i!tration requirements prior to transfer of property connected to the City sc\\cr system, 

Exceptions: This sectinl1 shall not apr!) to: 

(I) ConJominiu!TI or cooperari\c ap::lnment huddmgs: 

198 



(2) To all buildings \\hcre th~ City 7\bnager, or authorized representatiH:. determines that tcsting 
and repair or replacement of !atera!(s) has been performed to Cit)/ standard;; \\ ilhln the Ia'it three 
years; 

(3) To all huildingj \\hcre the :\iJnagcr, or authorizcd reprcsent3ti\e. determines that nc\', 
se\\cr construction has heen inspected and passed \\ithin the last three years, 

This dctermin;1tion shaU be madc by a test pcrformed h:- City stafr. E\cept for standard permit 
costs. there \\ ill hc no charge to the property O\\DCr for this tcst In the c\cnt that the tcst fa!!s, 

reler to RD\IC I), I (UfJ9, [Ord, 2S(" 2012,J 

13.10.468 Sewer lateral testing. 

lhe property owner or his. her appointed contractor shal! ontain a plumhing permit for sc\\cr 
latera! testing prior 10 commencing \\ ith til.: testing procedure, Testing methods and proct:dures 
shaU conf()fJTI to standard testing speci fications (SC\\ cr Testing Procedures) adopted hy the City, 
copies of\\hich are on me in the City Clerk's office. AI! conditions and access shan he maJe 
ready prior to scheduling an inspection, Iran inspt:clion is scheduled and cannot be performed 
heC1USC of inadequate condition or access to the Se\\er bterJL the Cily may recmcr costs, [Onl 
~S6> 2012.J 

13.10.-169 Failure or test. 

Should the lateral fail the t:.:s1. the lateral shaH he either repam:d or rerlaced and rt!teslcd. :\ 
plumhing permit \~ili be required in on.kr 10 perform the ncccs<.;ar;. rep,lirs or n:p!acement This 
process shan continuc until the lateral P3'iSCS the required tbL 

1 akfal Certification. Once tht: Jakn! ha'i suc..:cssfull:- the procedure. the 
IIP'p"ct'Dt \\ n!1cssing the test \\ ill the permit in;-;rcctinn card as appro\. ed, fOrd. 2,";(1, 201]. J 

Anick XL Backilzm and Ck.muut In:;!i.lllatiun 

13. Hl.470 l3ackllow protective device and c1eamlll! riser. 

Al! nc\', hudding btera!:; including btt;:ral replacements shall he eqmrred \\ith a deanout rist:f. 
AI! nc\\ budding bten!s shall be abo fittt:L1 \\ith a oackllc)\\ prc\entJon de\icc of type and 
mo.kriab as ;Jrrnned by the In addition, existing builthng'i in \\hich thc ele\ation of the 
lo\\cst nom is less than 12 inches ahll\e the rim de\.ation of the nearest upstream manhok or 
junction :,tructufe in thc reach of a main Sl'\\er into \\hkh a huilding se\\er, through a 
iJ.!craL connccb shoJ! be protected from oackflo\\ ofsc\\Jge hy in:,!al!ing a backf1o\\ protecti\c 
dc\ it.:c of a typc and in the mal1m:r prcscrihed 0;' the City'_ An;. such hacktlo\\ rwtecti\t: de\ icc 
shall he imital!ed hy the 0\\ ncr orlilc property on \\hieh the huilJing. is constructcd. and slu!i he 
located on the building -",e\\cr h:t\\cell the !lui!ding Jnd the property line, preferab!y at the 
location of the c1cal1ou!. The nack!1O\\ protccth c de\ ice, i r bdu\.\ shall he enclosed in ;l 

suitable concrete utility bo\ \\ ilb remmah!e CO\ er and shall be recHlily accessih!e fOf l!1SpCCI!On 
Jud !11a!n!enal1ct::. The instalbrion such bJcktlo\\.· protccti\t; dc\!ce shall he at the sole cost 

199 



and expense ofth.:- property o\\na, The maintenance oftbe hackflO'.\ protective uc\'!ce shaH be 
the sole obligation of the owner or the owner's successor in interest. The City shaH be unu.:-r no 
obligation to ascertain that the backf1O\\ protccti\c dedce continues in operating condition. lOrd. 
186,2012,) 

Section 2. Effective Date 

This Ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of approval and 
adoption, 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a 
regular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council on June 17,2014 and furthennore the 
forgoing Ordinance was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Rio Dell on July 1,2014 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

JacK Thompson, 1>layor 

ATTEST: 

L Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State o[Calilc)mia, hereby 
certify the above and forgoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance 
322-2014 adopted by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on July 2014, 

Karen Dunham. City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

200 



CITY or 

Rio hall 
675 Al'emw 
Rio Dell, 
(707) 764-3532 

July 1,2014 

TO: Rio Dell City COLIncil 

FRO",!: Jim ~l' City Manager 

SUBJECT: Adoption of Emergcncy Ordinance 326-2014 and Resolution 1232-2014 
conccrning the establishmcnt. administration and dates for a tcmporary 
incrcase in the Transaction and Usc (Sales) Tax of 1°". and receipt of the City 
Attorney's impartial analysis of the sales tax mcasurc. 

IT IS RECOylf,IENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

L Open the public hearing on Ordinance 316-2014. to impose a temporary l"i) Transaction 
and Use (Sales) fix a period of 5 years. and contract with the State Board of Equalization 
to admi nister the tax. and 
Close the public hearing and adopt the Ordinance. effectivc immediately. and 

3. ApprO\e Resolution 1232-2014. establishing the date of 11-4-14 as thc datc tel placc the 
temporary gencral governmental services Transaction and Usc Tax of I "n for 5 years 
bdtlrC the voters ttl[ approvaL and requesting the Board of Super;isors to allow the 
consolidatioll of the sales tax measure with the Statewide General election. and 

4. Recein! and tile the City Attomey's Impartial Analysis of the NO\cmncr 4.2014 City of 
Rio Dell's 1 '\" temporary Transactioll and Use tax measure. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

On May 9, 2014 the Rio Dell City Coulleil considered the implicatiolls of the 2014-15 City 
Budget projection that included the drawing down on the General Fund Reserves by as much as 
S 156.000 to balance expenditures to revenue. It was noted that revenues for a number of years 
were virtually nat. not keeping pace with the cost of providing services to the collllllunity. 

Coneem was also noted in that a structural long tcnll fimding problem was apparent and that 
under that circlllllstance, services to the cOllllllunity would have to be reduced unless the revenue 
issue was addressed. The City COllncil directed stalTto preparc a 2014-15 Budgct fiJr their 
consideration by drawing from the General Fund Reserves ttlr 2014-15; maintaining present 
levels oflaw enfiJrcement and other services, AND to prepare a local revenue measure for voter 
approval for the November 4,1014 ballot. 

201 



On June 10, 2014 the City Council received a report on several local revenue options and 
selected a temporary I % increase in the local Sales and Use Tax (UUT) for the revenue measure 
to be placed on the November 4,2014 General Election ballot Unlike a utility user's tax, a sales 
tax is paid in part by the traveling public and others that conduct business in the City at a retail 
store. 

Included in this packet is the required Ordinance and Resolutions prepared by the City Attorney 
and CM staff to consolidate the City revenue measure with the Statewide General Election; to 
adopt the language of the tax measure, and to authorize its imposition and administration when 
approved by the voters. Since the measure is a general revenue measure for the City, voter 
approval occurs with a simple majority, or 50% plus I. 

The City Attorney's Impartial Analysis of the local Sales Tax Measure is also included for the 
Council as a "receive and file" item. The City Manager will be preparing the factual argument in 
favor of the measure that will appear in the Voter Pamphlet. 

A public hearing is required for the Ordinance which has an emergency clause. As such, there is 
no second reading and it becomes effective upon adoption as does the Resolution. 

Attachments; I). Ordinance 326-2014 concerns imposing I % transaction and use tax and BOE 
administering the tax measure. 
2). Resolution 1132-2014 concerns the consolidation of sales tax measure on 
Statewide General Election ballot (11-4-14) and ballot language and procedures. 
3). City Attorney's Impartial Analysis of I % local transaction and use tax 
measure. 

202 



ORDINANCE NO. 326-2014 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 
IMPOSING A TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX TO BE 

ADMINISTERED BY THE STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 

WHEREAS. a locally-enacted revenue measure would protect and maintain Rio Dell services 
because the money is legally required to stay in our community and cannot be taken by the State. 
providing locally controlled funds for local services; and 

WHEREAS. at its July 1.2014 meeting. the City Council considered calling an election to 
seek voter approval of a proposed general transactions and use (sales) tax. as authorized by 
Revenue and Taxation Code section 7285.9; and 

WHEREAS. at that meeting. the City Council concluded that all of the infom1ation presented 
indicated that. to obtain the re\'enue necessary to maintain and preserve service levels. the City 
Council should call an election to ask the voters of the City to approve a 5 year local transactions 
and use (sales) tax. the revenue from which could be used to support general municipal sen'ices; 
and 

WHEREAS. on the basis of the foregoing. the City Council deten11incd that it was 
appropriate to place a measure regarding a general transactions and lise (sales) tax before the 
\oters at the Novemher 4. 2014 general election: and 

WHE REAS. tbe tax. if approved. would be imposed on the sale of tangible personal property 
and the storage. use. or other consumption of sueh property. The tax rate would be one percent 
(I %) (one cent fix each dollar) of the sales price 0 f the personal property. The tax rcvcnue would 
be collected by the State Board of Equalization and remitted to the City. The tax would be in 
effect for 5 years. and would thcn expire automatically. unless extended by the voters. The tax 
shall be approved if the measure recei\'e, at least a simple majority of aftinnati\'e votes. 

i\OW. THEREFORE. THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL ORDAINS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section I. AMEND:vIENT OF CODE. The Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended to 
acid a new Chapter 3.11. and shall rcad as follows: 

CHAPTER 3.11 
LOCAL TRANSACTIONS AND USE (SALES) TAX 

Section 3.Il.(Jl. TITLE. This ordinance shall be known as the City of Rio Dell 
Transactions and Usc Tax Ordinance. The City of Rio Dell hereinafter shall be called "City." 
This ordinance shall be applicable in thc incorporated territory ofthc City. 

Section 3.11. 02. OPERATIVE DATE. "Operative Date" means the tirst day of the first 
calendar quarter commencing more than I 10 days after the adoption of this ordinance. the date 0 f 
such adoption being as set forth below. 

203 



Section 3,11 ,03, PURPOSE, This ordinance is adopted to achieve the following, among 
other purposes, and directs that the provisions hereof be interpreted in order to accomplish those 
purposes: 

A. To impose a retail transactions and usc tax in accordance with the provisions of Part 1,6 
(commencing with Section 7251) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code and Section 
7285,91 of Part 1.7 of Division 2 which authorizes the City to adopt this tax ordinance which 
shall be operative if a simple majority (50% plus I) of the electors voting on the measure vote to 
approve the imposition of the tax at an election called for that purpose, 

B, To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that incorporates prOVISions 
identical to those of the Sales and Use Tax Law of the State of California insofar as those 
provisions arc not inconsistent with the rcquirements and limitations contained in Part 1.6 of 
Division 2 of the Rcvenue and Taxation Code, 

C. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that imposes a tax and provides a 
measure therefore that can be administered and collected by the State Board of Equalization in a 
manner that adapts itself as fully as practicable to, and requires the least possible deviation from, 
the existing statutory and administrative procedures followed by the State Board of Equalization 
in administering and collecting the California State Sales and Use Taxes. 

D, To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that can be administered in a 
manner that will be, to the greatest degree possible, consistent with the provisions of Part 1,6 of 
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, minimize the cost of collecting the transactions 
and use taxes, and at the same time, minimize the hurden of record keeping upon persons subject 
to taxation under the provisions of this ordinance, 

Section 3, II ,04, CONTRACT WITH STATE, Prior to the operative date, the City shall 
contract with the State Board of Equalization to perfonn all functions incident to the 
administration and operation of this transactions and use tax ordinance; provided, that if the City 
shall not have contracted with the State Board of Equalization prior to the operative date, it shall 
nevertheless so contract and in such a case the operative date shall be the first day of the tlrst 
calendar quarter following the execution of such a contract. 

Section 3,11.05, TRANSACTIONS TAX RATE. For the privilege of selling tangible 
personal property at retail, a tax is hereby imposed upon all retailers in the incorporated territory 
of the City at the rate of I 'y., of the gross receipts of any retailer from the sale of all tangible 
personal property sold at retail in said territory on and after the operative date llfthis ordinance. 

Section 3,11.06, PLACE OF SALE, For the purposes of this ordinance, all retail sales are 
consummated at the place of business of the retailer unless the tangible personal property sold is 
delivered by the retailer or his agent to an out-of-state destination or to a common carrier for 
delivery to an out-of-state destination, The gross receipts from such sales shall include delivery 
charges, when such charges are subject to the state sales and use tax, regardless of the place to 
which delivery is made, In the event a retailer has no permanent place of business in the State or 
has more than one place of business, the place or places at which the retail sales are 
consummated shall be determined under rules and regulations to be prescribed and adopted by 
the State Board of Equalization, 

204 



Section 3.11.07. USE TAX RATE. An excise tax is hereby imposed on the storage. use or 
other consumption in the City of tangible personal property purchased from any retailer on and 
alier the operative datc of this ordinance for storage. lISC or other consumption in said territory at 
the rate of I % of the sales price of the property. Thc sales price shall include deli\'Cry charges 
when such charges are subject to statc sales or use tax regardless of the place to which delivery is 
madc. 

Section 3.11.08. ADOPTION OF PROVISIONS OF STATE LAW. Except as otherwise 
provided in this ordinance and except insofar as thcy arc inconsistent with the provisions of Part 
1.6 of Division 2 of the Rcv'cnue and Taxation Code. all of the provisions of Part 1 (commencing 
with Section 6001) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code are herehy adopted and 
made a part of this ordinance as though ftllly set forth herein. 

Section 3.11.09. LlMITA TIONS ON ADOPTION OF STATE LAW AND COLLECTION 
OF USE TAXES. In adopting the provisions of Part I of Division 2 of the Revenue and 
Taxation Code: 

A. Where\'er the State of CalitclfIlia is named or referred to as the taxing agency, 
the name of this City shall be suhstituted theref')[. Howcver. the substitution shall not be made 
when: 

I. The word "State" is used as a part of the title of the State Controller. State 
Treasurer. State Board of Control. State Board of Equalization, State Treasury. or the 
Constitution of the State of Cal ifornia: 

2. The result of that substitution would require action to be taken by or against 
this City or any agency. ofticcr. or employee thereof rather than by or against thc State Board of 
Equalization, in perfonning the functions incident to the administration or operation of this 
Ordinance, 

3. In those sections. indudinu, but not necessarily limited to sections referrinu 
~ - ~ 

to the exterior boundaries of the State of California. where the result of the substitution would be 
to: 

ll. Provide an exemption from this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, 
usc Dr other consumption of tangible personal property which would not otherwise be exempt 
from this tax while such sales, storage. use or other consumption remain subject to tax by the 
State under the provisions of Part I ofDiv·ision:>. of the Revenue and Taxation Code. or: 

b. Impose this tax with respect to certain sales. storage. usc or other 
consumption of tangible personal property which would not be subject to tax by the state under 
the said provision of that code. 

4. In Sections 6701, 6702 (except in the last sentence thereo!). 6711. 6715, 
6737.6797 or 6828 ortlle Revenue and Taxation Code. 

B. The word "City" shall be substituted frlr the word "State" in the phrase "retailer 
engaged in business in this State" in Section 6203 and in the definition of that phrase in Section 
6203. 

3 

205 



Section 3.11.10. PERMIT NOT REOUIRED. If a seller's pennit has been issued to a retailer 
under Section 6067 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, an additional transactor's pennit shall not 
be required by this ordinance. 

Section 3.11.11. EXEMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS. 

A. There shall be excluded from the measure of the transactions tax and the use tax 
the amount of any sales tax or use tax imposed by the State of Califomia or by any city, city and 
county, or county pursuant to the Bradley-Bums Unifonn Local Sales and Use Tax Law or the 
amount of any state-administered transactions or use tax. 

B. There are exempted from the computation of the amount of transactions tax the 
gross receipts from: 

I. Sales of tangible personal property, other than fuel or petroleum products, to 
operators of aircraft to be used or consumcd principally outside thc county in which the sale is 
made and directly and exclusively in the use of such aircrati as common carriers of persons or 
property under the authority of the laws of this State, the United States, or any foreign 
government. 

2. Sales of property to be used outside the City which is shipped to a point 
outside the City. pursuant to the contract of sale, by delivery to such point by the retailer or his 
agent, or by delivery by the retailer to a carrier for shipment to a consignee at such point. For the 
purposes of this paragraph, delivery to a point outside the City shall be satisfied: 

a. With respect to vehicles (other than commercial vehicles) subject to 
registration pursuant to Chapter I (commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle 
Code, aircrati licensed in compliance with Section 21411 of the Public Utilities Code, and 
undocumented vessels registered under Di\'ision 3.5 (commencing with Section 9840) of the 
Vehicle Code by registration to an out-o!:City address and by a declaration under penalty of 
perjury, signed by the buyer. stating that such address is, in fact. his or her principal place of 
residence: and 

b. With respect to commercial \·ehicles. by registration to a place of 
business out-ot:City and declaration under penalty of perjury. signed by the buyer. that the 
vehicle will be operated from that address. 

3. The sale of tangible personal property ifthc seller is obligated to fumish the 
property for a fixed priee pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the operative datc of this 
ordinance. 

4. A lease of tangible personal property which is a continuing sale of such 
property. for any period of time for which the lessor is obligated to lease the property for an 
amount fixed by the lease prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 

5. For the purposes of subparagraphs (3) and (4) of this section. the sale or 
lease of tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or 
lease for any period of time for which any party to the contract or lease has the unconditional 
right to tenninate the contract or lease upon notice. whether or not such right is exercised. 

206 



C, There arc exempted from the use tax imposed by this ordinance, the storage, use 
or other consumption in this City of tangible personal property: 

I. The gross receipts from the sale of which have been subject to a transactions 
tax under any state-administered transactions and use tax ordinance. 

2. Other than fuel or petroleum products purchased by operators of aircraft and 
used or consumed by such operators directly and exclusively in thc use of such aircraft as 
common carriers of persons or property for hire or compensation undcr a certificate of public 
cO!l\'enience and necessity issued pursuant to the laws of this State, the United States, or any 
iClreign governmcnt. This exemption is in addition to the exemptions provided in Sections 6366 
and 6366.1 0 I' thc Re\'cnue and Taxation Code of the State 0 f Cali illrnia. 

3. If the purchaser is obligated to purchase the property for a fixed price 
pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 

4. If the possession oC or the exercise of any right or power 0\'Cr. the tangible 
personal property arises under a lease which is a continuing purchase of sllch property fix any 
period of time fiJr which the lessee is obligated to !case the property ftlr an amount fi.xed by a 
lease prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 

5. For the purposes of subparagraphs (3) ancI (4) of this section, storage, usc. or 
other consumption. or possession of: or exercise of any right or power over, tangible personal 
property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease for any period of time 
fllr which any party to the contract or lease has the unconditional right to tenninate the contract 
or lease upon notice. whether or not such right is exercised. 

6. Except as provided in subparagraph (7). a retailer engaged in business in the 
City shall not be required to collect use tax li'om the purchaser of tangible personal property. 
unless the retailer ships or delivers the property into the City or participates within the City in 
mJking the sale of the property, including. but not limited to, soliciting or reccidng the order. 
either directly or indirectly. at a place of business of the retailer in the City or through any 
representative. agent canvasser. solicitor, subsidiary. or person in the City under the authority of 
the rdailer. 

7. "A retailer engaged in business in the City" shall also include any retailer of 
any of the tl)liowing: vehicles subject to registration pursuant to Chapter I (commencing with 
Section 4(00) of Division 3 of the Vehicle Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 
21411 of the Public Utilities Code. or undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5 
(commencing with Section 9840) of the Vehicle Code. That retailer shall be required to collect 
usc tax from any purchaser who registers or licenses the vehicle. vesseL or aireratl at an address 
in the City. 

D. Any person subject to usc tax under this ordinance may credit against that tax 
any transactions tax or rdmbursement for transactions tax paid to a district imposing. or retailer 
liable for a transactions tax pursuant to Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code 
with respect to the sale to the person of the property the storage. use or other consumption of 
which is subject to the use tax. 

5 

207 



Section 3. 11.12. AMEND:'vIENTS. All amendments subsequent to the effective date ofthis 
ordinance to Part I of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code relating to sales and use 
taxes and whieh are not inconsistent with Part 1.6 ancl Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Rev'cnue and 
Taxation Code. and all amendments to Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division :2 of the Revenue and 
Taxation Code. shall automatically become a part of this ordinance, prov'ided however, that no 
such amendment shall operate so as to affect the rate of tax imposed by this ordinance. 

Section 3. 11.13. ENJOINING COLLECTION FORBIDDEN. No injunction or writ of 
mandate or other legal or equitable process shall issue in any suit, action or proceeding in any 
court against the State or the City, or against any ofticer of the State or the City, to prevent or 
enjoin the collection under this ordinance, or Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 
Code, orany tax or any amount of tax required to be collected, 

Section 3.11.14. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this ordinance or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance and the 
application of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be aftected thereby. 

Section 3.11. I 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance relatcs to the levying and collccting 
of the City transactions and usc taxes and shall take effect immediately. 

Section 3.1 1.16. TERMINATI00: DATE. Thc authority to levy the tax imposed by this 
ordinance shall cxpire on the fifih anniversary of the last day of the calcndar quarter following 
the "operative date". 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, 
State of California. on July 1,2014, by the fl1110wing vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

Jack Thompson, Mayor 

Karen Dunham, Rio Dell City Clerk 

6 

208 



RESOLUTION 1232-2014 

A RESOLlJTIOj\; OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL EST ABLlSHlNG j\;OVEMBER 
4,2014 AS THE DATE FOR AN ELECTION OJ\; A PROPOSED BALLOT 

MEASURE SEEKING VOTER APPROVAL RELATING TO THE ENACTMENT 
OF A ONE PERCENT (1.0%) TRANSACTlOj\;S AND USE (SALES) TAX FOR 

FrVE YEARS AND REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
HUMBOLDT COUNTY TO CONSOLIDATE SAID ELECTION WITH THE 

STATE\VIDE GENERAL ELECTION 

WHEREAS, a locally-enacted revenue measure would protect and maintain 
Rio Dell's services because the money is legally required to stay in the City's cOlllmunity 
and cannot be taken by the State, thereby providing locally controlled funds for local 
services; and 

WHEREAS, at its July 1,2014 meeting the City Council recognized the need for 
additional revenue to maintain and preser\'c the level of services desired by residents of 
the City: and 

WHEREAS. at that meeting the City Council concluded that all of the infonnation 
presented indicated lhat, to obtain the revenue necessary to maintain and preserve service 
levels, the Council should call an election to ask the voters of the City to appro\'e a 5 year 
local transactions and use (sales) tax. the n?\cnue from which could be used to support 
general municipal services: and 

WHEREAS. on the basis of the foregoing. the City COLincil determined that it was 
appropriate to submit a ballot measure regarding a general transactions and Lise (sales) tax 
to the voters of the City of Rio Dcll for their approval and adoption at the general election 
to be held in the City on November 4, 2014; and 

WIIEREAS. the tax to be submitted to the voters, if approved, would be imposed 
on the sale of tangible personal property and the storage. use, or other consumption of 
such property. The tax rate would be one percent (I ,()%)-~one cent for each dollar of the 
sales price of the personal property. The tax revenue would be collected by the Slate 
Board of Equalization and remitted to the City. The tax would be in effect for 5 years. 
and would then expire automatically, unless extendcd by the voters. The tax shall be 
approved if the measure receives at least a simple majority of affimlative votes: and 

WHEREAS, the Rio Dell City Council is authorized by Califomia Elections Code 
Section 9222 to place measures before the voters: and 

209 



WHEREAS; Elections Code Sections 9281 tlu'ough 9287 set forth the procedures 
for arguments in favor of and in opposition to any City ballot measure; and 

WHEREAS, November 4,2014 is the date of the Statewide General Election and 
it is desirable that the election on the City' 5 ballot measure be consolidated with the 
Statewide General Election to be held on the same date; that within the City, the 
precincts, polling places, and election officers of the two elections be the same; and that 
the Humboldt County Department of Elections and Voter Registration canvass the returns 
of the consolidated election and that the election be held in all respects as if there were 
only one election; and 

WHEREAS; based on all of the information presented at the July I, 2014 meeting, 
both written and oral, including the staff reports, minutes, and other relevant materials, 
the City Council finds that under CEQA Guidelines 15060(c)(2) and 15378, subdivisions 
(2) and (4) of subdivision (b). this tax does not constitute a project under CEQA and 
therefore review under CEQA is not required. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Rio 
Dell: 

I, Recitals, The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated 
by reference. 

2. Call Election; Placement of Measure on the Ballot. Pursuant to California 
Constitution Article XIlIC, Section 2; Government Code Section 53724; and Elections 
Code Section 9222, the City Council of the City of Rio Dell hereby calls an election at 
which it shall submit to the qualified voters of the City, a measure that if approved. 
would adopt a temporary general transactions and use (sales) tax, as authorized by 
Re\'enue and Taxation Code Section 7285,9. This measure shall be designated by letter 
by the Humboldt County Registrar of Voters. Pursuant to Election Code Section 10400 et 
seq., the election for this measure shall be consolidated with the established election to be 
conducted on NO\'ember 4, 2014. 

3. Ballot Language. The question to be presented to the voters is as follows: 

. Shall the City of Rio Dell increase the sales tax by 1°/.,. for 
five years only. providing locally controlled funding that 
cannot be taken by the State? 

YES 

NO 

4. Proposed Ordinance. The ordinance authorizing the general tax to be approved 
by the voters pursuant to Sections 2 and 3 of the Resolution is as set forth in Attachment 
I. The City Council hereby approves the ordinance. and form thereof, and its submission 
to the voters of the City at the November 4, 2014 election, as required by Revenue and 

210 



Taxation Code Section 7285.9, subject to the approval ofa majority of the voters voting 
on the measure at the election called by the adoption of this resolution. The entire text of 
the ordinance, attached hereto as Attachment I, shall be included in the voters pamphlet. 
The ordinance specifies that the rate of the transactions tax shall be one percent (1.0'10) of 
the gross receipts of any retailer from the sale of all tangible personal property sold at 
retail in the City; it specifies that the rate of the use tax shall be one percent (1.0%) of the 
sales price of tangible personal property stored, used or otherwise consumed in the City, 
and that the tax shall be in effect for five years. The State Board of Equalization shall 
collect the tax from retailers subject to the tax and remit the funds to the City. 

5. Publication of Measure. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice oftlle 
measure to be published once in the official newspaper of the city of Rio Dell, in 
accordance with Section 12111 of the Elections Code and Section 6061 of the 
Govel11ment Code. 

6. Request to Consolidate and Conduct Election and Canvass Retul11s. 

(a) Pursuant to the requirement of Section 10403 of the Elections Code, the Board 
of Supervisors of the County of Humboldt is hereby requested to consent and 
agree to the consolidation of a General Municipal Election with the Statewide 
General Election on Tuesday. November 4, 2014, for the purpose of placing 
the measure set forth in Sections 3 and 4 on the ballot. 

(b) The County of Humboldt Registrar of Voters is authorized to canvass the 
returns of the municipal election. The election shall be held in all respects as if 
there were only one election, and only one form of ballot shall be used. 

(c) The Board of Supervisors is requested to issue instructions to the Humboldt 
County registrar of voters take any and all steps necessary for the holding of 
the consolidated election. 

(el) The Citv of Rio Dell recognizes that additional costs will be inculTed bv the . ~ . 
County of HUl11boldt by reason of this consolidation and agrees to reimburse 
the County for any costs. 

7. Submission of Ballot Argument and Impartial Analysis. 

(a) The submission of ballot arguments for or against the measure shall be 
conducted pursuant to Election Code sections 9281 through 9287. 

(b) The last day for submission of direct arguments for or against the measure 
shall be by 5:00pm, August 12, 2(J14. 

(cl Direct arguments shall not exceed three hundred (300) words and shall be 
signed by not more than five persons. 

(d) The City Attol11ey shall prepare an impartial analysis of the measure by 
5:00pm. August 11,2014. 

211 



8. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 
adoption and the City Clerk is directed to send certified copies of the Resolution to the 
Humboldt County Board of Supervisors and the Humboldt County Registrar of Voters. 

9. CEQA. The approval of this resolution is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code §§ 21000 et seq .. "CEQA," and 14 
Cal. Code Reg. §§ 15000 et seq., "CEQA Guidelines"). The transactions and use (sales) 
tax to be submitted to the voters is a general tax that can be used for any legitimate 
governmental purpose; it is not a commitment to any particular action. As such. under 
CEQA Guidelines section I 5378(b)(4), the tax is not a project within the meaning of 
CEQA because it creates a government funding mechanism that does not involve any 
commitment to any specific project that may result in a potentially significant physical 
impact on the environment. If revenue from the tax were used for a purpose that would 
have such effect, the City would undertake the required CEQA review for that particular 
project. Therefore. under CEQA Guidelines section 15060. review under CEQA is not 
required. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED hy the City Council of the City of Rio Dell. 

State of California. on July 1,1014, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

Jack Thompson, Mayor 

Karen Dunham. Rio Dell City Clerk 

212 



CITY ATTORNEY'S IMPARTIAL ANALYSIS 

The City Council is submitting to tbe voters the question of whether to approve an ordinance enacting a 
temporary sales lax within the City orRio Dell to fllnd City services and facilities, slich as improving 
police protection, updating fire stations, repairing streets and potholes, and improving other general City 
services and facilities, The tax rate lIould be one percent (1,0%) of the retail sales price - or one cent I()r 
an item that costs one dollar. The tax would remain in effect for fi\"c years. 

A '·sales tax" is a combination oC"sa!es and use tax" and "transactions and use t<:L\." Both are levied 011 

the sale or use of tangible personal property sold at relail, with certain limited exceptions, Relailers collect 
the lax at the time or sale and remit the funds to the State Board of Equalization \\'hich administers the 
tax, 

Currently, the ta" on retail salcs in Rio Dell is seven and one-halfrcrcenl (7,50<;,,) orthe purchase price, 
This measure would authorize a 1 ,O~'() transactions and usc (sales) tax. which would increasc the total 
sales tax rate to 8.50{~o. The tax would automatically terminate fi\'c years after it becomes operative, 
unless extended by the mters, 

The tax proceeds would be deposited into the City's general lund and be available to support the full 
range of municipal services. Ekcause this measure docs not tcgally restrict the use of tax ren~nue to any 
specific purposes, it is classified as a ··general tax," not a "special tax," The tax rroceeds may be used for 
any valid municipal go\'cmmenta( purpose and canllot legally he taken away by the State. The tax 
proceeds would be subject to the same independent annual audit requirements as other general fund 
rc\-enuc< The audit rerort would be a matter of public record. 

A "Yes" \-ote i:-i a \'otc in hlvor ofthc tax. A ··No" Hlte is a \ ott: against the tax, This measure would be 
approved if it receives a sirnplt: m;:~ori[y of"Y es·· votes, 

s Russell S. (ialls 
City '\Homey for the City of Rio Dell 

The abo\e statement is an impartial analy::;i.:; ofrvkasun~ ··U". The measure is printed in full in this sample 
ballot pamphlet, AdJitionni copies "fthe sample ballot pamphlet may be obtamed from the City Clerk's 
Ofiic" or by visiting ",","'''''''!~''''''.'o.C'""~,,"",,, 

213 


